
AGENDA 
 

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, May 6, 2024 - 5:30 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087 

  

I. Call Public Meeting to Order 
 

II. Executive Session 
 The City of Rockwall City Council will recess into executive session to discuss the following matter as authorized 

by chapter 551 of the Texas government code: 
 

 1. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incentives, pursuant to 
§Section 551.087 (Economic Development) 

 

III. Adjourn Executive Session 
 

IV. Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.) 
 

V. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Thomas 
 

VI. Proclamations / Awards / Recognitions 
 

 1. Recognition of graduating Youth Advisory Council (YAC) Seniors 
 

VII. Open Forum 
 This is a time for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set 

for a public hearing. To speak during this time, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address City Council" form 
to the City Secretary either before the meeting or as you approach the podium. Per Council policy, public 
comments should be limited to three (3) minutes out of respect for others' time. On topics raised during Open 
Forum, please know Council is not permitted to respond to your comments during the meeting since the topic 
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Meetings Act requires that topics of 
discussion/deliberation be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council meeting). This, 
in part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion. 

 

VIII. Take Any Action as a Result of Executive Session 
 

IX. Consent Agenda 
 These agenda items are routine/administrative in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council 

meeting, and/or they do not warrant Council deliberation. If you would like to discuss one of these items, 
please do so during "Open Forum."  

 

 1. Consider approval of the minutes from the April 15, 2024 city council meeting, and take any action 
necessary. 
 
 
 

 

Page 1 of 252



 2. Z2024-010 - Consider a request by Mark Fernandez of Lithia C/O Golden Property Development, 
LLC on behalf of Zohreh Malek for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
a New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars and Light Trucks to allow the expansion of an existing 
New Motor Vehicle Dealership on a 5.9613-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block 1, 
Rockwall KIA Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, 
situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as 1790 E. IH-30, and take any 
action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 3. Z2024-011 - Consider a request by Alan Wyatt on behalf of PSB Indemnity Family, LTD PTRN for 
the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a structure in excess of 36-
feet in the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District to allow the construction of a flag pole on a 1.158-acre 
parcel of land identified as a Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Executive Center Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) 
District, addressed as 510 Turtle Cove Boulevard, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 4. Z2024-013 - Consider a request by Paul Arce of Projects & Constructions Araque on behalf of 
Shirley Soto for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in 
an Established Subdivision on a 0.248-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Lot 1180 and all 
of Lot 1179 of the Lake Rockwall Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single- Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 
340 Evans Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 5. Z2024-014 - Consider a request by Barbara Lee for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning 
Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District for a ten (10) acre 
tract of land identified as Tract 22-01 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 628 Cornelius 
Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 6. Z2024-015 - Consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Mike 
Peoples for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to 
a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District for a 15.561-acre tract of land identified as a portion of 
Tracts 10-02, 10-03, 25-1, & 26 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 291, 333 & 555 Cornelius 
Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 7. P2024-007 - Consider a request by Ronny Klingbeil of RLK Engineering, Inc. on behalf of Tim Lyssy 
of Rockwall Independent School District (RISD) for the approval of a Replat for Lot 3, Block 1, 
Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition being a 26.25-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block 
1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-
Family 16 (SF-16) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, 
addressed as 625 FM-552, and take any action necessary. 

 

 8. P2024-013 - Consider a request by Josh Milsap of KFM Engineering & Design on behalf of Tony 
Austin of Rockwall Downtown Lofts, LTD for the approval of a Replat for Lot 3, Block A, TAC 
Rockwall Addition being a 3.35-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block A, TAC Rockwall 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Downtown (DT) District, situated within 
the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, located at the southwest corner of the intersection of S. 
Goliad Street [SH-205] and SH-66, and take any action necessary. 
 
 

 

Page 2 of 252



 9. P2024-014 - Consider a request by Nick Hobbs of BGE, Inc. on behalf of Ben Scott of HEB, LP for 
the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, HEB Addition being a 12.519-acre tract of land 
identified as Tracts 2 & 3 of the J. M. Allen Survey, Abstract No. 2, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 
BY-OV) District and the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, located at the southwest corner of the 
eastbound IH-30 Frontage Road and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary. 

 

 10. P2024-015 - Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor 
Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A 
and Lots 12 & 13, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition being a 23.680-acre tract of land identified as a 
portion of Tract 22 and all of Tract 22-2 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 120, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 
OV) District and the FM-549 Overlay (FM-549 OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the 
intersection of the IH-30 Frontage Road and FM-549, and take any action necessary. 

 

 11. P2024-016 - Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor 
Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of a Replat for Lots 9, 10, & 11, 
Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition being a 18.085-acre tract of land identified as Lot 8, Block B, Fit 
Sport Life Addition and a portion of Tract 22 and all of Tract 24 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 
120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District and Light Industrial 
(LI) District, situated at the northwest corner of the intersection of Data Drive and Capital 
Boulevard, and take any action necessary. 

 

 12. P2024-017 - Consider a request by Kyle Harris of Westwood Professional Services on behalf of 
Edward Burke of Channell, Inc. for the approval of a Replat for Lot 5, Block A, Channell Subdivision 
being a 18.762-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, Channell Subdivision, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 89 (PD-89) for Light 
Industrial (LI) District land uses, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) 
District, addressed as 1700 John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary. 

 

 13. Consider awarding a bid to Magnum Manhole and authorizing the City Manager to execute 
associated contract(s) in an amount not to exceed $162,264 for the rehabilitation of 32 manholes 
within the city, to be funded by the Wastewater Operating Budget, and take any action necessary. 

 

 14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Planning Grant Agreement with Texas Parks & 
Wildlife and a Planning, Design and Construction Administration Agreement with MHS Planning in 
the amount of $222,750.00 for the planning grant with Texas Parks & Wildlife, and take any action 
necessary. 

 

 15. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an interlocal cooperation agreement with 
Rockwall County for Municipal Court judge services associated with "No Refusal Weekends," and 
take any action necessary. 

 

 16. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in Chapter 38. Subdivisions; 
Article II. Park Land Dedication; Table 1. to set revised annual price per acre of land and total 
equipment costs for neighborhood parks (mandatory park land dedication fees), and take any 
action necessary. (1st reading) 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 252



 
 

X. Action Items 
 If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to speak during Open Forum.  

 

 1. Z2024-012 - Consider a request by Preston Harris of Harris Family Lake House, LLC for the 
approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Tennis Courts (Pickleball Courts) on a 
2.522-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block C, The Estates of Coast Royale #1 Addition, City 
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the 
Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1722 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary (2nd 
Reading). 

 

 2. Hear year-end presentation from members of the City's Rockwall Youth Advisory Council (YAC), 
recapping their program for this past school year. 

 

 3. Discuss and consider a status update from the Rockwall Area Chamber of Commerce regarding 
Hotel Occupancy Tax ("HOT") funding received from the City and regarding programs offered 
through the Convention & Visitors Bureau on behalf of the City of Rockwall. 

 

 4. Discuss and consider authorizing the city manager to execute an agreement with Parkhill for 
professional services for a facilities planning study in the amount of $185,000 to be paid from 
General Fund Reserves, and take any action necessary. 

 

XI. City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and Related Discussions Pertaining To Current City 
Activities, Upcoming Meetings, Future Legislative Activities, and Other Related Matters. 

 

 1. Building Inspections Department Monthly Report 
 

 2. Budget Report - Quarter End March 31, 2024 
 

 3. Fire Department Monthly Report 
 

 4. Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report 
 

 5. Police Department Monthly Report 
 

 6. Sales Tax Historical Comparison 
 

 7. Water Consumption Historical Statistics 
 

XII. Adjournment 
 

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommodations or interpretive services 
must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for 
further information. 
 
The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time to discuss any of the matters listed on 
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) ¶ 551.072 (Deliberations about 
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development) 
 
I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place 
readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the  3rd day of May 2024, at 5 PM and remained so posted for at least 72 
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 

__________________________________ 
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

___________________________ 
Date Removed 

Page 4 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 1 of 10 

MINUTES 
 

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, April 15, 2024 - 5:00 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087 
 

I. Call Public Meeting to Order 

Mayor Johannesen called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Trace Johannesen, 
Mayor Pro Tem Anna Campbell and Councilmembers Sedric Thomas, Mark Moeller, Clarence Jorif, 
Dennis Lewis and Tim McCallum. He then read the below-listed discussion items in the public record 
before recessing the meeting to go into Executive Session. 

 

II. Executive Session 
 

 1. Discussion regarding status of City of Rockwall vs. Richard Brooks & Lake Pointe Health 
Science Center, pursuant to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) 

 

 2. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incentives, 
pursuant to §Section 551.087 (Economic Development) 

 

III. Adjourn Executive Session 

Council adjourned from Executive Session at 5:55 p.m. 
 

IV. Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.) 

Mayor Johannesen reconvened the Public Meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

V. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember McCallum 

Councilmember McCallum delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

VI. Proclamations / Awards / Recognitions 
 

 1. National Public Safety Telecommunicator Week Proclamation (April 14 - April 20) 

Mayor Johannesen called forth Police Chief, Ed Fowler; Fire Chief, Kenneth Cullins, the city’s 
dispatch supervisor and other dispatch personnel. He then read and presented this proclamation in 
recognition of the difficult, challenging, very important job duties they perform day in and day out. 

 

VII. Appointment Items 
 

 1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer 
any questions regarding planning-related cases on the agenda. 
 

 

Planning & Zoning Chairman, Derek Deckard came forth and briefed the Council on 
recommendations of the Commission relative to planning-related items on tonight’s meeting 
agenda. 
 

Page 5 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 2 of 10 

VIII. Open Forum 
Mayor Johannesen explained how Open Forum is conducted, asking if anyone would like to come 
forth and speak at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed Open Forum. 

 

IX. Take Any Action as a Result of Executive Session 

No action was taken as a result of Executive Session. 
 

X. Consent Agenda 
 

 1. Consider approval of the minutes from the April 1, 2024 city council meeting, and take any 
action necessary. 

 

 2. Consider approval of an ordinance for the temporary reduction of the current 70 miles per 
hour speed limit along IH-30 to 65 miles per hour from MP 69.27 to MP 71.23 
(approximately 300 feet east of T.L. Townsend to the eastern City limits) during 
(re)construction of IH-30, and take any action necessary. (2nd reading) 

 

 3. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in Ch. 44 "Utilities," 
Article V. "Water," Division 6 and Division 7 to combine and update the Water 
Conservation Plan and the Water Resource and Emergency Management Plan, and take 
any action necessary. (2nd reading) 

 

 4. P2024-011 - Consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of 
Bret Pedigo of TM Terraces, LCC for the approval of a Final Plat for the Terraces Subdivision 
consisting of 82 single-family residential lots on a 21.648-acre tract of land being identified 
as a portion of Tracts 10-02, 10-03, 25-1 & 26 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 93 (PD-93) 
for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses, generally located south of the intersection of 
Cornelius Road and FM-1141, and take any action necessary. 

 

 5. P2024-009 - Consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of 
Mike Peoples for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1-8, Block A, People Tract Addition 
being a 15.561-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Tracts 10-02, 10-03, 25-1, & 26 
of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 291, 333 & 555 Cornelius Road, and take any 
action necessary. 

 

 6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with B&B Concrete for Harry 
Myers parking lot expansion in the amount of $59,900 to be funded by park land 
dedication fees, and take any action necessary. 

Councilmember McCallum pulled items #4 and #5 for further discussion.  He then made a motion to 
approve the other, remaining Consent Agenda items (#s 1, 2, 3, and 6). Councilmember Jorif 
seconded the motion. The ordinance captions were read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-11 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL 
TEXAS, ALTERING THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED FOR 
VEHICLES UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TRANSPORTATION CODE, 
SECTION 545.356 UPON INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 30 OR PARTS 

Page 6 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 3 of 10 

THEREOF, WITHIN THE INCORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS SET OUT IN THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF $200.00 FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-12 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN CHAPTER 44. 
UTILITIES; ARTICLE V. WATER; DIVISION 6 “WATER CONSERVATION 
PLAN” AND DIVISION 7 “WATER RESOURCE AND EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT PLAN” TO REPEAL DIVISION 6. AND DIVISION 7 IN THEIR 
ENTIRETY AND REPLACE THEM WITH ONE NEW DIVISION 6 TO REFLECT 
AN UPDATED WATER CONSERVATION PLAN AND AN UPDATED WATER 
RESOURCE AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE 
SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED ON EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A 
VIOLATION OCCURS; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTVE DATE. 
 

The motion to approve (#s 1, 2, 3 and 6) passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

Regarding Consent Agenda items # 4 and #5, Councilmember McCallum asked several clarifying 
questions of the city’s Planning Director, Ryan Miller.  

Following the brief discussion, Councilmember Jorif then moved to approve Consent Agenda items 
#4 and #5. Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion. Councilmember McCallum asked if the 
two items can please be handled separately, as he is inclined to vote in favor of one of the two and 
vote against the other one. 

Councilmember Jorif agreed, amending his motion to call for approval of Consent Agenda item #4 
only. Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 6 ayes to 1 nays 
(McCallum). 

Councilmember Jorif then moved to approve Consent Agenda item #5.  Councilmember Thomas 
seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

 

XI. Public Hearing Items 
 

 1. Z2024-010 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mark Fernandez of 
Lithia C/O Golden Property Development, LLC on behalf of Zohreh Malek for the approval 
of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars 
and Light Trucks to allow the expansion of an existing New Motor Vehicle Dealership on a 
5.9613-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block 1, Rockwall KIA Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-
30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as 1790 E. IH-30, and take any action necessary 
(1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information on this agenda item. This property 
is located along IH-30, and since the year 2008, a Kia dealership has been located on it. At that time, 
the UDC allowed new motor vehicle dealerships “by right” in a Light Industrial District. However, 

Page 7 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 4 of 10 

the Code was later changed to require that a new motor vehicle dealership in a light industrial 
district had to obtain a Specific Use Permit (SUP). The owners of the dealership approached staff, 
wanting to expand and rebrand the dealership.  Staff had two options – take it before the City’s 
Board of Adjustments to seek approval for the desired expansion related to a legally non-
conforming use. Or, take the applicant through the SUP process and try to obtain an SUP. The SUP 
process provides more flexibility moving forward, so this is what the applicant is opting to do at this 
time. Mr. Miller provided a concept plan, sharing that the expansion is not a very large one.  
Obtaining the SUP has advantages for the city too, as its conditions will require the applicant to 
upgrade landscaping, the building will have a nicer look to it, and it will more closely conform to the 
city’s current zoning code. Twenty-eight notices were sent out to property owners and occupants 
located within 500’ of the property. One notice was received back in favor. Also, the city’s Planning 
& Zoning Commission has unanimously (7-0) recommended approval of this SUP request. 

Mayor Johannesen opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. The applicant then came forth to address Council. 

Bryan Hall 
3582 CR 1061 
Greenville, TX 
 
Mr. Hall shared they desire to make the dealership look a little better for the community. 

Councilmember Thomas made a motion to approve Z2024-010. Councilmember Moeller seconded 
the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-3XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) 
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW A NEW MOTOR VEHICLE 
DEALERSHIP FOR CARS AND LIGHT TRUCKS AND AN ACCESSORY 
MAJOR AUTO REPAIR GARAGE ON A 5.9613-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND 
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 1, BLOCK 1, ROCKWALL KIA ADDITION, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DEPICTED AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBITS ‘A’ AND ‘B’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

 

 2. Z2024-011 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Alan Wyatt on 
behalf of PSB Indemnity Family, LTD PTRN for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) to allow a structure in excess of 36-feet in the Scenic Overlay (SOV) 
District to allow the construction of a flag pole on a 1.158-acre parcel of land identified as a 

Page 8 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 5 of 10 

Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Executive Center Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, 
addressed as 510 Turtle Cove Boulevard, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information regarding this agenda item. The 
subject property is located within the IH-30 Scenic Overlay District, and a 49,500 square foot office 
building. The applicant would like approval to erect a 60 foot tall flagpole in the northwest corner of 
the parking lot. To do so requires the applicant to obtain an SUP. He explained that a 36’ flagpole 
would be allowed ‘by right,’ but the applicant wants a taller one. Forty-four notices were sent out to 
adjacent land/property owners and occupants; however, no notices were received back by staff. 
The city’s Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed this request and has recommended its approval 
by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

Mayor Johannesen opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to speak. No one 
indicated such, so he closed the Public Hearing. 

Mayor Pro Tem Campbell moved to approve Z2024-011. Councilmember Thomas seconded the 
motion.  He asked for clarification on what type of flag can be flown. Mr. Miller shared that it can 
only be a state or nation flag and cannot be used for signage. The ordinance caption was read as 
follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-3XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) 
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW A STRUCTURE IN EXCESS OF 
36-FEET IN HEIGHT IN THE SCENIC OVERLAY (SOV) DISTRICT TO ALLOW 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A FLAG POLE ON A 1.158-ACRE PARCEL 
OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS  LOT 2, BLOCK A, ROCKWALL EXECUTIVE 
CENTER ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; 
AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

 

 3. Z2024-012 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Preston Harris of 
Harris Family Lake House, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) for Tennis Courts (Pickleball Courts) on a 2.522-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, 
Block C, The Estates of Coast Royale #1 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, 
addressed as 1722 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

Mr. Miller, Planning Director, provided background information concerning this agenda item. This 
case is concerning 722 Ridge Road, which is currently zoned SF-10 District and is located within the 

Page 9 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 6 of 10 

Scenic Overlay District. A 2,400 sq. foot single-family home is on the property, and it has a 1,600 
square foot guest quarters. The applicant is seeking approval of an SUP at this time, associated with 
an ‘already constructed’ and un-permitted pickleball court in an effort to allow it to remain on the 
property. Mr. Miller explained that a private court like this requires an SUP. This court is in the rear 
of the property, and it has an 8’ fence on the southern and western property lines, and there is a 
thick tree line on the northern property line. The pickleball court itself is 28’ x 44’  . The applicant 
has indicated that the purpose of the court initially was for basketball, but the contractor had talked 
to them about incorporating pickleball into the plan. There is one 12’ light (pole) containing two LED 
lights that is adjacent to the court as well. Sixty-two notices were sent out to adjacent property 
owners and occupants within 500’ of the subject property, and some notices received back by staff 
indicated concerns about lighting. Seven notices, with one being in favor and six being opposed, 
have been received back by staff as of today. The Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended 
approval of the request by a vote of 7 to 0. 

Councilmember Lewis expressed great dissatisfaction regarding contractors who perform work 
within the city without first pulling / obtaining a permit. He strongly wishes the city could institute 
stronger, stricter penalties to contractors who do work without first obtaining proper permitting. 
Councilmember Jorif is also very dissatisfied with permits not being pulled before work like this is 
performed. He knows there are already concerns from neighbors who believe this property will be 
used as a short-term rental, and they are worried about noise and other issues arising from this 
property and from the pickleball courts. Councilmember McCallum shared that he also has concerns 
about this pickleball court, especially since the property is already being listed and utilized as a 
short-term rental.  Mayor Pro Tem Campbell shared that she also has concerns about this request, 
especially since it was built without first pulling proper permits and because the property is being 
used as a STR. 

Mayor Johannesen opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like come forth and speak at 
this time. 

Melba Jeffus 
2606 Cypress 
Rockwall, TX 75087 
 
Mrs. Jeffus shared that she is very angry about this request. She very strongly encouraged Council to 
stop this right now, encouraging them to vote against this and to take a stand related to STRs.  
 
Councilmember McCallum wonders if this property is currently being used as an STR (short-term 
rental) property. 
 
The applicant, Mrs. Taylor Harris, came forth and shared that this is mostly a family home but it has 
also had maybe two rentals in the last 365+ days. 
 
There was no one else wishing to come forth and speak at this time. So, Mayor Johannesen closed 
the public hearing. 
 
City Attorney Frank Garza clarified that a basketball court is allowed ‘by right.’ It’s the pickleball 
aspect of the court that is not currently allowed without special approval.  
 
Extensive discussion ensued regarding this request, including questions and answers concerning 

Page 10 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 7 of 10 

lighting as well as what is located immediately adjacent to this pickleball court. 
 
Following the discussions, Mayor Johannesen moved to approve Z2024-012. Councilmember 
Thomas seconded the motion. The mayor then provided brief comments, giving various reasons 
why he is going to support this request this evening. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS 
TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR A PRIVATE TENNIS 
COURT ON A 2.522-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 4, 
BLOCK C, THE ESTATES OF COAST ROYALE #1 ADDITION, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBITS ‘A’ AND ‘B’ OF 
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion to approve passed by a vote of 4 ayes with 3 nays (Jorif, Campbell and McCallum). 

 

 4. Z2024-013 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Paul Arce of 
Projects & Constructions Araque on behalf of Shirley Soto for the approval of 
an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established 
Subdivision on a 0.248-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Lot 1180 and all of Lot 
1179 of the Lake Rockwall Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single- Family 7 (SF-7) District, 
addressed as 340 Evans Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information regarding this agenda item. He 
shared that the applicant is wanting to construct a 3,306 square foot single-family home on this 
property. The proposed home does appear to be comparable to other newer housing within the 
subdivision with the exception of the proposed garage orientation. Notices were sent out to 
adjacent land a property owners located within 500’ of the subject property, but no notices were 
received back by staff. The P&Z Commission did recommend approval of this request by a vote of 7 
ayes to 0 nays. 
 
Mayor Johannesen opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Councilmember Lewis moved to approve Z2024-013. Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion. 
The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-3XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 75 (PD-75) 

Page 11 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 8 of 10 

[ORDINANCE NO. 16-01] AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) 
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION 
ON A 0.248-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS A PORTION OF LOT 
1180 AND ALL OF LOT 1179 OF THE LAKE ROCKWALL ESTATES 
PHASE 2 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; 
AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF 
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

 5. Z2024-014 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Barbara Lee for the 
approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-
Family 1 (SF-1) District for a ten (10) acre tract of land identified as Tract 22-01 of the W. 
M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 628 Cornelius Road, and take any action necessary 
(1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information concerning this agenda item. The 
applicant is seeking this zoning change for the purpose of then establishing two, additional single-
family residential lots on the property – lots that will be conveyed to family members. Mr. Miller 
shared that thirty-two notices were sent out to adjacent land and property owners, but no notices 
were received back by staff. In addition, the Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed this case and 
has recommended its approval by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 
Mayor Johannesen opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Following brief questions and answers between staff and Council, Councilmember McCallum moved 
to approve Z2024-14. Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was 
read as follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS 
TO APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) 
DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-FAMILY 1 (SF-1) DISTRICT FOR A TEN (10) ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 22-01 OF THE W. M. DALTON 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 72, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
FURTHER DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING 
FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT 
TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

 

Page 12 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 9 of 10 

 6. Z2024-015 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of 
Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Mike Peoples for the approval of an ordinance for 
a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) 
District for a 15.561-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Tracts 10-02, 10-03, 25-1, & 
26 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 291, 333 & 555 Cornelius Road, and take any 
action necessary (1st Reading). 

Planning Director Ryan Miller provided background information regarding this agenda item. The 
applicant is seeking this zoning change for the purpose of establishing eight (8) single-family 
residential lots on the property. Thirty-four notices were mailed out to adjacent property owners 
located within 500’. Two notices were received back; however, the respondents live in the city’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), outside of the city limits.  One of the replies was in favor, and one 
of them was in opposition of this request. 

Mayor Johannesen opened the public hearing. The applicant came forth and provided brief 
comments to Council concerning this request.  There being no one else wishing to come forth and 
speak, the mayor closed the public hearing.  

Councilmember Jorif moved to approve Z2024-015. Councilmember McCallum seconded the 
motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS 
TO APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) 
DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-FAMILY ESTATE 1.5 (SFE-1.5) DISTRICT FOR A 
15.561-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS A PORTION OF TRACTS 10-
02, 10-03, 25-01 & 26 OF THE W. M. DALTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 72, 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND FURTHER DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

 

XII. Action Items 
 

 1. Hear, discuss and consider a presentation from Rockwall County Commissioner Dana 
Macalik (Pct. 2) concerning Rockwall County's Strategic Plan, and take any action 
necessary. 

County Commissioner Dana Macalik provided a presentation Council related to the count’s strategic 
plan.  Council took no action as a result of Commissioner Macalik’s comments. 

 

 2. Discuss and consider approval of a resolution adopting the Parks & Recreation Board's 

Page 13 of 252



04-15-24 Rockwall City Council Mtg. Minutes 
Page 10 of 10 

recommendation for the naming of 4 acres of dedicated park land as "Greenes Lake Park," 
and take any action necessary. 

Parks Director, Travis Sales, came forth and provided background information concerning this 
agenda item. 
 
Following brief comments, Councilmember Jorif moved to approve the resolution naming the park 
Greenes Lake Park. Councilmember Moeller seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes 
to 0 nays. 

 

XIII. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 

6th DAY OF MAY, 2024. 

 
           TRACE JOHANNESEN, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY 

 
 

 

Page 14 of 252



Z2024-010: SUP for Southwest Kia Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-13; SUP # S-328 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-13 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-328 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS 
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW A NEW MOTOR VEHICLE 
DEALERSHIP FOR CARS AND LIGHT TRUCKS AND AN 
ACCESSORY MAJOR AUTO REPAIR GARAGE ON A 5.9613-
ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 1, BLOCK 1, 
ROCKWALL KIA ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DEPICTED AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBITS ‘A’ AND ‘B’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Mark Fernandez of Lithia C/O Golden Property 
Development, LLC on behalf of Zohreh Malek for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
a New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars and Light Trucks and an accessory Major Auto Repair 
Garage to allow the expansion of an existing New Motor Vehicle Dealership being a 5.9613-acre 
parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block 1, Rockwall Kia Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) 
District, addressed as 1790 E. IH-30, and being more specifically depicted and described in 
Exhibits ‘A’ and ‘B’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property 
and incorporated by reference herein; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing 
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that Ordinance No. 22-02 [S-266] 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be 
amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1.  That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in 
Ordinance No. 22-02. 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) allowing a New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars and Light Trucks and 

Page 15 of 252



Z2024-010: SUP for Southwest Kia Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-13; SUP # S-328 

accessory Major Auto Repair Garage as stipulated by Subsection 01.02, Land Use Schedule, of 
Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on 
the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 3.  That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Subsection 02.03, Conditional Land Use Standards, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and 
Subsection 05.01, General Industrial District Standards, and Subsection 05.02, Light Industrial 
(LI) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and as may be amended in the future --, 
and with the following conditions: 
 
3.1. OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions pertain to the operation of a New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars 
and Light Trucks and an accessory Major Auto Repair Garage on the Subject Property and 
conformance to these conditions are required for continued operations: 

 
(1) The development or redevelopment of the Subject Property shall generally conform to 

the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.  
 

(2) No vehicle display areas shall be permitted within the required landscape buffer along 
the E. IH-30 frontage road. 

 
(3) Motor vehicle inventory for the existing New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars and Light 

Trucks and/or Major Auto Repair Garage shall not be parked/stored on an unimproved 
surface. 

 
(4) The outside storage of tires or any other automotive parts shall be prohibited. 

 
(5) Any maintenance of motor vehicles shall be performed in a completely enclosed building, 

and no work on motor vehicles shall be performed outdoors. 
 
3.2. COMPLIANCE 
 

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) will require compliance to the following: 
 
(1) Upon obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) and/or building permit, should the 

business owner operating under the guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum 
operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code 
(UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, 
Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 4.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 5. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 

Page 16 of 252



Z2024-010: SUP for Southwest Kia Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-13; SUP # S-328 

SECTION 6.  Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 7.  If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or 
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 8. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6th DAY OF MAY, 2024. 
 
 
     

 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  April 15, 2024 
 
2nd Reading: May 6, 2024 

Page 17 of 252



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Zoning Exhibit 

Z2024-010: SUP for Southwest Kia Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-13; SUP # S-328 

Address: 1790 E. IH-30 
Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 1, Rockwall Kia Addition 

 

 

Page 18 of 252



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Concept Plan   

Z2024-010: SUP for Southwest Kia Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-13; SUP # S-328 

 

Page 19 of 252



 
Z2024-011: SUP for 510 Turtle Cove Blvd. Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-14; SUP # S-329 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-14 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-329 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC 
USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW A STRUCTURE IN EXCESS 
OF 36-FEET IN HEIGHT IN THE SCENIC OVERLAY (SOV) 
DISTRICT TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A FLAG 
POLE ON A 1.158-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED 
AS  LOT 2, BLOCK A, ROCKWALL EXECUTIVE CENTER 
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Alan Wyatt for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) to allow a structure in excess of 36-feet in height in the Scenic Overlay (SOV) 
District to allow the construction of a flag pole on a 1.158-acre parcel of land being described as 
Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Executive Center Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed as 510 Turtle Cove Boulevard, and being more 
specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be 
referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by  reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) to allow a structure in excess of 36-feet in height in the Scenic Overlay (SOV) 
District to allow the construction of a flag pole in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, 
and Article 05, District Development Standards, the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance 
No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 

Page 20 of 252



 
Z2024-011: SUP for 510 Turtle Cove Blvd. Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-14; SUP # S-329 
 

Subsection 03.04, Flag Poles, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and Subsection 07.03, Non- 
Residential District Development Standards, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be 
amended in the future -- and with the following conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the construction and continued operation of a flag pole on the 
Subject Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 
 
1) The development of a flag pole on the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Concept 

Plan as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The construction of a flag pole on the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Flag 
Pole Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 
 

3) The proposed flag pole shall not exceed a maximum overall height of 60-feet as measured 
from grade. 
 

4) The flag shall be maintained in good condition free of tears, rips, fraying, or fading. 
  
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 

Page 21 of 252



 
Z2024-011: SUP for 510 Turtle Cove Blvd. Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-14; SUP # S-329 
 

force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6th DAY OF MAY, 2024. 
 
 
 
     

 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  April 15, 2024 
 
2nd Reading: May 6, 2024 
 
 

Page 22 of 252



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Location Map and Survey 

 
Z2024-011: SUP for 510 Turtle Cove Blvd. Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-14; SUP # S-329 
 

Address: 510 Turtle Cove Boulevard 
Legal Description: Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Executive Center Addition 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 23 of 252



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Concept Plan  

 
Z2024-011: SUP for 510 Turtle Cove Blvd. Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-14; SUP # S-329 
 

 

FLAG POLE 

Page 24 of 252



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Flag Pole Elevations   

 
Z2024-011: SUP for 510 Turtle Cove Blvd. Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-14; SUP # S-329 
 

 

 

Page 25 of 252



Z2024-013: SUP for 340 Evans Road Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-16; SUP # S-331 

  CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-16 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-331 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 75 (PD-75) [ORDINANCE NO. 16-01] AND THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC 
USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN 
ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION ON A 0.248-ACRE PARCEL OF 
LAND, IDENTIFIED AS A PORTION OF LOT 1180 AND ALL 
OF LOT 1179 OF THE LAKE ROCKWALL ESTATES PHASE 
2 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING 
FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF 
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Paul Arce for the approval of a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.248-acre parcel of land identified 
as a portion of Lot 1180 and all of Lot 1179 of the Lake Rockwall Estates #2 Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, addressed as 340 Evans Road, and being more specifically 
described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as 
the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) 
[Ordinance No. 16-01] and the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the 
City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. That Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) [Ordinance No. 16-01] and the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, 
be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential 
Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow for the construction of a single-family home in an 
established subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 

Page 26 of 252



Z2024-013: SUP for 340 Evans Road Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-16; SUP # S-331 

Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) [Ordinance No. 16-01] and Subsection 03.01, General 
Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.09, Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, of Article 
05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-
02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following 
conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 
 
1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan 

as depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to 
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 

 
3) The applicant shall be required to replat the subject property prior to the issuance of a Building 

Permit.  
 
4) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted 

by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by 
the property owner shall be required. 

  
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 

Page 27 of 252



Z2024-013: SUP for 340 Evans Road Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-16; SUP # S-331 

the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6th DAY OF MAY, 2024. 
 
 
 
     

 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  April 15, 2024 
 
2nd Reading: May 6, 2024 

Page 28 of 252



  Exhibit ‘A’: 
Location Map and Residential Plot Plan  

Z2024-013: SUP for 340 Evans Road Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-16; SUP # S-331 

Address: 340 Evans Road  
 

Legal Description: Portion of Lot 1180 and all of Lot 1179 of the Lake Rockwall Estates Phase 2 Addition 
 

 
 

Page 29 of 252



  Exhibit ‘A’: 
Location Map and Residential Plot Plan  

Z2024-013: SUP for 340 Evans Road Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-16; SUP # S-331 

 

Page 30 of 252



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Building Elevations   

Z2024-013: SUP for 340 Evans Road Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-16; SUP # S-331 

 
 

Page 31 of 252



Z2024-014: Zoning Change from AG to SF-1 Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-17; 

  CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-17 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL 
(AG) DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-FAMILY 1 (SF-1) DISTRICT FOR 
A TEN (10) ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 22-
01 OF THE W. M. DALTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 72, CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 
MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
FURTHER DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Barbara Lee for the approval of a Zoning 
Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District for a ten (10) acre 
tract of land identified as Tract 22-01 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 628 Cornelius 
Road, and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which 
hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending 
the zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from 
an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District;  
 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District as stipulated in Section 01.01, Use of Land and 
Buildings, of Article 04, Permissible Uses and Section 03.01, General Residential District 
Standards and Section 03.05, Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District, of Article 05, District Development 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall 
as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting of this zoning change, and as maybe 
amended in the future; 
 

Page 32 of 252



Z2024-014: Zoning Change from AG to SF-1 Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-17; 

SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein; 
 
SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
and 
 
SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;  
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF MAY, 2024. 

 
      

 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  April 15, 2024 
 
2nd Reading: May 6, 2024 
 

Page 33 of 252



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Legal Description 

Z2024-014: Zoning Change from AG to SF-1 Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-17; 

 
All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in the WILLIAM DALTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 72, Rockwall County, Texas, and being all of a called 10.00-acres tract of land as described 
in a Warranty deed from Joseph E. Cook and Kerri A. Cook to William Edward Powers and Nancy 
Freeman Powers, dated July 17, 2015 and being recorded in Document No. 20150000011248 of 
the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly described as 
follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for corner in Cornelius Road, said point being at the southwest corner of 
said Powers tract and at the southeast corner of a 9.97-acres tract of land as described in a 
Warranty deed from John C. Fredriksen and Arlene C. Fredriksen to Marc J. Laughrey and Tracey 
D. Laughrey, as recorded in Document No. 20150000008096 of the Official Public Records of 
Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE N. 00 deg. 05 min. 24 sec. W., at 20.00-feet pass a ½” iron rod found for witness and 
continuing for a total distance of 1329.65-feet to a ½” iron rod found for corner at the northeast 
corner of said 9.97-acres tract of land; 
 
THENCE N. 89 deg. 26 min. 06 sec. E. a distance of 327.76-feet to a 3/8” iron rod found for corner 
at the northeast corner of said Powers tract and the northwest corner of a 9.58-acres tract of land 
as described in a Warranty deed from William E. Powers and Nancy F. Powers to James H. Lee 
and Barbara P. Lee, as recorded in Document No. 20170000013220 of the Official Public Records 
of Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE S. 00 deg. 06 min. 19 sec. E. along the west boundary line of said 9.58-acres tract, at 
1311.20-feet pass a 3/8” iron rod found for witness and continuing for a total distance of 1331.68-
feet to a point in the center of Cornelius Road; 
 
THENCE S. 89 deg. 47 min. 28 sec. W. along the center of said road, a distance of 328.10-feet 
to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 10.02-acres of land, of which 0.22-acres lies within 
Cornelius Road. 
 
  

Page 34 of 252



Exhibit ‘B’ 
Survey 

Z2024-014: Zoning Change from AG to SF-1 Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-17; 

  

Page 35 of 252



Z2024-015: Zoning Change (AG & SFE-1.5) Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-18; 

 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL 
(AG) DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-FAMILY ESTATE 1.5 (SFE-1.5) 
DISTRICT FOR A 15.561-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED 
AS A PORTION OF TRACTS 10-02, 10-03, 25-01 & 26 OF THE 
W. M. DALTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 72, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 
MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
FURTHER DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on 
behalf of Mike Peoples for the approval of a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to 
a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District for a 15.561-acre tract of land identified as a portion 
of Tracts 10-02, 10-03, 25-01 & 26 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 291, 333 & 555 Cornelius 
Road, and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which 
hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending 
the zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District;  
 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District as stipulated in Section 01.01, Use of 
Land and Buildings, of Article 04, Permissible Uses and Section 03.01, General Residential 
District Standards and Section 03.02, Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District, of Article 05, 
District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] 
of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting of this zoning 

Page 36 of 252



Z2024-015: Zoning Change (AG & SFE-1.5) Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-18; 

change, and as maybe amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein; 
 
SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
and 
 
SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;  
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF MAY, 2024. 

 
      

 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  April 15, 2024 
 
2nd Reading: May 6, 2024 
 

Page 37 of 252



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Legal Description 

Z2024-015: Zoning Change (AG & SFE-1.5) Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-18; 

BEING a tract of land situated in the William Dalton Survey, Abstract Number 72 Rockwall County, Texas 
and being portions of those tracts of land conveyed to Mike Peoples, according to the documents filed of 
record in Volume 1679, Page 190, Volume 1679, Page 196, Volume 173, Page 752 and Volume 184, Page 
522, Deed Records Rockwall County, Texas (D.R.R.C. T.) and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for the northeast corner of that tract of land conveyed to the City of Rockwall, Texas 
according to the document filed of record in Volume 58, Page 191, (D.R.R.C. T.) same being the northwest 
corner of the tract of land described herein; 
 
THENCE, North 89 degrees 31 minutes 25 seconds East, a distance of 485.01-feet to a point for a corner 
of this tract; 
 
THENCE, North 00 degrees 28 minutes 35 seconds West, a distance of 10.64-feet to a point for a corner 
of this tract; 
 
THENCE, North 89 degrees 17 minutes 06 seconds East, a distance of 1,058.46-feet to a point for the 
northwest corner of that tract of land conveyed to Donnie Peoples according to the document filed of record 
in Volume 188, Page 357 (D.R.R.C. T.) and being the common northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE, South 00 degrees 32 minutes 31 seconds East, with the west line of said Donnie Peoples tract, 
same being common with the east line of this tract, a distance of 458.47-feet to a point for the southeast 
corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE, South 89 degrees 27 minutes 29 seconds West, leaving said common line, a distance of 
1,265.98-feet to a point for a corner of this tract and being the beginning of a curve to the right, having a 
central angle of 49° 15' 27”, a radius of 150.00-feet, and a long chord bearing and distance of North 65 
degrees 54 minutes 48 seconds West, 125.02-feet; 
 
THENCE, with said curve to the right an arc distance of 128.96-feet to a point for a corner of this tract and 
the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left, having a central angle of 26° 09’ 34”, a radius of 450.00-
feet, and a long chord bearing and distance of North 54 degrees 21 minutes 52 seconds West, 203.68-feet; 
 
THENCE, with said curve to the left an arc distance of 205.46-feet to a point in the east line of Terraces 
Phase One, an addition to the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas according to the plat filed of record 
in Document Number 20240000000459 Plat Records Rockwall County, Texas for the most westerly 
southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE, North 01 degrees 28 minutes 22 seconds West, with said east line, a distance of 63.06-feet to a 
point for the northeast corner of said addition, same being the common southeast corner of the above-
mentioned City of Rockwall tract and a common corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 06 minutes 44 seconds West, with the east line of said City of Rockwall tract 
and common west line of this tract, a distance of 209.82-feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 
677,846 square feet or 15.561-acres of land. 
 
 
  

Page 38 of 252



Exhibit ‘B’ 
Survey 

Z2024-015: Zoning Change (AG & SFE-1.5) Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-18; 

  

Page 39 of 252



Exhibit ‘B’ 
Survey 

Z2024-015: Zoning Change (AG & SFE-1.5) Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-18; 

 

Page 40 of 252



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council   
 

DATE: May 6, 2024 
 

APPLICANT: Ronny Klingbeil; RLK Engineering, Inc.  
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-007; Replat for Lot 3, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Ronny Klingbeil of RLK Engineering, Inc. on behalf of Tim Lyssy of Rockwall Independent School 
District (RISD) for the approval of a Replat for Lot 3, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition being a 26.25-acre parcel 
of land identified as Lot 1, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, addressed as 625 
FM-552, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 Purpose. The applicant is requesting approval of a Replat for a 26.25-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 1, Block 1, Rockwall 

Middle School No.4 Addition) for the purpose of reestablishing one (1) non-residential lot (i.e. Lot 3, Block 1, Rockwall 
Middle School No. 4 Addition) to modify the existing utility and drainage easements to accommodate additions to an 
existing public school.  
 

 Background. The subject property was annexed into the City of Rockwall on March 16, 1998 by Ordinance No. 98-10 [i.e. 
Case No. A1998-001]. Per the City’s historic zoning maps, the subject property was zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) 
District as of April 05, 2005 and has remained zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District. In 2001, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission approved the original site plan case [i.e. Case No. PZ2001-111-04] to allow the construction of a 105,697 SF 
junior high school [i.e. J.W. Williams Middle School] on the subject property. The junior high school was constructed in 
2002 according to Rockwall Central Appraisal District (RCAD). On February 19, 2018, the City Council approved an 
exception [i.e. Case No. MIS2018-003] to the masonry requirements for the purpose of constructing an accessory 
building. On November 14, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a site plan [i.e. Case No. SP2023-039] 
to allow the expansion of the J.W. Williams Middle School.  

 
 Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested 

by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical 
modifications and submittal requirements. 

 
 Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 

conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If City Council chooses to approve of a Replat for Lot 3, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition, staff would propose 
the following conditions of approval: 
 

Page 41 of 252



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to the 
filing of this Replat; and,  

 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 30, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Replat by a vote of 
5-0, with Commissioners Llewellyn and Conway absent.  

 
 

Page 42 of 252



Page 43 of 252

frank
Text Box
X



Page 44 of 252



Page 45 of 252

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UVICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
GRAPHIC  SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Rockwall Middle School

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Point of

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Beginning

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
R=112.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
A=16%%D15'28"

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
L=31.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
T=16.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
FM No. 552

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
SH No. 205

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
SHENANDOAH

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Goliad

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
St.

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Site

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
All easements are recorded in Cabinet F,

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Page 67, P.R.R.C.T. unless noted otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
To modify Utility and Drainage Easements

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
to accommodate new building additions.

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
PURPOSE OF REPLAT:

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
John King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Inst. No. 20210000012265

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Saddle Star South Holdings, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Called 44.557 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Called 11.3500 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Called 4.3290 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
74.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
24' Fire Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
75'

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
85'

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
36.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
11.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
8.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
25' Bldg. Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
152.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
207.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
201.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
106.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
146.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
20' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
CIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
CIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
13.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
5.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
N89°13'25"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
431.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
305.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
151.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
67'

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
67'

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
20' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
S0°46'35"E                 538.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
20' Utility

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
452.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
261.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
171.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
24' Fire Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
24' Fire Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
24' Fire Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
24' Fire Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
12' Water Line Esmt.

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Mt. Zion Water Supply Co.

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Vol. 82 Pg. 364

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Sani. Sewer

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
100'x100' R.O.W. Esmt.

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Vol. 43 Pg. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
66.1+5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
97.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
331.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
43.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
97.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
246.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
221.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
S0°46'35"E       246.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
S0°46'35"E     221.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
151.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
S0°46'35"E             327.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
110.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
227.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
S0°46'35"E            298.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
11.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
N41°42'22"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
32.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
N12°33'58"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
32.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
S0°46'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
33.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
S60°46'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
113.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
194.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
N89°13'25"E    194.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
T=56.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
L=101.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
A=62%%D00'46"

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
R=94.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
T=54.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
L=99.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
A=60%%D25'44"

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
R=94.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
A=40%%D50'38"

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
A=144%%D54'16"

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
A=16%%D15'28"

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
A=13%%D20'33"

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
A=76%%D39'27"

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
A=30%%D00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
A=76%%D06'42"

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
T=39.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
L=66.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
R=50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
T=6.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
L=12.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
R=54.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
T=42.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
L=72.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
R=54.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Crv.

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
T=309.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
L=247.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
R=98.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
T=12.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
L=24.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
R=88.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
A=30%%D00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
A=40%%D59'39"

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
A=75%%D00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
A=53%%D04'38"

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
T=14.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
L=28.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
R=54.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
T=23.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
L=39.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
R=30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
T=61.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
L=114.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
R=124.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
T=17.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
L=33.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
R=54.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
A=60%%D25'41"

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
T=34.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
L=63.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
R=60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
A=62%%D00'57"

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
T=40.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
L=73.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
R=68.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
T=3.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
L=6.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
A=13%%D20'33"

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
R=30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
T=

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
L=221.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
R=70.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
Curve  Data  Chart

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
Outer

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Inner

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
Inner

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Outer

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
T=34.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
L=51.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
A=98%%D36'22"

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
R=30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
T=51.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
L=94.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
A=54%%D18'59"

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
R=100.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
A=181%%D13'59"

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
T=9.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
L=18.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
R=30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
A=40%%D50'38"

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
T=234.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
L=187.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
A=144%%D54'16"

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
R=74.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
T=8.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
L=15.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
R=50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
T=46.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
L=88.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
R=124.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
T=41.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
L=78.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
R=50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
A=45%%D00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
T=63.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
L=223.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
R=50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
A=256%%D06'44"

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
T=23.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
L=40.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
R=30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
A=76%%D39'27"

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
Rockwall I.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
Inst. No. 20180000022380

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
City Of Rockwall

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
Inst. No. 20140000018337

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
424'

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
424'

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
E=2595172.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
N=7039021.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
%%UState Plane Coord.

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
CIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Variable Width Right-of-Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
No. 4 Addition

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Lot 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Cab. F, Pg. 67

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
S89°26'25"W            877.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
F. M. No. 552

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
RISD Elementary School Addition

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Lot 1, Block A

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
E=2595159.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
N=7040291.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
%%UState Plane Coord.

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Ref. Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
3/4" Iron Found

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
S0°34'23"E                    1270.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
N0°34'23"W               1270.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
N89°26'25"E            877.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
%%U25.569 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
%%U1,113,790 Sq. Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Lot 3, Block 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
Cab. H, Pg. 341

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
"TXDOT"

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
1 3/4" CIRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Ref. Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
     CIRS = CAPPED 1/2" IRON ROD SET STAMPED (4613)       CIRF = CAPPED 1/2" IRON ROD FOUND        IRF = IRON ROD FOUND  Cab. = CABINET   Pg. = PAGE   Inst. No. = INSTRUMENT NUMBER  D.R.R.C.T. = DEED RECORDS OF ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS   P.R.R.C.T. = PLAT RECORDS OF ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
"TXDOT"

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
1 3/4" CIRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Ref. Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Inst. No. 20220000010848

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
The State of Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
Called 1.890 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Old Right-of-Way Alignment

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
New Right-of-Way Alignment

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
131.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
182.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
New Right-of-Way Alignment

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
Old Right-of-Way Alignment

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
BASIS OF BEARINGS:  The bearings shown are derived from Texas  bearings shown are derived from Texas bearings shown are derived from Texas  shown are derived from Texas shown are derived from Texas  are derived from Texas are derived from Texas  derived from Texas derived from Texas  from Texas from Texas  Texas Texas WDS RTK Network, Texas State Plane  RTK Network, Texas State Plane RTK Network, Texas State Plane  Network, Texas State Plane Network, Texas State Plane  Texas State Plane Texas State Plane  State Plane State Plane  Plane Plane Coordinate System, Nad83, North Central  System, Nad83, North Central System, Nad83, North Central  Nad83, North Central Nad83, North Central  North Central North Central  Central Central Zone, Nad 83 (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0,  Nad 83 (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0, Nad 83 (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0,  83 (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0, 83 (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0,  (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0, (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0,  Epoch 2002.0, Epoch 2002.0,  2002.0, 2002.0, vertical positions are referenced using  positions are referenced using positions are referenced using  are referenced using are referenced using  referenced using referenced using  using using NAVD88 using (GEIODO3).

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
23.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
N89°16'22"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
23.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
30.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
23.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
N0°43'38"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
36.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
151.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
N44°13'25"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
68.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
20.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
48.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
64.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
S45°46'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
7.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
45.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
S0°46'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
73.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
S45°46'35"E   198.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
N89°13'25"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
134.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
78.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
N44°13'25"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
54.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
20' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
198.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
30.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
N0°43'38"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
23.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
53.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
N45°46'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
72'

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Abandoned Ex. 15' Utility Easement Vol. F, Pg.67 By This Plat

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
Abandoned Ex. 15' Utility Easement Vol. F, Pg.67 By This Plat

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
Abandoned Ex. 15' Utility Easement Vol. F, Pg.67 By This Plat

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
%%UOwner

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
%%uSurveyor

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
PO Box 126

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
Surdukan Surveying, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Anna, Texas  75409

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
Telephone 972 924-8200

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
%%uEngineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
111 West Main Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
RLK Engineering, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Allen, Texas  75013

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
Telephone 972 359-1733

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
April 29, 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Texas Registration No. 579

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
Rockwall, Texas  75087

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Telephone 972 771-0605

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
Rockwall Independent School District

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
Firm No. 10069500

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
1050 Williams Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
Case No. P2024-007

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
No. 4 ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
Lot 3, Block 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
W.T. DeWEESE SURVEY ~ ABST. 71

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
F I N A L   P L A T

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Situated In The

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
1 Lot And 25.569 Acres Or 1,113,790 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Being A Replat Of

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
ROCKWALL MIDDLE SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
S H E E T   1   O F    2

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
CITY OF ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
Job No. 2023-31

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
Lot 1, Block 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
Being

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
The property owner is responsible for

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
repair, replacement, and maintenance

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
of all drainage easements.

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
Centerline

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
100 Yr. WS

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Erosion Hazard

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
Setback Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
100 Year Floodplain

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Per Fema's estBFE

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Viewer

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
130.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
N27°32'47"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
38.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
N01°18'10"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
N83°20'23"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
61.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
N01°05'32"E       308.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
107.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
N39°16'07"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
799.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
507.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
100 Yr. WS

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
509.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
100 Yr. WS

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
505.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
100 Yr. WS

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
492.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
100 Yr. WS

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
492.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
100 Yr. WS

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
513.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
38.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
N01°18'10"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Erosion Hazard

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
Setback Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
100 Year Floodplain

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Per Fema's estBFE

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
Viewer

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
100 Year Floodplain

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Per Fema's estBFE

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
Viewer

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
%%UDetail "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
%%UErosion Hazard

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
%%USetback Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
55.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
26.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
BENCHMARK NO. 1: "X" Cut on top of the south curb line for the west  Cut on top of the south curb line for the west Cut on top of the south curb line for the west  on top of the south curb line for the west on top of the south curb line for the west  top of the south curb line for the west top of the south curb line for the west  of the south curb line for the west of the south curb line for the west  the south curb line for the west the south curb line for the west  south curb line for the west south curb line for the west  curb line for the west curb line for the west  line for the west line for the west  for the west for the west  the west the west  west west drive way entrance along F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut  way entrance along F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut way entrance along F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut  entrance along F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut entrance along F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut  along F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut along F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut  F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut F.M. No. 553. the "X" Cut  No. 553. the "X" Cut No. 553. the "X" Cut  553. the "X" Cut 553. the "X" Cut  the "X" Cut the "X" Cut  "X" Cut "X" Cut  Cut Cut bears S57°54'14"E a distance of 147.17' from the 3/4"  S57°54'14"E a distance of 147.17' from the 3/4" S57°54'14"E a distance of 147.17' from the 3/4"  a distance of 147.17' from the 3/4" a distance of 147.17' from the 3/4"  distance of 147.17' from the 3/4" distance of 147.17' from the 3/4"  of 147.17' from the 3/4" of 147.17' from the 3/4"  147.17' from the 3/4" 147.17' from the 3/4"  from the 3/4" from the 3/4"  the 3/4" the 3/4"  3/4" 3/4" iron rod found for the northwest corner of Lot 1. ELEVATION = 523.73' 

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
BENCHMARK NO. 2: "X" Cut on the southwest corner of the sidewalk leading  Cut on the southwest corner of the sidewalk leading Cut on the southwest corner of the sidewalk leading  on the southwest corner of the sidewalk leading on the southwest corner of the sidewalk leading  the southwest corner of the sidewalk leading the southwest corner of the sidewalk leading  southwest corner of the sidewalk leading southwest corner of the sidewalk leading  corner of the sidewalk leading corner of the sidewalk leading  of the sidewalk leading of the sidewalk leading  the sidewalk leading the sidewalk leading  sidewalk leading sidewalk leading  leading leading from the school up to the practice field at the end of  the school up to the practice field at the end of the school up to the practice field at the end of  school up to the practice field at the end of school up to the practice field at the end of  up to the practice field at the end of up to the practice field at the end of  to the practice field at the end of to the practice field at the end of  the practice field at the end of the practice field at the end of  practice field at the end of practice field at the end of  field at the end of field at the end of  at the end of at the end of  the end of the end of  end of end of  of of the stairs.  "X" Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of  stairs.  "X" Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of stairs.  "X" Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of   "X" Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of  "X" Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of "X" Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of  Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of Cut bears N52°18'10"E a distance of  bears N52°18'10"E a distance of bears N52°18'10"E a distance of  N52°18'10"E a distance of N52°18'10"E a distance of  a distance of a distance of  distance of distance of  of of 682.65' from the 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap  from the 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap from the 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap  the 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap the 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap  1/2" iron rod with plastic cap 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap  iron rod with plastic cap iron rod with plastic cap  rod with plastic cap rod with plastic cap  with plastic cap with plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped "4613" set for the southwest corner of Lot 1. ELEVATION = 529.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
552.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Erosion Hazard

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
Setback Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
See Detail "A"



Page 46 of 252

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
STATE OF TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
NOW, THEREFORE KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
That I, David J. Surdukan, do hereby certify that I prepared this

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
plat from an actual and accurate survey of the land, and that

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
my personal supervision.

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
Registration No. 4613

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
David J. Surdukan

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
TX Firm No. 10069500

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
BASIS OF BEARINGS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
The bearings shown are derived from Texas WDS RTK Network,

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
Texas State Plane Coordinate System, Nad83, North Central

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
Zone, Nad 83 (CORS96) Epoch 2002.0, vertical positions are

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
referenced using NAVD88 using (GEIODO3).

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
We the undersigned owner of the land shown on this plat, and

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
designated herein as Lot 3, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
4 subdivision to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
is subscribed hereto, hereby dedicate to the public forever all

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
streets, alleys, parks, water courses, drains, easements, and

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
public places thereon shown for the purpose and consideration

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
therein expressed.  We understand and do hereby reserve the

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
easements strips shown on this plat for the purposes stated

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities des-

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
iring to use or using same. We also understand the following:

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
across the off-site and on-site utility easements as described

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
removed all or part of any buildings, fences, trees, shrubs or

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
other growths or improvements which in any way endanger or

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
interfere with construction, maintenance, or efficiency of their

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
respective system on any of these easement strips; and any

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or egress

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
to, from, and upon the said easement strips for the purpose of

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
construction, reconstruction, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining,

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
and adding to or removing all or part of their respective system

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
of anyone.

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
any nature resulting from or occasioned by the establishment of

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
grade of streets in the subdivision.

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
The developer/property owner and subdivision engineer shall

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
bear total responsibility for storm drain improvements.

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
The developer/property owner shall be responsible for the

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
necessary facilities to provide drainage patterns and drainage

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
controls such that properties within the drainage area are not

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
adversely affected by storm drainage from the development.

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
No house, dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
on any lot in this addition by the owner or any other person

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
until the developer and/or owner has complied with all require-

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
ments of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
regarding improvements with respect to the entire block on the

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
street or streets on which property abuts, including the actual

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
and gutter, water and sewer, drainage structures, storm structures,

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
storm sewers, and alleys, all according to the specifications of

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
the City of Rockwall; or

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
improvements, as determined by the city's engineer and/or city

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, has

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
signed by the developer and/or owner, authorizing the city to

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
make such improvements at the prevailing private commercial

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
rates, or have been made by a contractor and pay for the same

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
out of the escrow deposit, should the developer and/or owner

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
stated in such written agreement, but in no case shall the City

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
be obligated to make such improvements itself.  Such deposit

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
may be used by the owner and/or developer as progress payments

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
as the work progresses in making such improvements by making

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
certified requisitions to the city secretary, supported by evidence

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
of work done, or

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
with the city secretary in a sum equal to the cost of such

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing the install-

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
ation thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
shall be fixed by the city council of the City of Rockwall.

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
Rockwall Independent School District

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
STATE OF TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
me that he executed the same for the purposes and considerations

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated.

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
for the State of Texas, on this day personally appeared

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
                , known to me to be the person whose name

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
GIVEN under my hand and seal of office, this the          

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
day of                        , 2024.

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
                                  the State of Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
                                  Notary Public in and for

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
We further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exactions

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
made herein are proportional to the impact of the Subdivision

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
upon the public services required in order that the development

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
will comport with the present  and future growth needs of the

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
City;  We, our successors and assigns hereby waive any claim,

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
damage, or cause of action that we may have as a result of

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
the dedication of exactions made herein.

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Title:

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
(1)  Subdivider's Statement:

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Selling a portion of this addition by metes and bounds is un-

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
lawful and a violation of the Subdivision Ordinance of the City

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
of Rockwall and Chapter 212 Municipal Regulation of Subdivisions

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
and Property Development, of the Texas Local Government Code,

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
and shall be subject to the City of Rockwall withholding utilities

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
(2)  Public Improvement Statement:

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
building permits until all streets, water, sewer, and storm drainage

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
systems have been accepted by the City.  The approval of a

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
6. Property owner is responsible for maintaining, repairing, and

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
replacing detention/drainage system.

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
and building permits.

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
%%UOwner

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
%%uSurveyor

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
PO Box 126

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
Surdukan Surveying, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
Anna, Texas  75409

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
Telephone 972 924-8200

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
%%uEngineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
111 West Main Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
RLK Engineering, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
Allen, Texas  75013

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
Telephone 972 359-1733

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
April 29, 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
Texas Registration No. 579

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
Rockwall, Texas  75087

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
Telephone 972 771-0605

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
Rockwall Independent School District

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
Firm No. 10069500

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
1050 Williams Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
Case No. P2024-007

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
No. 4 ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Lot 3, Block 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
W.T. DeWEESE SURVEY ~ ABST. 71

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
F I N A L   P L A T

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
Situated In The

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
1 Lot And 25.569 Acres Or 1,113,790 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Being A Replat Of

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
ROCKWALL MIDDLE SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
S H E E T   2   O F    2

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
CITY OF ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
OWNER'S  CERTIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
STATE OF TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
Job No. 2023-31

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
Lot 1, Block 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Being

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
Registered Public Surveyor

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
I hereby certify that the above and forgoing subdivision plat,

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas, on the     day of

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, was approved by the

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
                , 2024.

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Lot 3, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition, being an

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
Mayor of the City of Rockwall

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
Planning And Zoning

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
Commission Chairman

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
City Secretary

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
City Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
herein.

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
subdivision plat by the City of Rockwall does not constitute any

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
representation, assurance or guarantee that any building within

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
such subdivision plat shall be approved, authorized, or permit

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
issued, nor shall such approval constitute any representation,

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
assurance or guarantee by the City of Rockwall of the adequacy

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
and availability for water and sanitary sewer for personal use and

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
fire protection within such subdivision plat, as required under the

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Rockwall.

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
(3)  Drainage and Detention Easements:

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
The property owner shall be responsible for maintaining, repairing,

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
and replacing and shall bear sole liability of all systems within

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
the drainage and detention easements.

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
(4)  Fire Lanes:

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
All fire lanes will be constructed, maintained, repaired and replaced

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
by the property owner.  Fire lanes shall be constructed in acc-

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
ordance with the approved Civil Engineering Plans for both on-

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
site and off-site Fire Lane improvements.

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
WHEREAS, the Rockwall Independent School District, being the

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
owner of a tract of land in the County of Rockwall, State of

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
Texas, said tract being described as follows:

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
and being all of Lot 1 of Rockwall Middle School No. 4, an

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
addition to the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, as

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
BEGINNING at a 3/4" iron rod found for corner in the south

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
line of F.M. No. 552 (a variable width R.O.W.), said point being

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
the northwest corner of the aforementioned Lot 1, Rockwall Middle

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
THENCE N89%%D26'25"E, with the south line of F.M. No. 552, a

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
distance of 877.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
stamped "4613" set corner;

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
THENCE S00%%D34'23"E, leaving F.M. No. 552, a distance of 1270.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
feet to a 2/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "4613" set for

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
THENCE S89%%D26'25"W, a distance of 877.00 feet to a 1/2" iron

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
rod with plastic cap stamped "4613" set for corner;

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
THENCE N00%%D34'23"W, a distance of 1270.00 feet to the POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
OF BEGINNING and CONTAINING 1,113,790 square feet, or 25.569

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
acres of land.

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
recorded in Cabinet F, Page 67, Plat Records of Rockwall County,

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
School No. 4;

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
corner;

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
Being situated in the W. T. DeWeese Survey, Abstract No. 71,

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
X

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
4613

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
DAVID J. SURDUKAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
T



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: May 6, 2024  
 

APPLICANT: Josh Millsap; KFM Engineering & Design 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-013; Replat for Lot 3, Block A, TAC Rockwall Addition  
 

 

SUMMARY 
 

Consider a request by Josh Milsap of KFM Engineering & Design on behalf of Tony Austin of Rockwall Downtown Lofts, LTD 
for the approval of a Replat for Lot 3, Block A, TAC Rockwall Addition being a 3.35-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block 
A, TAC Rockwall Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Downtown (DT) District, situated within the SH-66 
Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, located at the southwest corner of the intersection of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and SH-66, and 
take any action necessary. 

 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a replat for a 3.35-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 2, Block A, TAC Rockwall Addition) 

in order to replat it into a single lot (i.e. Lot 3, Block A, TAC Rockwall Addition) for the purpose of dedicating additional right-
of-way (ROW) in order to facilitate the construction of a 263-unit Urban Residential Building (i.e. Multi-Family Apartment).  
 

 The majority of the subject property (i.e. Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, & 8, Block P and Lots 1 & 2, Block AB, Rockwall OT Addition) 
is a part of the Plan of Rockwall -- also known as the Rockwall OT Addition or Rockwall Original Town Addition --, which 
was recorded on September 27, 1861.  The remainder the of the subject property (i.e. Lots 4 & 5, Block A and Lots 4 & 5, 
Block B, Lowe & Allen Addition) was incorporated with the Lowe & Allen Subdivision prior to 1911 based on the May 16, 
1911 Sanborn Maps.  As of the January 3, 1972, the Historic Zoning Maps show the subject property being zoned General 
Retail (GR) District.  This designation remained until the subject property was rezoned to Downtown (DT) District on 
September 4, 2007 by Ordinance No. 07-34 (which is also known as the Downtown Regulating Plan).  On June 18, 2021, 
the applicant submitted a site plan (i.e. Case No. SP2021-020) for the subject property proposing a four (4) story, 263-unit 
apartment complex (i.e. Rockwall Downtown Lofts) and a conveyance plat (i.e. Case No. P2021-035) combining (13) lots 
(i.e. Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, & 8, Block P, Lots 1 & 2, Block AB, Rockwall OT Addition, and Lots 4 & 5, Block A and Lots 4 & 
5, Block B, Lowe & Allen Addition) and conveying the subject property. The conveyance plat was approved by the City 
Council on July 6, 2021, and the site plan was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on July 27, 2021. On 
July 5, 2022, the City Council approved a replat (Case No. P2022-033) that establish easements on the subject property. 
 

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 
requirements for plats as stipulated by the Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is 
recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for Lot 3, Block A, TAC Rockwall Addition, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 

Page 47 of 252



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this 

plat; and, 
 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 30, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat by a vote of 
5-0, with Commissioners Conway and Llewellyn absent. 

Page 48 of 252



Page 49 of 252



Page 50 of 252



Page 51 of 252



Page 52 of 252



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: May 6, 2024 
 

APPLICANT: Nick Hobbs; BGE, Inc.  
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-014; Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, HEB Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Nick Hobbs of BGE, Inc. on behalf of Ben Scott of HEB, LP for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block 
A, HEB Addition being a 12.519-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 2 & 3 of the J. M. Allen Survey, Abstract No. 2, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-
OV) District and the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, located at the southwest corner of the eastbound IH-30 Frontage Road 
and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 Purpose. The applicant is requesting the approval of a Final Plat for a 12.519-acre tract of land (i.e. Tracts 2 & 3 of the J. 

M. Allen Survey, Abstract No. 2) to establish one (1) non-residential lot (i.e. Lot 1, Block A, HEB Addition) for the purpose 
of establishing utility and drainage easements for the future construction of a grocery store (i.e. HEB) on the subject 
property. 
 

 Background. The subject property was annexed into the City of Rockwall on September 16, 1974 by Ordinance No’s. 74-
25 & 74-27 [i.e. Case No’s. A1974-005 & A1974-007]. At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned Agricultural 
(AG) District. According to the June 3, 1977 Historic Zoning Map, at some point between the time of annexation and June 
3, 1977, the subject property was rezoned from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Commercial (C) District. On January 9, 
2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a site plan [i.e. Case No. SP2023-047] to allow the construction of a 
grocery store (i.e. HEB) on the subject property.  

 
 Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested 

by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical 
modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Final Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 
conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If City Council chooses to approve of the Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, HEB Addition staff would propose the following conditions 
of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this 

Final Plat; and, 
 

Page 53 of 252



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Final Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  
 
On April 30, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Final Plat by a vote 
of 5-0, with Commissioners Llewellyn and Conway absent.  

Page 54 of 252



Page 55 of 252



Page 56 of 252



P.O.B.

James M. Allen Survey

Abstract No. 2

LOT 1, BLOCK A
12.519 ACRES

(545,328 SQ. FT.)

SO
UTH JO

HN KING

BO
ULEVARD

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 30

S JOHN KING BLVD

AIRPORT RD

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
B

LV
D

G
:\T

XN
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

H
EB

_G
ro

ce
ry

_C
o\

95
59

-0
0-

SW
_C

nr
_J

_K
in

g_
Bl

vd
_I

H
_3

0_
R

oc
kw

al
l\S

V\
04

_C
AD

\9
55

9-
00

_F
PL

T.
dw

g 
  2

02
4-

04
-2

9-
14

:5
5 

 jl
on

do
n

2595 Dallas Parkway, Suite 101, Frisco, TX 75034
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. 10193953
Tel: 972-464-4800   •   www.bgeinc.com

Copyright 2024

DEVELOPER SURVEYOR

12060300

SCALE: 1" = 60'

VICINITY MAP
(NOT TO SCALE)

Contact: Mark Peace, R.P.L.S.
Telephone: 972-464-4884  •  Email: mpeace@bgeinc.com

HEB Grocery Company, LP
646 S. Main Street
San Antonio, Texas 78204

Case No. P2022-xxx

MATCH LINE - SEE SHEET 2

FINAL PLAT
LOT 1, BLOCK A

HEB ADDITION
BEING ONE (1) LOT

12.519 ACRES OR 545,328 SF
SITUATED IN THE

JAMES M. ALLEN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 2
AND THE

JOHN LOCKHART SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 134
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

APRIL 2024
SHEET 1 OF 3

PROPERTY CORNER

LEGEND

P.O.B. POINT OF BEGINNING

INST. NO. INSTRUMENT NUMBER

VOL. VOLUME

PG. PAGE

CAB. CABINET

O.P.R.R.C.T. OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P.R.R.C.T. PLAT RECORDS OF
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

D.R.R.C.T. DEED RECORDS OF
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

BOUNDARY LINE

EXISTING EASEMENT LINE

PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE

GENERAL NOTES
1. Bearing system for this survey is based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System - NAD 83,

North Central Zone 4202, based on observations made on July 14, 2021 with an applied combined
scale factor of 1.000146135.

2. Coordinates shown are Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North Central Zone, North American
Datum of 1983 on grid coordinate values, no scale and no projection. Project tied to City of Rockwall
Geodetic Control Monument No. 9.

3. The floodplain boundaries shown hereon are approximate and are not depicted as a result of an
on-the-ground survey. The subject tract lies with Zone X as delineated on Flood Insurance Rate Map
for Rockwall County, Texas and Incorporated Areas, Map Number 48397C0045L with Map Revised
September 28, 2008.

Zone X - Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain

4. The square footage value shown hereon is a mathematical value calculated from the boundary data
shown hereon.  This value in no way represents the precision of closure of this survey or the
accuracy of corner monuments found or placed.

5. Public Improvement Statement. It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing
buildings permits until all streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted by
the City. The approval of a subdivision plat by the City of Rockwall does not constitute any
representation, assurance or guarantee that any building within such subdivision plat shall be
approved, authorized, or permit issued, nor shall such approval constitute any representation,
assurance or guarantee by the City of Rockwall of the adequacy and availability for water and
sanitary sewer for personal use and fire protection within such subdivision plat, as required under
the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Rockwall.

ABSTRACT LINE

ADJOINER PROPERTY LINE

Case No. P2024-014Page 57 of 252



John Lockhart Survey

Abstract No. 134

LOT 1, BLOCK A
12.519 ACRES

(545,328 SQ. FT.)

SO
U

TH
 J

O
H

N
 K

IN
G

B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 30

G
:\T

XN
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

H
EB

_G
ro

ce
ry

_C
o\

95
59

-0
0-

SW
_C

nr
_J

_K
in

g_
Bl

vd
_I

H
_3

0_
R

oc
kw

al
l\S

V\
04

_C
AD

\9
55

9-
00

_F
PL

T.
dw

g 
  2

02
4-

04
-2

9-
14

:5
5 

 jl
on

do
n

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 30

S JOHN KING BLVD

AIRPORT RD

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
B

LV
D

VICINITY MAP
(NOT TO SCALE)

Case No. P2022-xxx

MATCH LINE - SEE SHEET 1

12060300

SCALE: 1" = 60'

2595 Dallas Parkway, Suite 101, Frisco, TX 75034
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. 10193953
Tel: 972-464-4800   •   www.bgeinc.com

Copyright 2024

DEVELOPER SURVEYOR

Contact: Mark Peace, R.P.L.S.
Telephone: 972-464-4884  •  Email: mpeace@bgeinc.com

HEB Grocery Company, LP
646 S. Main Street
San Antonio, Texas 78204

PROPERTY CORNER

LEGEND

P.O.B. POINT OF BEGINNING

INST. NO. INSTRUMENT NUMBER

VOL. VOLUME

PG. PAGE

CAB. CABINET

O.P.R.R.C.T. OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P.R.R.C.T. PLAT RECORDS OF
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

D.R.R.C.T. DEED RECORDS OF
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

BOUNDARY LINE

EXISTING EASEMENT LINE

PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE

ABSTRACT LINE

ADJOINER PROPERTY LINE

GENERAL NOTES (continued)
6. Subdivider’s Statement. Selling a portion of this addition by metes and bounds is unlawful and a

violation of the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Rockwall and Chapter 212, Municipal Regulation
of Subdivisions and Property Development, of the Texas Local Government Code, and shall be
subject to the City of Rockwall withholding utilities and building permits.

7. Drainage and Detention Easements. The property owner shall be responsible for maintaining,
repairing, and replacing and shall bear sole liability of all systems within the drainage and detention
easements.

8. Fire Lanes. All Fire Lanes will be constructed, maintained, repaired and replaced by the property
owner. Fire Lanes shall be constructed in accordance with the approved Civil Engineering Plans for
both on-site and off-site Fire Lane improvements.

FINAL PLAT
LOT 1, BLOCK A

HEB ADDITION
BEING ONE (1) LOT

12.519 ACRES OR 545,328 SF
SITUATED IN THE

JAMES M. ALLEN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 2
AND THE

JOHN LOCKHART SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 134
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

APRIL 2024
SHEET 2 OF 3

Case No. P2024-014Page 58 of 252



G
:\T

XN
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

H
EB

_G
ro

ce
ry

_C
o\

95
59

-0
0-

SW
_C

nr
_J

_K
in

g_
Bl

vd
_I

H
_3

0_
R

oc
kw

al
l\S

V\
04

_C
AD

\9
55

9-
00

_F
PL

T.
dw

g 
  2

02
4-

04
-2

9-
14

:5
5 

 jl
on

do
n

APPROVED: I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of LOT 1, BLOCK A, HEB ADDITION – being an addition to the
City of Rockwall, Texas – was approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas on the _____ day of
____________________, 2024.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the office of the county clerk, within 180
days from said date of final approval by the city engineer. Said addition shall be subject to all the requirements of these
subdivision regulations.

_________________________ ___________________________________ _________________________
Mayor of the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman City Secretary

_________________________
City Engineer

Case No. P2022-xxx

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, I GREGORY MARK PEACE, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey
of the land, and that the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under my personal supervision.

___________________________________
Gregory Mark Peace, RPLS No. 6608

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF COLLIN §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Gregory Mark Peace, known to me to be
the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the
same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2024.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________
My Commission Expires:

Preliminary, this document shall not be recorded for any
purpose and shall not be used or viewed or relied upon
as a final survey document. Preliminary, this document shall

not be recorded for any purpose
and shall not be used or viewed or

relied upon as a final survey
document.

2595 Dallas Parkway, Suite 101, Frisco, TX 75034
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. 10193953
Tel: 972-464-4800   •   www.bgeinc.com

Copyright 2024

DEVELOPER SURVEYOR

Contact: Mark Peace, R.P.L.S.
Telephone: 972-464-4884  •  Email: mpeace@bgeinc.com

HEB Grocery Company, LP
646 S. Main Street
San Antonio, Texas 78204

FINAL PLAT
LOT 1, BLOCK A

HEB ADDITION
BEING ONE (1) LOT

12.519 ACRES OR 545,328 SF
SITUATED IN THE

JAMES M. ALLEN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 2
AND THE

JOHN LOCKHART SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 134
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

APRIL 2024
SHEET 3 OF 3

OWNER'S DEDICATION
STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

WHEREAS, H-E-B, LP, BEING THE OWNER OF A TRACT OF land in the County of Rockwall, State of Texas, said tract being described as follows:

BEING, a 12.519-acre (545,328-square-foot) tract of land situated in the John Lockhart Survey, Abstract No. 134 and the James M. Allen Survey, Abstract No. 2,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas; said tract being the same property described in Special Warranty Deed to H-E-B, LP as recorded in Instrument No.
20220000006173 recorded in of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas; said 12.519-acre tract being more particularly described by metes and
bounds as follows:

BEGINNING, at an "X" cut in concrete found in the west right-of-way line of South John King Boulevard (a 120-foot-wide public right-of-way) according to the plat
recorded in Cabinet G, Page 265 of said Official Public Records; said point being the southeast corner of said H-E-B tract and the northeast corner of Lot 1, Block
A, Mansions Senior Addition, an addition to the City of Rockwall according to the plat recorded in Cabinet G, Page 389 of said Official Public Records;

THENCE, departing the said west right-of-way line of South John King Boulevard and with the south line of said H-E-B tract and the north line of said Mansions
Senior Addition, the following four (4) calls:

South 72 degrees 07 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 207.29 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found for corner at the beginning of a tangent curve to the
right;

In a northeasterly direction, with said curve to the right, having a central angle of 89 degrees 59 minutes 56 seconds, a radius of 50.00 feet, a chord bearing
and distance of North 62 degrees 52 minutes 02 seconds West, 70.71 feet, and an arc length of 78.54 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found for corner at the end
of said curve and the beginning of a reverse curve to the left;

In a northwesterly direction, with said reverse curve to the left, having a central angle of 89 degrees 59 minutes 56 seconds, a radius of 50.00 feet, a chord
bearing and distance of North 62 degrees 52 minutes 02 seconds West, 70.71 feet and an arc length of 78.54 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with "RPLS 5199"
cap found for corner at the end of said curve;

South 72 degrees 07 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 316.99 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with "SPIARS INC." cap found for corner; said point being the
southwest corner of said H-E-B tract and the southeast corner of Lot 1, Block 1, Honda of Rockwall Addition, an addition to the City of Rockwall according to
the plat recorded in Cabinet H, Page 277 of said Official Public Records;

THENCE, North 00 degrees 23 minutes 26 seconds West, departing the north line of said Mansions Senior Addition and with the west line of said H-E-B tract and
the east line of said Honda of Rockwall Addition, a distance of 939.34 feet to a point for corner in the south right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 30 (a variable
width right-of-way); said point being the northwest corner of said H-E-B tract and the northeast corner of said Honda of Rockwall Addition; from said point an "X"
cut in concrete found bears North 15 degrees 48 minutes East, a distance of 0.5 feet;

THENCE, with the said south right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 30 and the north line of said H-E-B tract, the following three (3) calls:

North 72 degrees 49 minutes 08 seconds East, a distance of 74.62 feet to a 3-inch aluminum disk stamped "TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION" found for corner;

North 79 degrees 00 minutes 01 seconds East, a distance of 92.01 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with "TXDOT" cap found for corner;

North 72 degrees 45 minutes 40 seconds East, a distance of 353.18 feet to a 3-inch aluminum disk stamped "TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION" found for corner; said point being a northeast corner of said H-E-B tract and the northwest end of a corner clip at the intersection of the
said south right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 30 and the said west right-of-way line of South John King Boulevard;

THENCE, South 52 degrees 52 minutes 33 seconds East, with said corner clip, a distance of 62.57 feet to a point for corner at the southeast end of said corner
clip; said point being a northeast corner of said H-E-B tract; from said point a 5/8-inch iron rod with "TXDOT" cap found bears North 76 degrees 38 minutes West,
a distance of 0.8 feet;

THENCE, with the said west right-of-way line of South John King Boulevard and the east line of said H-E-B tract, the following four (4) calls:

South 00 degrees 20 minutes 26 seconds East, a distance of 90.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with "BGE" cap found for corner;

South 03 degrees 29 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 100.15 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with "BGE" cap found for corner;

South 00 degrees 20 minutes 26 seconds East, a distance of 229.35 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with "BGE" cap found for corner at the beginning of a tangent
curve to the left;

In a southeasterly direction, with said tangent curve to the left, having a central angle of 15 degrees 18 minutes 21 seconds, a radius of 2,010.00 feet, a
chord bearing and distance of South 07 degrees 59 minutes 37 seconds East, 535.35 feet, and an arc length of 536.95 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING
and containing an area of 12.519 acres or 545,328 square feet of land, more or less.

OWNER'S DEDICATION (continued)
NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

I (we) the undersigned owner(s) of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as the LOT 1, BLOCK A, HEB ADDITION  subdivision to the City of
Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets, alleys, parks, water courses, drains,
easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein expressed. I (we) further certify that all other parties who have a mortgage
or lien interest in the LOT 1, BLOCK A, HEB ADDITION subdivision have been notified and signed this plat. I (we) understand and do hereby reserve the
easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes stated and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same. I (we) also
understand the following;

1. No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the off-site and on-site utility easements as described herein.

2. Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or improvements which
in any way endanger or interfere with construction, maintenance or efficiency of their respective system on any of these easement strips; and any public
utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or egress to, from and upon the said easement strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction, inspecting,
patrolling, maintaining, and either adding to or removing all or part of their respective system without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission
of anyone.

3. The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting from or occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in the
subdivision.

4. The developer/property owner and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain improvements.

5. The developer/property owner shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage patterns and drainage controls such that properties within
the drainage area are not adversely affected by storm drainage from the development.

6. No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this addition by the owner or any other person until the developer and/or owner
has complied with all requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall regarding improvements with respect to the entire block on the
street or streets on which property abuts, including the actual installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water and sewer,
drainage structures, storm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to the specifications of the City of Rockwall; or

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by the city's engineer and/or city administrator, computed on a private
commercial rate basis, has been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or owner, authorizing the city to make
such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates, or have the same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should the
developer and/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time stated in such written agreement, but in no case shall the City be
obligated to make such improvements itself. Such deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as progress payments as the work progresses in making
such improvements by making certified requisitions to the city secretary, supported by evidence of work done; or

Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the city secretary in a sum equal to the cost of such improvements for the designated area,
guaranteeing the installation thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be fixed by the city council of the City of Rockwall.

I (we) further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction's made herein are proportional to the impact of the Subdivision upon the public services required
in order that the development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the City; I (we), my (our) successors and assigns hereby waive any claim,
damage, or cause of action that I (we) may have as a result of the dedication of exactions made herein.

__________________________________________
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared ___________, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing
instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2024.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________
My Commission Expires:

Case No. P2024-014Page 59 of 252



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: May 6, 2024 
 

APPLICANT: Renee Ward; Weir & Associates, Inc. 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-015; Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A and Lots 12 & 13, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall 
Land, LLC for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A and Lots 12 & 13, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition being a 23.680-
acre tract of land identified as a portion of Tract 22 and all of Tract 22-2 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 120, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District and the FM-549 
Overlay (FM-549 OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the intersection of the IH-30 Frontage Road and FM-549, and 
take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 Purpose. The applicant is requesting the approval of a Final Plat for a 23.680-acre tract of land (i.e. a portion of Tract 22 

and all of Tract 22-2 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 120) for the purpose of establishing three (3) lots (i.e. Lot 1, Block A 
and Lots 12 & 13, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition) on the subject property. The purpose of this plat is to subdivide the 
subject property to facilitate the future conveyance of land. 
 

 Background. The subject property was annexed by the City Council on July 21, 1997 by Ordinance No. 97-14 (Case No. 
A1997-001). At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District. According to the historic 
zoning maps the subject property was rezoned to Commercial (C) District at some point between the time of annexation 
and April 5, 2005. On December 6, 2021, the City Council approved a preliminary plat (Case No. P2021-020) for the subject 
property. On the proposed Lot 13, Block B, the City Council has approved two (2) Specific Use Permits (SUP) (Case No. 
Z2022-041 & Z2023-035) to allow the construction the of Golf Driving Range. In addition, there is a site plan case (Case 
No. SP2024-010) currently in review at this time for the proposed Golf Driving Range. The subject property has remained 
vacant since the time of annexation. 

 
 Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested 

by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical 
modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Final Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 
conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A and Lots 12 & 13, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition staff 
would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 

Page 60 of 252



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this 
Final Plat; and, 

 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Final Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 30, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the final plat by a vote 
of 5-0, with Commissioners Conway and Llewellyn absent. 

Page 61 of 252



Page 62 of 252



Page 63 of 252



Page 64 of 252



Page 65 of 252



Page 66 of 252



Mapcheck 6: GrossBoundary Description-19144.02 

  Closure Summary 

    Precision, 1 part in:  286396.3121' 

    Error distance:        0.0183' 

    Error direction:       N10° 30' 36"W 

    Area:                  1031488 Sq. Ft. 

    Square area:           1031487.620 

    Perimeter:             5228.3200' 

  Point of Beginning 

    Easting:               2607333.9853' 

    Northing:              7023692.3353' 

  Side 1: Line 

    Direction:             N72° 51' 57"E 

    Angle:                 [-107° 08' 03.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [072° 51' 57.00"] 

    Distance:              299.0400' 

    Easting:               2607619.7531' 

    Northing:              7023780.4355' 

  Side 2: Line 

    Direction:             N67° 03' 28"E 

    Angle:                 [174° 11' 31.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-005° 48' 29.00"] 

    Distance:              118.0100' 

    Easting:               2607728.4283' 

    Northing:              7023826.4362' 

  Side 3: Line 

    Direction:             N72° 46' 09"E 

    Angle:                 [-174° 17' 19.00"] 

Page 67 of 252



    Deflection angle:      [005° 42' 41.00"] 

    Distance:              943.3700' 

    Easting:               2608629.4590' 

    Northing:              7024105.8832' 

  Side 4: Line 

    Direction:             S01° 36' 16"E 

    Angle:                 [-074° 22' 25.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [105° 37' 35.00"] 

    Distance:              329.0800' 

    Easting:               2608638.6730' 

    Northing:              7023776.9322' 

  Side 5: Line 

    Direction:             N76° 34' 05"E 

    Angle:                 [078° 10' 21.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-101° 49' 39.00"] 

    Distance:              540.7000' 

    Easting:               2609164.5830' 

    Northing:              7023902.5315' 

  Side 6: Line 

    Direction:             S01° 41' 51"E 

    Angle:                 [-078° 15' 56.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [101° 44' 04.00"] 

    Distance:              345.1600' 

    Easting:               2609174.8075' 

    Northing:              7023557.5230' 

  Side 7: Line 

    Direction:             S71° 45' 12"W 

    Angle:                 [-106° 32' 57.00"] 

Page 68 of 252



    Deflection angle:      [073° 27' 03.00"] 

    Distance:              505.0800' 

    Easting:               2608695.1243' 

    Northing:              7023399.3781' 

  Side 8: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Counter-clockwise 

    Radius:                [830.0113'] 

    Arc length:            255.2900' 

    Delta angle:           017° 37' 23.00" 

    Tangent:               [128.6635'] 

    Chord direction:       S89° 49' 15"W 

    Chord angle:           [-161° 55' 57.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [018° 04' 03.00"] 

    Chord distance:        254.2900' 

    Easting:               2608440.8355' 

    Northing:              7023398.5830' 

  Side 9: Line 

    Direction:             S81° 00' 34"W 

    Angle:                 [-179° 59' 59.50"] 

    Deflection angle:      [000° 00' 00.50"] 

    Distance:              59.8700' 

    Easting:               2608381.7011' 

    Northing:              7023389.2270' 

  Side 10: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Counter-clockwise 

    Radius:                [60.0014'] 

    Arc length:            94.2300' 

    Delta angle:           089° 58' 48.00" 

Page 69 of 252



    Tangent:               [59.9805'] 

    Chord direction:       N55° 36' 06"W 

    Chord angle:           [-136° 36' 40.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [043° 23' 20.00"] 

    Chord distance:        84.8400' 

    Easting:               2608311.6971' 

    Northing:              7023437.1567' 

  Side 11: Line 

    Direction:             S08° 57' 11"E 

    Angle:                 [091° 38' 19.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-088° 21' 41.00"] 

    Distance:              38.2900' 

    Easting:               2608317.6559' 

    Northing:              7023399.3333' 

  Side 12: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Clockwise 

    Radius:                [19.9965'] 

    Arc length:            31.4000' 

    Delta angle:           089° 57' 45.00" 

    Tangent:               [19.9834'] 

    Chord direction:       S36° 01' 41"W 

    Chord angle:           [-135° 01' 08.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [044° 58' 52.00"] 

    Chord distance:        28.2700' 

    Easting:               2608301.0281' 

    Northing:              7023376.4705' 

  Side 13: Line 

    Direction:             S81° 00' 34"W 

Page 70 of 252



    Angle:                 [-179° 59' 59.50"] 

    Deflection angle:      [000° 00' 00.50"] 

    Distance:              242.2300' 

    Easting:               2608061.7741' 

    Northing:              7023338.6168' 

  Side 14: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Counter-clockwise 

    Radius:                [529.9967'] 

    Arc length:            169.8200' 

    Delta angle:           018° 21' 29.00" 

    Tangent:               [85.6417'] 

    Chord direction:       S71° 49' 49"W 

    Chord angle:           [170° 49' 15.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-009° 10' 45.00"] 

    Chord distance:        169.0900' 

    Easting:               2607901.1154' 

    Northing:              7023285.8890' 

  Side 15: Line 

    Direction:             S62° 39' 05"W 

    Angle:                 [-179° 59' 59.50"] 

    Deflection angle:      [000° 00' 00.50"] 

    Distance:              360.3600' 

    Easting:               2607581.0336' 

    Northing:              7023120.3384' 

  Side 16: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Clockwise 

    Radius:                [470.0040'] 

    Arc length:            161.1700' 

Page 71 of 252



    Delta angle:           019° 38' 50.00" 

    Tangent:               [81.3833'] 

    Chord direction:       S72° 28' 30"W 

    Chord angle:           [-170° 10' 35.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [009° 49' 25.00"] 

    Chord distance:        160.3800' 

    Easting:               2607428.0976' 

    Northing:              7023072.0445' 

  Side 17: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Clockwise 

    Radius:                [42.4966'] 

    Arc length:            25.4600' 

    Delta angle:           034° 19' 30.00" 

    Tangent:               [13.1244'] 

    Chord direction:       N80° 32' 20"W 

    Chord angle:           [-162° 50' 15.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [017° 09' 45.00"] 

    Chord distance:        25.0800' 

    Easting:               2607403.3587' 

    Northing:              7023076.1671' 

  Side 18: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Counter-clockwise 

    Radius:                [42.5080'] 

    Arc length:            21.3800' 

    Delta angle:           028° 49' 27.00" 

    Tangent:               [10.9238'] 

    Chord direction:       N77° 47' 18"W 

    Chord angle:           [165° 35' 17.00"] 

Page 72 of 252



    Deflection angle:      [-014° 24' 43.00"] 

    Chord distance:        21.1600' 

    Easting:               2607382.6775' 

    Northing:              7023080.6429' 

  Side 19: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Clockwise 

    Radius:                [457.5731'] 

    Arc length:            15.5900' 

    Delta angle:           001° 57' 08.00" 

    Tangent:               [7.7961'] 

    Chord direction:       S88° 46' 32"W 

    Chord angle:           [-179° 01' 26.50"] 

    Deflection angle:      [000° 58' 33.50"] 

    Chord distance:        15.5900' 

    Easting:               2607367.0911' 

    Northing:              7023080.3098' 

  Side 20: Line 

    Direction:             S89° 45' 06"W 

    Angle:                 [180° 00' 00.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-000° 00' 00.00"] 

    Distance:              45.4600' 

    Easting:               2607321.6315' 

    Northing:              7023080.1127' 

  Side 21: Line 

    Direction:             N45° 14' 54"W 

    Angle:                 [-135° 00' 00.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [045° 00' 00.00"] 

    Distance:              42.4300' 

Page 73 of 252



    Easting:               2607291.4992' 

    Northing:              7023109.9850' 

  Side 22: Line 

    Direction:             N00° 14' 54"W 

    Angle:                 [-135° 00' 00.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [045° 00' 00.00"] 

    Distance:              90.7600' 

    Easting:               2607291.1058' 

    Northing:              7023200.7441' 

  Side 23: Line 

    Direction:             N01° 59' 44"E 

    Angle:                 [-177° 45' 22.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [002° 14' 38.00"] 

    Distance:              93.5700' 

    Easting:               2607294.3641' 

    Northing:              7023294.2574' 

  Side 24: Line 

    Direction:             N00° 36' 28"W 

    Angle:                 [177° 23' 48.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-002° 36' 12.00"] 

    Distance:              69.6700' 

    Easting:               2607293.6251' 

    Northing:              7023363.9234' 

  Side 25: Line 

    Direction:             N07° 00' 19"E 

    Angle:                 [-172° 23' 13.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [007° 36' 47.00"] 

    Distance:              330.9000' 

Page 74 of 252



    Easting:               2607333.9819' 

    Northing:              7023692.3533' 

Page 75 of 252



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: May 6, 2024 
 

APPLICANT: Renee Ward; Weir & Associates, Inc. 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-016; Replat for Lots 9-11, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall 
Land, LLC for the approval of a Replat for Lots 9, 10, & 11, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition being a 18.085-acre tract of land 
identified as Lot 8, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition and a portion of Tract 22 and all of Tract 24 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 
120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District and Light Industrial (LI) District, situated at the 
northwest corner of the intersection of Data Drive and Capital Boulevard, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 Purpose. The applicant is requesting the approval of a Replat for an 18.085-acre tract of land (i.e. Lot 8, Block B, Fit Sport 

Life Addition and a portion of Tract 22 and all of Tract 24 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 120) for the purpose of establishing 
three (3) lots (i.e. Lots 9-11, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition) on the subject property. The purpose of this plat is to subdivide 
the subject property to facilitate the future conveyance of land, delineate the boundaries of the existing detention pond, and 
to dedicate additional right-of-way for Capital Boulevard. 
 

 Background. The subject property was annexed by the City Council on July 21, 1997 by Ordinance No. 97-14 (Case No. 
A1997-001). At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District. According to the historic 
zoning maps the subject property was rezoned to a Commercial (C) District at some point between the time of annexation 
and April 5, 2005. On December 6, 2021, the City Council approved a preliminary plat (Case No. P2021-020) for the subject 
property. The proposed Lot 10, Block B, serves as the detention system for an adjacent commercial business (i.e. Fit Sport) 
and has already been platted as Lot 8, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition (Case No. P2021-061). The remainder of the subject 
property has remained vacant since the time of annexation. 

 
 Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested 

by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical 
modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 
conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for Lots 9-11, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this 

Replat; and, 

Page 76 of 252



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 30, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat by a vote of 
5-0, with Commissioners Conway and Llewellyn absent. 

Page 77 of 252



Page 78 of 252



Page 79 of 252



Page 80 of 252



Page 81 of 252



Page 82 of 252



Mapcheck 2: LEGAL (2) 

  Closure Summary 

    Precision, 1 part in:  245549.7199' 

    Error distance:        0.0180' 

    Error direction:       S52° 52' 28"E 

    Area:                  787760 Sq. Ft. 

    Square area:           787759.836 

    Perimeter:             4409.0700' 

  Point of Beginning 

    Easting:               2609822.6764' 

    Northing:              7022869.8994' 

  Side 1: Line 

    Direction:             S89° 43' 47"W 

    Angle:                 [089° 43' 47.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-090° 16' 13.00"] 

    Distance:              1040.0900' 

    Easting:               2608782.5980' 

    Northing:              7022864.9931' 

  Side 2: Line 

    Direction:             N00° 16' 13"W 

    Angle:                 [-090° 00' 00.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [090° 00' 00.00"] 

    Distance:              8.2300' 

    Easting:               2608782.5592' 

    Northing:              7022873.2230' 

  Side 3: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Counter-clockwise 

    Radius:                [832.4923'] 

Page 83 of 252



    Arc length:            282.6600' 

    Delta angle:           019° 27' 13.00" 

    Tangent:               [142.7014'] 

    Chord direction:       S67° 01' 28"W 

    Chord angle:           [067° 17' 41.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-112° 42' 19.00"] 

    Chord distance:        281.3000' 

    Easting:               2608523.5743' 

    Northing:              7022763.4208' 

  Side 4: Line 

    Direction:             S89° 10' 38"W 

    Angle:                 [-148° 07' 13.50"] 

    Deflection angle:      [031° 52' 46.50"] 

    Distance:              40.1800' 

    Easting:               2608483.3984' 

    Northing:              7022762.8438' 

  Side 5: Line 

    Direction:             N08° 59' 57"W 

    Angle:                 [-098° 10' 35.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [081° 49' 25.00"] 

    Distance:              574.5700' 

    Easting:               2608393.5241' 

    Northing:              7023330.3412' 

  Side 6: Line 

    Direction:             S81° 00' 34"W 

    Angle:                 [090° 00' 31.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-089° 59' 29.00"] 

    Distance:              21.8300' 

Page 84 of 252



    Easting:               2608371.9623' 

    Northing:              7023326.9298' 

  Side 7: Line 

    Direction:             N08° 54' 00"W 

    Angle:                 [-089° 54' 34.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [090° 05' 26.00"] 

    Distance:              14.1600' 

    Easting:               2608369.7716' 

    Northing:              7023340.9193' 

  Side 8: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Counter-clockwise 

    Radius:                [59.9969'] 

    Arc length:            51.3000' 

    Delta angle:           048° 59' 20.00" 

    Tangent:               [27.3351'] 

    Chord direction:       N13° 52' 59"E 

    Chord angle:           [-157° 13' 01.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [022° 46' 59.00"] 

    Chord distance:        49.7500' 

    Easting:               2608381.7087' 

    Northing:              7023389.2160' 

  Side 9: Line 

    Direction:             N81° 00' 34"E 

    Angle:                 [-088° 22' 45.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [091° 37' 15.00"] 

    Distance:              59.8700' 

    Easting:               2608440.8431' 

    Northing:              7023398.5720' 

Page 85 of 252



  Side 10: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Clockwise 

    Radius:                [830.0113'] 

    Arc length:            255.2900' 

    Delta angle:           017° 37' 23.00" 

    Tangent:               [128.6635'] 

    Chord direction:       N89° 49' 15"E 

    Chord angle:           [-171° 11' 19.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [008° 48' 41.00"] 

    Chord distance:        254.2900' 

    Easting:               2608695.1319' 

    Northing:              7023399.3672' 

  Side 11: Line 

    Direction:             N71° 45' 12"E 

    Angle:                 [153° 07' 15.50"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-026° 52' 44.50"] 

    Distance:              505.0800' 

    Easting:               2609174.8151' 

    Northing:              7023557.5120' 

  Side 12: Line 

    Direction:             S01° 41' 51"E 

    Angle:                 [-073° 27' 03.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [106° 32' 57.00"] 

    Distance:              242.1300' 

    Easting:               2609181.9876' 

    Northing:              7023315.4883' 

  Side 13: Line 

    Direction:             N89° 40' 04"E 

Page 86 of 252



    Angle:                 [091° 21' 55.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-088° 38' 05.00"] 

    Distance:              815.9700' 

    Easting:               2609997.9439' 

    Northing:              7023320.2195' 

  Side 14: Line 

    Direction:             S01° 15' 53"E 

    Angle:                 [-090° 55' 57.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [089° 04' 03.00"] 

    Distance:              3.9900' 

    Easting:               2609998.0320' 

    Northing:              7023316.2305' 

  Side 15: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Clockwise 

    Radius:                [274.4966'] 

    Arc length:            200.3600' 

    Delta angle:           041° 49' 15.00" 

    Tangent:               [104.8773'] 

    Chord direction:       S19° 38' 46"W 

    Chord angle:           [-159° 05' 21.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [020° 54' 39.00"] 

    Chord distance:        195.9400' 

    Easting:               2609932.1551' 

    Northing:              7023131.6967' 

  Side 16: Curve 

    Curve direction:       Counter-clockwise 

    Radius:                [335.5071'] 

    Arc length:            219.8900' 

Page 87 of 252



    Delta angle:           037° 33' 08.00" 

    Tangent:               [114.0599'] 

    Chord direction:       S21° 46' 50"W 

    Chord angle:           [161° 13' 26.50"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-018° 46' 33.50"] 

    Chord distance:        215.9800' 

    Easting:               2609852.0151' 

    Northing:              7022931.1352' 

  Side 17: Line 

    Direction:             S44° 01' 09"W 

    Angle:                 [-138° 59' 07.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [041° 00' 53.00"] 

    Distance:              43.4700' 

    Easting:               2609821.8079' 

    Northing:              7022899.8756' 

  Side 18: Line 

    Direction:             S01° 41' 11"E 

    Angle:                 [134° 17' 40.00"] 

    Deflection angle:      [-045° 42' 20.00"] 

    Distance:              30.0000' 

    Easting:               2609822.6907' 

    Northing:              7022869.8886' 

Page 88 of 252



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council  
 

DATE: May 6, 2024 
 

APPLICANT: Kyle Harris; Westwood Professional Services  
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-017; Replat for Lot 5, Block A, Channell Subdivision 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Kyle Harris of Westwood Professional Services on behalf of Edward Burke of Channell, Inc. for the 
approval of a Replat for Lot 5, Block A, Channell Subdivision being a 18.762-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, 
Channell Subdivision, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 89 (PD-89) for Light 
Industrial (LI) District land uses, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, addressed as 1700 
Justin Road, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 Purpose. The applicant is requesting approval of a Replat for an 18.762-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 4, Block A, Channell 

Subdivision) for the purpose of reestablishing one (1) non-residential lot (i.e. Lot 5, Block A, Channell Subdivision) to 
modify fire lane and drainage easements on the subject property.  
 

 Background. The subject property was annexed by the City Council on September 16, 1974 by Ordinance No. 74-25 [i.e. 
Case No. A1974-005]. Based on the May 7, 1993 historic zoning maps, between the time of annexation and May 7, 1993 
the subject property was rezoned from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District. On March 17, 2014 
the City Council approved a final plat [i.e. Case No. P2014-008] establishing Lot 1, Block A and Lot 1, Block B, Channell 
Subdivision. On July 8, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a site plan [ i.e. Case No. SP2014-011] for 
a 225,910 SF manufacturing and office building on the 18.762-acre subject property. As a part of the aforementioned site 
plan request, and on July 21, 2014, the City Council approved variances to the parking, building materials, light pole 
height requirements, and a special exception to allow tilt wall construction. On September 17, 2014, the City Council 
approved a replat [ i.e. Case No. P2014-038] for the subject property. An amendment to the approved site plan [i.e. Case 
No. SP2014-011] was approved by the City Council on May 16, 2016. A subsequent site plan [i.e. Case No.’s SP2019-
021 [withdrawn] and SP2019-045] -- which was approved on December 10, 2019 -- established screening for the outside 
storage areas on the north side of the existing building, realigned the western drive aisle, and laid out additional parking 
areas. An amended site plan [i.e. Case No. SP2020-011] was submitted and approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on July 14, 2020. On January 4, 2021, the City Council approved a zoning change from a Light Industrial (LI) 
District to Planned Development District 89 (PD-89) [i.e. Case No. Z2020-053] for Light Industrial (LI) District land uses for 
the purpose of establishing a corporate campus. A final amended site plan [i.e. Case No. SP2021-011] was approved 
administratively by staff for the purpose of constructing a ~55,760 SF office/warehouse facility. On July 6, 2021, City 
Council approved a replat [i.e. Case No. P2021-030] on the subject property to establish the subject property as Lot 4, 
Block A, Channell Subdivision. 
  

 Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested 
by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical 
modifications and submittal requirements. 

 
 Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 

conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

Page 89 of 252



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If City Council chooses to approve of a Replat for Lot 5, Block A, Channell Subdivision, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to the 

filing of this Replat; and,  
 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On April 30, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Replat by a vote of 
5-0, with Commissioners Llewellyn and Conway absent.  
 

Page 90 of 252



Page 91 of 252



Page 92 of 252



Page 93 of 252



COUNTY
MAPSCO

PROJECT   LOCATION

ROCKWALL
20 D

R
EP

LA
T-

 L
O

T 
5,

 B
LO

C
K

 A
, C

H
A

N
N

EL
L 

SU
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

'ETAIL�

'ETAIL� 'ETAIL�

Page 94 of 252



COUNTY
MAPSCO

PROJECT   LOCATION

ROCKWALL
20 D

R
EP

LA
T-

 L
O

T 
5,

 B
LO

C
K

 A
, C

H
A

N
N

EL
L 

SU
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

Page 95 of 252



R
EP

LA
T 

- L
O

T 
5,

 B
LO

C
K

 A
, C

H
A

N
N

EL
L 

SU
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“
”

“ ”

“
”

“ ”

“
”

“ ”

“
”

“ ”

“
”

“ ”

“ ”

PRELIMINARY

Page 96 of 252



 MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM:  Misty Farris, Purchasing Agent 

DATE:  May 6, 2024 

SUBJECT:  Manhole Rehabilitation Project Contract 

 
Approved in the Water Sewer Fund, Wastewater operating budget is $175,000 to rehab 
approximately 32 manholes. Project involves cleaning, remove debris, remove existing lining 
(coating) and concrete, prepare all surfaces and recoat the manholes.  Sealed competitive 
bids were solicited for this project.  Bids received from Magnum Manhole $162,264, and Ace 
Pipe $599,836.  Apparent low bidder is Magnum Manhole.   
  
Staff would like to move forward with this project by rehabbing all 32 manholes.  
  
Consider awarding a bid to Magnum Manhole and authorizing the City Manager to execute 
associated contract(s) in an amount not to exceed $162,264 for the rehabilitation of 32 
manholes within the city - to be funded by the Wastewater Operating Budget - and take any 
action necessary.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Manhole Rehab 2024 memo 
 

Page 97 of 252



                                
                                                           

MEMORANDUM   

To:        Mary Smith, City Manager       

From: Misty Farris, Purchasing Agent          

Date:  May 6, 2024      

Subject:     Manhole Rehabilitation Project
______________________________________________________________________

Approved in the Water Sewer Fund, Wastewater operating budget is $175,000 to rehab 
approximately 32 manholes.  Project involves cleaning, remove debris, remove existing 
lining (coating) and concrete, prepare all surfaces and recoat the manholes.  Sealed 
competitive bids were solicited for this project.  Bids received from Magnum Manhole 
$162,264, and Ace Pipe $599,836.  Apparent low bidder is Magnum Manhole.  

Staff would like to move forward with this project by rehabbing all 32 manholes. 

Consider awarding a bid to Magnum Manhole and authorizing the City Manager to 
execute associated contract(s) in an amount not to exceed $162,264 for the 
rehabilitation of 32 manholes within the city - to be funded by the Wastewater Operating 
Budget - and take any action necessary.

Page 98 of 252



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM 

TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council        

CC:              Mary Smith, City Manager
                    Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager
                     
FROM:        Travis E. Sales, Director of Parks and Recreation

DATE:         May 6, 2024
     
SUBJECT:  Texas Parks and Wildlife 2023 Boating Access Grant 

The Rockwall Parks and Recreation Department has been working with MHS 
Planning and TP&W to apply for a $1,250,000.00 boating access grant to expand 
the 66 Boat Ramp parking lot for improved access to the lake and to eliminate 
the many parking issues the site currently has. 

This grant provides 75% of the funding by TP&W and the 25% of the funding by 
the City of Rockwall.   The City of Rockwall would commit to providing 
$312,500.00 (25%) of the $1,250,000.00 (grant amount).  This grant has been 
approved for the planning portion of the grant.  

TP&W Grant breakdown:
Planning Grant $250,000.00 ($187,500.00 TP&W and $62,500.00 City of 
Rockwall)  (Approved)
Construction up to $1,000,000.00 (75% TP&W and 25% City of Rockwall) 
(TBD)

MHS Planning: 
Planning Design and Construction Administration $222,750.00
MHS Planning was the Construction Administrator for Phase I and II grants at the
66 Boat ramp in previous years.

Staff asks City Council to consider authorizing the City Manager to execute this 
Planning Grant agreement with TP&W and the Planning, Design and 
Construction Administration Agreement with MHS Planning in the amount of 
$222,750.00 for the planning grant with TP&W.

Page 99 of 252



Page 100 of 252



Page 101 of 252



Page 102 of 252



Page 103 of 252



Page 104 of 252



Page 105 of 252



Page 106 of 252



Page 107 of 252



Page 108 of 252



Page 109 of 252



Page 110 of 252



Page 111 of 252



Page 112 of 252



Page 113 of 252



Page 114 of 252



Page 115 of 252



Page 116 of 252



Page 117 of 252



Page 118 of 252



Page 119 of 252



Page 120 of 252



Page 121 of 252



Page 122 of 252



Page 123 of 252



Page 124 of 252



Page 125 of 252



Page 126 of 252



Page 127 of 252



Page 128 of 252



Page 129 of 252



Page 130 of 252



Page 131 of 252



Page 132 of 252



Page 133 of 252



Page 134 of 252



 MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM:  Kristy Teague, City Secretary/Asst. to the City Manager 

DATE:  May 6, 2024 

SUBJECT:  ILA for Judge Services for "No Refusal Weekends" 

 
The attached Interlocal Agreement (ILA) is a standard one that the City of Rockwall has 
routinely entered into with Rockwall County. City Manager, Mary Smith, or the city attorney 
will be happy to answer any questions Council may have concerning the agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Rockwall Agreement 
 

Page 135 of 252



Page 136 of 252



Page 137 of 252



Page 138 of 252



Page 139 of 252



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM 

TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council        

CC:              Mary Smith, City Manager
        Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager
        

FROM:        Travis E. Sales, Director of Parks and Recreation

DATE:         May 6, 2024
     
SUBJECT:  Park Land Dedication Fee Ordinance 

A component of our Mandatory Park Land Dedication Ordinance is the cash in lieu of land fee. 
This fee is applied when the Park Board feels that it is in the best interest of the City to accept 
cash-in-lieu of land for neighborhood parkland. According to our Mandatory Parkland Dedication 
Ordinance, the Park Board shall annually make a recommendation to the City Council and 
Council will set the fee by ordinance. The fee is based on the average cost of neighborhood 
park land across the entire City. 

Bryan E. Humphries and Associates completed their annual appraisal in January of 2024 to 
determine the average cost per acre of land and provided a final report. To establish 
comparable parcels, the properties evaluated must have easy access to utilities, public street, 
not be within the 100-year flood plain and not possess any unusual topography rendering the 
land useless for organized recreational activities. According to Mr. Humphries’ report, the 
average cost of one acre of neighborhood park land with the above restrictions within the City 
limits is $70,000.00. Therefore, the value of the land for an 11-acre park is $770,000.00. I have 
attached the appraisal letter completed by Mr. Humphries

Each year the cost to develop an 11-acre neighborhood park should be considered and set by 
Council by ordinance as well. $720,000.00 would be the  “per neighborhood park” cost to be 
used in calculation of pro-rata neighborhood park development equipment fees associated with 
the developer’s share of the park using 2024 contractor and vendor pricing. Ordinance is 
attached in the packet for your review. 

At the February 6th meeting, Park Board voted 6-0 with Amanda Fowler absent to recommend 
that Council set the per acre price of park land by ordinance in the amount of $70,000.00.  Park 
Board also voted unanimously to recommend that the pro rata equipment fees for a 
neighborhood park cost be set at $720,000.00.  Staff will be available to answer any questions.  
Parks and Recreation Staff request that the City Council review and consider this request.

Page 140 of 252



Article II of Chapter 38, of the Code of Ordinances Page 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 24-XX;

 CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 24-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING ARTICLE II, PARK LAND 
DEDICATION, OF CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF UPDATING TABLE 1 WITH THE REVISED 
ANNUAL PRICE PER ACRE OF LAND AND THE TOTAL 
EQUIPMENT COST FOR A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK; PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rockwall desires to provide a park system that 
includes adequately sized and appropriately equipped Neighborhood Parks, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rockwall has adopted a Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan designed to facilitate the development of a Park System for the benefit of the 
citizens of the City of Rockwall, and 

WHEREAS, Section 38-55, Cash-in-Lieu of Land Fees, of Article II, Park Land Dedication, of 
Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances of the City of Rockwall has 
adopted Mandatory Neighborhood Park Land Dedication fees, designed to facilitate participation 
by developers -- on a pro-rata basis -- in acquisition and development of Neighborhood Parks, 
and

WHEREAS, the provisions contained in Section 38-55, Cash-in-Lieu of Land Fees, of Article II, 
Park Land Dedication, of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances 
provide that the City Council shall annually adopt a resolution establishing an Annual Price Per 
Acre of Land and a Total Equipment Cost to be used in calculation of a development’s pro-rata 
share contribution for Neighborhood Park Land and Neighborhood Park Equipment Fees. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Based upon a recommendation from the City of Rockwall’s Parks and Recreation 
Board a cost of $70,000.00 is hereby adopted per Section 38-55, Cash-in-Lieu of Land Fees, of 
Article II, Park Land Dedication, of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of 
Ordinances as the Annual Price Per Acre of Land to be used in the calculation of pro-rata 
contribution for Neighborhood Park Land;

SECTION 2. Based upon a recommendation from the City of Rockwall’s Parks and Recreation 
Board a cost of $720,000.00 is hereby adopted Section 38-56, Pro-Rata Equipment Fees, of 
Article II, Park Land Dedication, of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of 
Ordinances as the Total Equipment Cost to be used in the calculation of pro-rata contribution for 
Neighborhood Park Equipment Fees;

SECTION 3. That Table 1. Land and Equipment Costs of Article II, Park Land Dedication, of 
Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances of the City of Rockwall be 
amended for the purpose of updating the Annual Price Per Acre of Land and the Total 
Equipment Cost for a Neighborhood Park in the City of Rockwall, and that this table shall be as 
specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance;

Page 141 of 252



Article II of Chapter 38, of the Code of Ordinances Page 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 24-XX;

SECTION 4.  That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any 
reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision 
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other 
person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, 
or provision of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have 
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this 
end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable;

SECTION 5.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage;

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF MAY, 2024.

   
Trace Johannesen, Mayor

ATTEST:

   
Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

   
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1st Reading: May 6, 2024

2nd Reading: May 20, 2024

Page 142 of 252



Exhibit ‘A’
Article II, Park Land Dedication,

Chapter 38, Subdivisions,
Municipal Code of Ordinances

Article II of Chapter 38, of the Code of Ordinances Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 24-XX;

TABLE 1. LAND AND EQUIPMENT COSTS

ANNUAL PRICE PER ACRE OF LAND $70,000.00
NEIGHBORHOOD PARK ACREAGE (ACRES) 11.00
TOTAL LAND COST FOR A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK $770,000.00

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COST FOR A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK $720,000.00

TOTAL COST FOR A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK $1,490,000.00

TABLE 2. FEE SCHEDULE

PARK 
DISTRICT

ULTIMATE 
DWELLING UNIT 

HOLDING 
CAPACITY

DWELLING UNIT 
DEDICATION 

FACTOR IN ACRES
CASH-IN-LIEU OF 

LAND FEES 
PRO-RATA 

EQUIPMENT FEES

TOTAL 
ALTERNATIVE 

PARK FEES
1 594 0.0185 $1,296.30 $1,212.12 $2,508.42 

2 1,148 0.0096 $670.73 $627.18 $1,297.91 

3 1,350 0.0081 $570.37 $533.33 $1,103.70 

4 1,265 0.0087 $608.70 $569.17 $1,177.87 

5 1,278 0.0086 $602.50 $563.38 $1,165.88 

6 671 0.0164 $1,147.54 $1,073.03 $2,220.57 

7 1,446 0.0076 $532.50 $497.93 $1,030.43 

8 1,083 0.0102 $710.99 $664.82 $1,375.81 

9 1,451 0.0076 $530.67 $496.21 $1,026.88 

10 349 0.0315 $2,206.30 $2,063.04 $4,269.34 

11 1,085 0.0101 $709.68 $663.59 $1,373.27 

12 1,221 0.0090 $630.63 $589.68 $1,220.31 

13 782 0.0141 $984.65 $920.72 $1,905.37 

14 2,212 0.0050 $348.10 $325.50 $673.60 

15 1,234 0.0089 $623.99 $583.47 $1,207.46 

16 406 0.0271 $1,896.55 $1,773.40 $3,669.95 

17 2,844 0.0039 $270.75 $253.16 $523.91 

18 701 0.0157 $1,098.43 $1,027.10 $2,125.53 

19 996 0.0110 $773.09 $722.89 $1,495.98 

20 1,248 0.0088 $616.99 $576.92 $1,193.91 

21 1,006 0.0109 $765.41 $715.71 $1,481.11 

22 1,312 0.0084 $586.89 $548.78 $1,135.67 

23 1,178 0.0093 $653.65 $611.21 $1,264.86 

24 1,472 0.0075 $523.10 $489.13 $1,012.23 

25 1,313 0.0084 $586.44 $548.36 $1,134.81 

26 630 0.0175 $1,222.22 $1,142.86 $2,365.08 

27 1,756 0.0063 $438.50 $410.02 $848.52 

28 2,321 0.0047 $331.75 $310.21 $641.96 

29 3,965 0.0028 $194.20 $181.59 $375.79 

30 1,724 0.0064 $446.64 $417.63 $864.27 

31 2,266 0.0049 $339.81 $317.74 $657.55 

32 333 0.0330 $2,312.31 $2,162.16 $4,474.47 

Page 143 of 252

https://library.municode.com/tx/rockwall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH28MUCO


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MARKET STUDY 
 

REAL PROPERTY APPRAISAL CONSULTING REPORT 
 
 

Prepared For 
 

Travis Sales, Parks and Recreation Director 
City of Rockwall 

108 E. Washington 
Rockwall, Texas, 75087 

 
 
 
 
 

MARKET STUDY 
Average Price Per-Acre of Land in the City of Rockwall 

The City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONSULTING ASSIGNMENT 
JANUARY 1, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By 
 

Bryan E. Humphries & Associates 
4050 McKinney Avenue 

Suite 210 
Dallas, Texas 75204

Page 144 of 252



 

 
 

BRYAN E. HUMPHRIES & ASSOCIATES 
REAL ESTATE VALUATION AND SERVICES 

 
January 23, 2024 

 
 

Travis Sales, Park and Recreation Director 
City of Rockwall 
108 E. Washington 
Rockwall, TX 75807 

 
 

Re: Average Price Per- Acre of Land in the City of Rockwall 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas 

 
 

Mr. Sales, 

We are pleased to transmit this gross market study/real property appraisal consulting report that was 

prepared for the purpose of valuing typical parkland in the City of Rockwall. This parkland is 

typically  +/- five acres and in the early stages of development. Please refer to identification of project 

on page 4 for further explanation of the project scope. This report is a gross market study (real 

property appraisal consulting report) and does not involve analysis of or the inspection of a physical 

subject property. The purpose of this gross market study is to derive an opinion of a fee simple market 

value of the average price per-acre of land in the City of Rockwall. The effective date of this gross 

market study is January 1, 2024. 

 

The client should not conclude that an appraisal has been prepared, and this report should not be used 

for condemnation purposes. This consulting report is only intended to assist the City of Rockwall, in 

establishing a general value trend and current market value of the average price per- acre of land in the 

City of Rockwall. 

 
 

4054 McKinney Avenue,   Suite 210,   Dallas, Texas 75204 
              
  

214/528-7584    E-Mail:  behinc@flash.net      CELL 214/384-6411 

Page 145 of 252

mailto:behinc@flash.net


1 
Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 24-4204 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Page No. 

Table of Contents ......................................................................................................................... 1 

Certification ................................................................................................................................. 2 

General Information & Scope of Work 

Identification of Subject and Project ............................................................................................ 4 

Inspection Information, Effective Date and Date of Report ........................................................ 4 

Identification of the Client ........................................................................................................... 4 

Intended Users and Intended Use ................................................................................................ 4 

Objective of the Assignment ........................................................................................................ 4 

Appraisal Report Option .............................................................................................................. 5 

Analysis Overview ....................................................................................................................... 5 

Extraordinary Assumptions ......................................................................................................... 5 

Jurisdictional Exceptions ............................................................................................................. 6 

Hypothetical Conditions .............................................................................................................. 6 

Residential Market Analysis ........................................................................................................ 8 

Data Analysis ............................................................................................................................. 13 

Conclusion of Value .................................................................................................................. 20 
 
 
Addenda 

Qualifications of Appraisers  

Assumptions and Limiting Conditions  

Page 146 of 252



2 
Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 24-4204 

CERTIFICATE 
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief,... 

 
The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

 
The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported 
assumptions and limiting conditions, and are my personal, impartial, unbiased professional 
analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 

 
As of the date of the appraisal only, I have no present or prospective interest in the property 
that is the subject of this report, and I have no personal interest or bias with respect to the 
parties involved. 

 
We have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties 
involved with this assignment. 

 
My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 
predetermined results. 

 
My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent on the development or 
reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, 
the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a 
subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

 
Bryan Humphries has made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this 
report. 

 
No one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the persons signing this 
certificate. 

 
I have performed a previous appraisal (1/1/13, 1/1/14, 1/1/15, 1/1/16, 1/1/17, 1/1/18, 1/1/19, 
1/1/20, 1/1/21, 1/1/22 & 1/1/23) involving the subject property within the three years prior 
to this assignment. 

 
The report analysis, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 
prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and the 
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

 
The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to 
review by its duly authorized representatives. 

 
As of the date of this Study, I have completed the requirements of the continuing education 
program of the Appraisal Institute. 

 

Bryan Humphries, MAI, TX-1320676-G 

Page 147 of 252



3 
Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 24-4204 

Page 148 of 252



4 
Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 24-4204 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION & SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 

Identification of Subject and Project 
 
The subject property is a typical, underdeveloped, Parcel in the City of Rockwall. The parcel 
represents the average size of a residential tract in the City of Rockwall or approximately +/- 
five acres. From time to time, developers must dedicate land to the City of Rockwall in order to 
meet the need for park land in the area. If the dedication is not feasible, the developers must 
then give the City cash in lieu of land that is reflective of typical residential land in Rockwall. 
The client has indicated that this average residential land is typically +/-5 acres and in the early 
stages of development. 

 
 
Inspection Information, Effective Date and Date of Report 

 
This analysis does not involve a physical subject property, only a hypothetical property, thus no 
inspection is required. The effective date of the assignment is January 1, 2024. The date of the 
report is the date of the signature on the first page of this report. Unless otherwise stated, all 
factors pertinent to a determination of value are considered as of this date. 

 
 
Identification of the Client/Intended User 

 
This real property appraisal consulting report is prepared for the City of Rockwall, Mr. Travis 
Sales, 108 E. Washington, Rockwall, Texas 75087. Any other use or users are not intended or 
authorized. 

 
 
Objective of the Assignment/Intended Use 

 
This consulting assignment is only intended to assist the client in establishing an average price 
per-acre of land. The client should not conclude that an appraisal has been prepared, and this 
report should not be used for condemnation purposes. 

Page 149 of 252



General Information & Scope of Work, continued 
 

 
5 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
 
 

Appraisal Report Option 
 
This is a real property appraisal consulting assignment that complies with the reporting 
requirements set forth under Standard 5 of the Uniform Standards of professional Appraisal 
Practices (USPAP). As such, it presents sufficient information to enable the client and other 
intended users, as identified, to understand it properly. The depth of discussion contained in this 
report is specific to the needs of the client and the intended users of this property appraisal 
consulting report. 

Analysis Overview 
 
As part of this consulting assignment, we have completed the following steps to gather, confirm, 
and analyze the data. 

► Physically inspected the subject markets and the surrounding neighborhoods. 
 
► Collected factual information about the surrounding market and confirmed that 

information with various sources. 

► Collected market information needed to consider the three traditional approaches to 
value: Cost approach, sales comparison approach and income capitalization approach (if 
applicable). 

► Prepared a real property appraisal consulting report setting forth the conclusion derived in 
this analysis as well as a summary of the information upon which the conclusions are 
based. 

Extraordinary Assumptions 
 
An extraordinary assumption is something that is assumed to be true, but it is not certain. If it 
turns out to be untrue, the value conclusion could be impacted. Extraordinary assumptions are 
those assumptions that are specific to the assignment, as opposed to general assumptions, which 
could be applicable to any assignment. In this assignment, we have assumed typical general 
assumptions and limiting conditions as cited above. In this particular assignment, the following 
extraordinary assumptions were made: 

► Sales and listing data obtained from the Multiple Listing Service is deemed to be 
sufficiently reliable data to establish overall market trends and the current market value 
of an average, price per-acre of land. While some knowledgeable real estate brokers and 
salespeople have been contacted to obtain and confirm data, the reader should be aware 
that not all of the sales and listing data analyzed was independently confirmed. 

Page 150 of 252



General Information & Scope of Work, continued 
 

 
6 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
 
 

► The client should not conclude that an appraisal has been prepared, and this consulting 
report should not be used for condemnation purposes. This gross market study (real 
property appraisal consulting report) is only intended to assist the City of Rockwall in 
establishing a general value trend and current market value of an average price per-acre 
in the City of Rockwall. 

► The purpose of this consultation report is to establish the average price per acre of park 
land in the City of Rockwall. The typical land tract is considered to be +/- 5 Acres.  
However, it is beyond the scope of this consultation report to estimate the actual costs of 
adjacent street and site utilities as stated in the ordinance (see addenda). 

Jurisdictional Exceptions 
 
The Jurisdictional Exception Rule provides for severability preserving the balance of the 
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP). If one or more parts of USPAP 
are “contrary to the law or public policy of any jurisdiction, only that part shall be void and of no 
force or effect in that jurisdiction.” According to USPAP, “A law means a body of rules with 
binding legal force established by the controlling governmental authority.” This includes federal 
and state constitutions, legislative and court made law, administrative rules, regulations and 
ordinances.  In this assignment, there are no known conflicts of law or public policy that 
disregard the USPAP. 

Hypothetical Conditions 
 
A hypothetical condition is that which is contrary to what exists but is supposed for the purpose 
of analysis.  In this particular assignment, the following hypothetical condition was made: 

For purposes of this analysis, the subject property is a hypothetical, undeveloped, parcel 
in the City of Rockwall. 

Page 151 of 252



 

 
7 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C/ 22-4135 
 

 

  
 

 
 

Page 152 of 252



 

 
8 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C/ 22-4135 
 

Residential Market Analysis 
 

Boundaries 
 

The neighborhood boundaries are generally defined as follows: 
City of Rockwall (Urban) 
Outlying areas of the City of Rockwall (Suburban) 

Development Activities and Trends 

Residential development comprises approximately ±80% of the development in 
Rockwall. According to ESRI, the median 2023 home value within a 1-mile, 3-mile, and 
5-mile radius of the Subject is $270,752, $299,086, and $307,877 respectively. 

 
Recent single family building permit activity in Rockwall County summarized as 
follows. Data provided by Texas A & M Real Estate Center.  
 

Rockwall County Single Family Building Permits1 
Year Units % Change Average Value % Change 
2000 955 - $194,400 - 
2001 1.267 32.7% $171,000 -12% 
2002 1,224 -3.4% $171,000 0.0% 
2003 1,219 -0.4% $168,500 -1.5% 
2004 1,598 31.1% $168,100 -0.2% 
2005 1,756 9.9% $183,400 9.1% 
2006 1,190 -32.2% $201,800 10.0% 
2007 759 -36.2% $240,200 19.0% 
2008 589 -22.4% $192,800 -19.7% 
2009 545 -7.5% $166,500 -13.6% 
2010 489 -10.3% $200,800 20.6% 
2011 411 -16.0% $233,800 16.4% 
2012 675 +64.2% $247,700 5.9% 
2013 741 +9.8% $256,900 3.7% 
2014 965 +30.2% $288,800 12.4% 
2015 1046 +8.4% $284,600 -1.5% 
2016 1116 +6.7% $317,000 11.4 
2017 1468 +31.5% $293,700 -7.4% 
2018 1517 +3.3% $305,200 +3.9% 
2019 1283 -15.4% $325,800 6.7% 
2020 2306 +79.7% $315,100 -3.3% 
2021 2830 +22.7% $268,400 -14.8% 
2022 2497 -11.8% $296,900 +10.6% 

YTD 11/23 1475 -49.0% $323,536 +9.0% 
 

As indicated by the preceding chart, new single family home activity peaked in 2005 at 
1,756 permits. Building permit activity dropped significantly in 2006, 2007, and 2008, 
but slowed to 7.5% in 2009. New construction continued to decline in 2010, but appears 
to have bottomed in 2011 with 411 homes as 487 building permits were issued through 
September 2012. For 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 & 2021 
permits have rebounded significantly. For 2022 & 2023 permits have decreased due to 
increases in interest rates.

Page 153 of 252



Residential Market Analysis, continued 
 

 
9 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
 
Demographic Trends 

 
Population growth in Rockwall County had been slow in relation to the Dallas-Fort 
Worth CMSA after Lake Ray Hubbard was impounded in the 1960’s. That changed 
when IH-30 was upgraded and the bridge widened in the 1990s. While the entire county 
has benefited, most of the growth has taken place along or near IH-30, and from west to 
east.  Access remains an important factor in Rockwall County’s growth pattern. 

 
Area 1980 1990 2000 2010 2010 to 2023 

Compounded 
Annual %Change 

Estimated 
2023 

City of Fate NA 477 463 6,357 11.0% 24,786 
City of Heath 1,459 2,108 4,149 6,921 3.2% 10,363 
City of Rockwall 5,939 10,486 17,976 37,490 2.4% 51,054 
City of Rowlett 7,522 23,260 44,503 56,199 1.3% 66,212 
City of Royse City 1,566 2,206 2,957 9,349 6.0% 19,984 
Rockwall County 14,528 25,600 43,080 78,337 3.6% 124,734

 Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census & State of Texas 
 
 

The population in the City of Rockwall increased 2.4% compounded annually from 
2010 to its 2023 level of 51,054. The Rockwall County population grew 3.6% 
compounded annually to 124,734 during the same period. 

 
Demographics 

 

The following chart summarizes demographic data in the Subject Neighborhood. The 
data was provided by ESRI, Inc., and is based on demographics in a 1,3, and 5-mile 
radius from the Subject Property. 

Page 154 of 252



Residential Market Analysis, continued 
 

 
10 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
2010-2023 Demographic Data (Source, ERSI, Inc.) 

Item 1 Mile 3 Mile 5 Mile 
2010 Population 3,651 32,412 71,164 
2023 Population 5,436 39,019 97,691 
2010-2023 Pop. Growth Rate- annually 3.1% 1.4% 2.5% 
Projected 2028 Population 5,664 41,409 106,937 
Projected 5-Year Growth Rate- annually .8% 1.2% 1.8% 
2023 Households 2,483 14,372 33,227 
2023 Average Household Size 2.15 2.69 2.86 
2023 Median Household Income $78,403 $107,756 $114,132 
2023 Average Household Income $101,441 $132,443 $142,548 
2023 Per Capita Income $45,659 $48,512 $48,976 
2023 Housing Units 2,662 15,281 35,217 
2023 Owner Occupied Housing Units 34% 73% 84% 
2023 Renter Occupied Housing Units     66% 27% 16% 
2023 Vacant Housing Units 7% 6% 5% 
Projected 2028 Housing Units 2,854 16,608 39,086 
2023 Median Home Value $270,752 $299,086 $307,877 

 
 

The following data is compiled from the North Texas Real Estate Information Systems 
and analyzed by the Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University. According to the data 
as of December 2023 (includes residential, commercial and farm and ranch land) the 
number of closed transactions year-to-date for lots and vacant land in the Rockwall market 
area has decrease 28% and the average price has decreased 59%.  The average sold to list 
price has decreased 7% and the average days on market has increased 2%. The months 
inventory increased by 117% 

 
 

Year-to-Date Sales Closed by Area for: December 2023           
Lots and Vacant Land  

Area Sales %Change 
Year Ago 

Dollar 
Volume 

% Change 
Year Ago 

Average 
Price 

% Change 
Year Ago 

Median 
Price 

% Change 
Year Ago 

Rockwall 
Co. 

94 -28% $28,985,806 -59% $308,360 -40% $244,969 -3% 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 155 of 252



Residential Market Analysis, continued 
 

 
11 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
 

Year-to-Date Sales Closed by Area for: December 2023 
                   Lots and Vacant Land 
         Area Sold to List 

Price 
% Change 
Year Ago 

Months  
Inventory

 

     % 
Change 

  

DOM % Change Year 
Ago 

Rockwall 
Co. 

87% -7%     13 +117% 93 +2% 

 
  
 

The following data is also compiled from the North Texas Real Estate Information Systems 
and analyzed by the Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University. According to the data 
as of December 2023 the number of closed transactions year-to-date for single family 
residences in the Rockwall market area decreased -3% and the average price decreased      
by -1%. The average days on market has increased 113%. 

 

 
 

Year-to-Date Sales Closed by Area for: December 2023 
Single Family  

Area Sales %Change 
Year Ago 

Dollar Volume %Change 
Year Ago 

  Average     
    Price 

% Change 
Year Ago 

Median 
Price 

% Change 
Year Ago 

Rockwall 
Co. 

  2,370 -3% $1,193,699,237 -4% $503,671 -1% $423,218      -2% 

 
 
 
 

Area Sold to List 
Price 

  %Change       
Year Ago  

    DOM % Change 
Year Ago 

Months 
Inventory 

% Change 
Year Ago 

Rockwall 
Co. 

   94%   -5%      68       +113% 3.0         +36% 

Page 156 of 252



Residential Market Analysis, continued 
 

12 
Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
 

Conclusions 
 

Rockwall has shown strong population growth over the past twenty years and 
employment trends are positive.  The area is rapidly being developed with commercial 
and residential uses. In the future, Rockwall County is anticipated to be a strong growing 
area of the Metroplex. The neighborhood is considered to be in a growth life stage and 
the overall aspects are considered to be good. 

Page 157 of 252



 

 
13 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

DATA ANALYSIS 
 
 

Description and Analysis of the Subject 
 
For purposes of this analysis, the subject property is a typical, undeveloped, parcel in the City of 
Rockwall.  According to the client, the City of Rockwall will be using the data to value 
parklands ranging in size from 1 to 10 acres. The client instructed the appraisers to base 
adjustments on a typical +/- 5-acre residential parcel in the early stages of development. 

Description of the Data and Analysis 
 
The purpose of this analysis is to determine the average value of a residential, undeveloped, 
parcel within the City of Rockwall. The parcel is assumed to have paved street access, utilities 
and to be in the early stages of development. 

Sales and listing data was obtained from the NTREIS Multiple Listing Service. Our queried data 
included all residential land sales from one tenth of an acre to twenty acres in the City of 
Rockwall. Included within the data are land sales of parcels improved with typical subdivision 
infra-structure (i.e. paved streets, utilities, engineering, platting, etc.) and those that do not have 
these improvements. These sales have been adjusted to reflect their condition above and below 
the average undeveloped parcel. Within our analysis we have also considered historical land sale 
prices and trends as these are good indicators of current prices and prices going forward and 
provide a helpful frame of reference for the overall market.  Other factors considered and 
adjusted for within the sales data include parcel size and location. 

Our queries presented the following raw data. The data is not adjusted to reflect the average, 
undeveloped parcel. The raw average price per acre is heavily biased and influenced by sales of 
lake front lots. 

 
 

 2015  2016 2017   2018  2019  2020 2021  2022  2023 

Total Sales 92    84   61   57    55 46 52    52   38 
Sale to List Ratio 97%   93%   93%   92%    93% 95% 95%   94%    88% 
Avg. Price Per 
A  

$80,105 $84,744 $170,548 $163,339  $128,74
4 

$192,133 $193,062 $307,916   $363,259 
Avg. Days on 
Market 

255    247   184   225    113 91 120    186    131 

Percentage of 
Sales 
Under 1 Acre 

57%   48%  41%   40%   40% 33% 30%   44%    53% 

Page 158 of 252



 

 
14 

Humphries & Associates    
  D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

Data Analysis, continued 
 
A trend analysis of the raw price per acre of lot sales listed in MLS from 2010 to 2023 suggests 

the price trend is to be increasing. The Trend Line graph is shown on page 15. However, little 

weight should be given in this data as it is heavily upward biased because of small lots located 

on or near the lake which sale at a premium price due to location and higher unit prices due to 

economies of scale. Likewise, at the other end of the spectrum, a few sales sold for $300,000+ 

an acre.  Only lot sales stated by MLS to be in the City of Rockwall were considered.  To reduce 

the skewing in the data for the 2010 thru 2023 time period, the data set is narrowed to sales 

greater than 1.00 acres and up with a price less than +/- $125,000. The following chart reflects 

the trend of these sales. The data indicates that the lots sales from 2010 to 2023 had an 

increasing trend.  From 2010, the typical price per acre was + $20,000, the price per acre 

increase to + $82,512 in 2023. The average per acre price was $41,113 for the period 2010 to 

2023.

Page 159 of 252



 

 
15 

Humphries & Associates                     D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

y = 16.014x - 643721
R² = 0.4567

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

04/01/12 08/14/13 12/27/14 05/10/16 09/22/17 02/04/19 06/18/20 10/31/21 03/15/23 07/27/24

Pe
r A

cr
e 

Pr
ic

e

Date

2010  - 2023 Raw Per Acre Sales

Series1

Linear (Series1)

Page 160 of 252



 

 
16 

Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 Data Analysis, continued 
 
The most recent sales of lots are the 2023 data set and our analysis will focus on the 2023 sales . 
This data set contains 12 sales that MLS lists as in the City of Rockwall. The sales are all greater 
than 1.00 Acre and less than $125,000/acre. 

 The following chart represents the size versus price per acres trend of the 2023 data set.   
 
 

 
 

The size adjustment trend line indicates a size adjustment for sales both larger and smaller than 
the Subject’s +/- 5 acres. Seven of the sales are greater than 2 Acres and less than 10 Acres. No 
size adjustment will be made to these sales. Three sales are larger than 1 Acre up to approximately 
2 Acres. These sales will be adjusted downward for size. Two sales are greater than 10 Acres and 
will be adjusted upward for size. 

 
Following are two charts. The first shows the 2023 per acre raw lot sales date unadjusted. This 
chart shows the data between +$22,000 per acre price to a +$121,500 per acre price. The average 
2023 per acre price was $82,512/Acre. The trend line indicates that the price per acre at the 
beginning of 2023 was +/- $82,000/Acre and at the end of 2023 was +/- $80,000/Acre.

1-2 Acres, $109,582

2-5 Acres, $90,252

6-10 Acres, $76,070

10+ Acres, $58,001

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

0 1 2 3 4 5 6

Size Adjustment Per Acre
Series1 Poly. (Series1)

Page 161 of 252



 

 
 

17 
Humphries & Associates       D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
 
 
 

y = -13.384x + 685988
R² = 0.0015

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

12/5/2022 1/24/2023 3/15/2023 5/4/2023 6/23/2023 8/12/2023 10/1/2023 11/20/2023 1/9/2024

Pr
ic

e 
Pe

r A
cr

e

Date

Raw Unadjusted Per Acre Sales 2023

Series1

Linear (Series1)

Page 162 of 252



 

 
 

18 
Humphries & Associates D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 

Data Analysis, continued 
 
The second chart represents the 2023 data after adjustments for size, location, and 
infrastructure. The location and infrastructure adjustments considered information included in 
the detail MLS write up sheets on each sale.  As shown on the chart, the data is represented in 
a range from + $30,500/Acre to +$101,500/Acre. The average for the adjusted data was          
+ $73,000/Acre. The trend line indicates the price per acre at the beginning of 2023 was            
+ $74,000/Acre and at the end of 2023 was +$72,000/Acre.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 163 of 252



 

 
 

19 
Humphries & Associates       D/20-C / 22-4135 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

y = -6.9206x + 385050
R² = 0.0009

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

12/5/2022 1/24/2023 3/15/2023 5/4/2023 6/23/2023 8/12/2023 10/1/2023 11/20/2023 1/9/2024

Pr
ic

e 
Pe

r A
cr

e

Date

2023 Adjusted Price Per Acre

Series1

Linear (Series1)

Page 164 of 252



 

 20 
 

Data Analysis, continued 
 
 
 

Conclusions 
 
For the years prior to mid-2022, lot sales actively has been improving for both the number of sales 
as well as the price. However, since mid-2022 interest rates have been increasing, reducing the 
number of lot sales dramatically. Lot prices during this period appear to have remained stable to 
slightly declining. 

The following list a summary of our data findings over the past years. 
 
 

Average Per Acre Price 2010 to 2023 Unadjusted: $41,113/Acre  
 

Average Per Acre Price 2023 Unadjusted: $82,512/Acre 

Average per Acre Price 2022 Adjusted for Location, Infrastructure 

and Size: $73,000/Acre 
 
 

The adjusted 2023 data represents the most recent range of lot sales. Based upon our analysis 
and conclusions, subject to parameters defined, my opinion of the average market value price 
per acre of residential land in the City of Rockwall as of 1/1/2024 is: 

$70,000/Acre 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Bryan Humphries, MAI, TX-1320676-G     
 
 

 

 

 

Page 165 of 252



 

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS - Bryan E. Humphries, MAI 
 
Currently 
 
Owner, BRYAN E. HUMPHRIES, INC. 
 
Experience 
 
Over 40-years of experience in the appraisal of real properties, including commercial, multi-family, 
industrial, and special purpose properties, for mortgage bankers, savings and loan associations, in-
surance companies, attorneys, private individuals, public utilities, and governmental agencies. 
 
Primary areas of concentration during the last five years include the appraisal of multi-family and 
office properties.  Additional experience includes ownership and management of various mul-
ti-family and office properties. 
 
Education 
 
Graduated from Texas Tech University in 1974:  B.B.A. Business 
Graduated from Texas Tech University in 1976:  M.S. Finance 
Completed college, SREA, and AIREA courses in real estate appraisal 
Qualified as "Expert" in real estate valuation in various courts 
 
 
Professional Designations and Affiliations 
 
MAI  Member (#6514), Appraisal Institute 
 
AI  Admissions Committee, North Texas Chapter 17, 1983-1992 (Chairman, 

1989-1990); National Admissions Review (1994-1996); Education Committee 
(1988); Region 8 Representative (1994, 1996, 1997, 2002); North Texas Chapter 
17 Board of Directors (1993 - 1995; 1999 – 2001), Appraisal Institute National 
Screener (1996-2005), Appraisal Institute Advisor (2014-2023) 

 
Broker  Licensed Broker (#216136-12), Texas Real Estate Commission      
 
State Certified Texas State Certified - General Real Estate Appraiser (#TX 1320676-G) 
 
Member  North Texas Commercial Association of Realtors 
 
Member  Real Estate Financial Executive Association 
 
Member  National Association of Realtors 
 

Page 166 of 252



 

Page 167 of 252



ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 
 

1. It is assumed that title to the property herein appraised is good and merchantable, and in 
fee simple. The value is reported without regard to questions of title, boundaries, 
encroachments, environmental regulations, licenses, or other matters of a legal nature 
unless noncompliance has been stated, defined, and considered in the appraisal report. 

2. The value is estimated under the assumption that there will be no international or domestic 
political, economic, or military actions that will seriously affect real estate values 
throughout the country. 

3. Certain information concerning market and operating data was obtained from others. This 
information is verified and checked, where possible, and is used in this appraisal only if 
it is believed to be accurate and correct. However, such information is not guaranteed. 
Dimensions and areas of the Subject Property and of the comparables were obtained by 
various means and are not guaranteed to be exact. 

4. Real estate values are influenced by a number of external factors. The information 
contained herein is all of the data we consider necessary to support the value estimate. We 
have not knowingly withheld any pertinent facts, but we do not guarantee that we have 
knowledge of all factors, which might influence the value of the Subject Property. Due to 
rapid changes in external factors, the value estimate is considered to be reliable only as of 
the date of the appraisal. 

5. Opinions of value contained herein are estimates. This is the definition of an appraisal. 
There is no guarantee, written or implied, that the Subject Property will sell for the 
estimated value. The estimated value assumes that the property is under responsible 
ownership and has competent and prudent management. 

6. The appraiser will not be required to provide testimony or attendance in court or before 
other legal authority by reason of this appraisal without prior agreement and arrangement 
between the employer and the appraiser. 

7. Disclosure of the contents of this appraisal report is governed by the By-Laws and 
Regulations of the Appraisal Institute. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report 
(especially any opinions, analyses, or conclusions concerning value, the identity of the 
appraiser or the firm with which he is connected, or any reference to the Appraisal Institute 
or the M.A.I. or SRA Designation) shall be disseminated to the public through advertising 
media, public relations media, news media, sales media, prospectus for securities, or any 
other public means of communication without prior written consent and approval of the 
undersigned. 

Page 168 of 252



Assumptions & Limiting Conditions, continued 
 

 
 

8. It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, 
or structures which would render it more or less valuable, except as stated in this report. 
No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for engineering, which may be 
required to discover them. It is assumed that a prudent owner/buyer would allow 
inspection of the property by a qualified soils or structure engineer if conditions so 
required. 

9. The distribution of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements 
applies only under the reported highest and best use of the land. The allocation of value 
for land and improvements, if presented, must not be used in conjunction with any other 
appraisal and are invalid if so used. 

10. Estimates of costs to cure deferred maintenance are difficult at best. Contractors approach 
such problems in various ways. The estimates, if any, provided within this report are 
probable costs given current market conditions, available information, and the appraiser's 
expertise. 

11. No environmental impact studies were requested or made in conjunction with this 
appraisal, and the appraiser hereby reserves the right to alter, amend, revise, and/or rescind 
the value opinions based upon any subsequent environmental impact studies, research, or 
investigation. 

12. This appraisal was prepared by Bryan E. Humphries & Associates and consists of trade 
secrets and commercial or financial information, which is privileged and confidential and 
is exempted from disclosure under 5 U.S.C. 552 (b) (4). Please notify Bryan E. Humphries 
& Associates of any request of reproduction of this appraisal. 

13. Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous substances, including 
without limitation asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl, petroleum leakage, or agricultural 
chemicals, which may or may not be present on the property or other environmental 
conditions, were not called to the attention of nor did the appraiser become aware of such 
during the appraiser's inspection. The appraiser has no knowledge of the existence of such 
materials on or in the property unless otherwise stated. The appraiser, however, is not 
qualified to test such substances or conditions. If the presence of such substances, such as 
asbestos, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, or other hazardous substances or 
environmental conditions, may affect the value of the property, the value estimated is 
predicated on the assumption that there is no such condition on or in the property or in 
such proximity thereto that it would cause a loss in value. No responsibility is assumed 
for such condition, or for any expertise or engineering knowledge required to discover 
them. 

Page 169 of 252



Assumptions & Limiting Conditions, continued 
 

 
 

 

14. Anyone acting in reliance upon the opinions, judgments, conclusions, or data contained 
herein, who has the potential for monetary loss due to the reliance thereon, is advised to 
secure an independent review and verification of all such conclusions and/or facts. 

The user agrees to notify the appraiser prior to any irrevocable loan or investment decision 
of any error, which would reasonably be determined from a thorough and knowledgeable 
review. 

15. By acceptance and use of this report, the user agrees that any liability for errors, omissions 
or judgment of the appraiser is limited to the amount of the fee charged. 

16. The limiting condition relating to the ADA is as follows: 
 

This appraisal has not considered the effects of the enactment of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), which initially became 
effective January 26, 1992. We have not made a specific compliance survey 
and analysis of this property to determine whether or not it is in conformity 
with the various detailed requirements of the ADA. Standards of this act are 
designed to provide access to all public facilities to all persons, regardless of 
mobility limitations. The act provides forceful encouragement for 
commercial establishments to enhance their accessibility and requires that 
renovations after this date fully comply with the access standards established 
by the Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board. 
Enhancements to buildings must be readily achievable and able to be carried 
out without much difficulty or expense. The act recognizes that "readily 
achievable" is different for companies depending on their resources. The first 
priority is to provide access from sidewalks, parking and transportation 
areas, with the second priority being to provide access to areas where goods 
and services are available to the public. Finally, access to restroom facilities 
must accommodate all persons. The modifications and costs that may be 
necessary for the property to conform to ADA can be ascertained only by a 
qualified architect. Should such a study be undertaken, and should the retrofit 
costs, if any, become known, then the appraisers reserve the right to re- 
evaluate the Subject Property. 

Page 170 of 252



PARKS DISTRICT WORKSHEET
LAST UPDATED: 02.22.2023

= FIELDS TO UPDATE ANNUALLY

$70,000.00 

11

$770,000.00 

$720,000.00 

$1,490,000.00 

TABLE 2. FEE SCHEDULE

PARK 

DISTRICT

ULTIMATE DWELLING UNIT HOLDING 

CAPACITY

DWELLING UNIT DEDICATION FACTOR 

IN ACRES

1 594 0.0185

2 1,148 0.0096

3 1,350 0.0081

4 1,265 0.0087

5 1,278 0.0086

6 671 0.0164

7 1,446 0.0076

8 1,083 0.0102

9 1,451 0.0076

10 349 0.0315

11 1,085 0.0101

12 1,221 0.0090

13 782 0.0141

14 2,212 0.0050

15 1,234 0.0089

16 406 0.0271

17 2,844 0.0039

18 701 0.0157

19 996 0.0110

20 1,248 0.0088

21 1,006 0.0109

22 1,312 0.0084

23 1,178 0.0093

24 1,472 0.0075

25 1,313 0.0084

26 630 0.0175

27 1,756 0.0063

28 2,321 0.0047

29 3,965 0.0028

30 1,724 0.0064

31 2,266 0.0049

32 333 0.0330

TOTAL COST FOR A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COST FOR A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

TOTAL LAND COST FOR A NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK ACREAGE (ACRES)

ANNUAL PRICE PER ACRE OF LAND

Page 171 of 252



CASH-IN-LIEU OF LAND FEES PRO-RATA EQUIPMENT FEES TOTAL ALTERNATIVE PARK FEES

$1,296.30 $1,212.12 $2,508.42 

$670.73 $627.18 $1,297.91 

$570.37 $533.33 $1,103.70 

$608.70 $569.17 $1,177.87 

$602.50 $563.38 $1,165.88 

$1,147.54 $1,073.03 $2,220.57 

$532.50 $497.93 $1,030.43 

$710.99 $664.82 $1,375.81 

$530.67 $496.21 $1,026.88 

$2,206.30 $2,063.04 $4,269.34 

$709.68 $663.59 $1,373.27 

$630.63 $589.68 $1,220.31 

$984.65 $920.72 $1,905.37 

$348.10 $325.50 $673.60 

$623.99 $583.47 $1,207.46 

$1,896.55 $1,773.40 $3,669.95 

$270.75 $253.16 $523.91 

$1,098.43 $1,027.10 $2,125.53 

$773.09 $722.89 $1,495.98 

$616.99 $576.92 $1,193.91 

$765.41 $715.71 $1,481.11 

$586.89 $548.78 $1,135.67 

$653.65 $611.21 $1,264.86 

$523.10 $489.13 $1,012.23 

$586.44 $548.36 $1,134.81 

$1,222.22 $1,142.86 $2,365.08 

$438.50 $410.02 $848.52 

$331.75 $310.21 $641.96 

$194.20 $181.59 $375.79 

$446.64 $417.63 $864.27 

$339.81 $317.74 $657.55 

$2,312.31 $2,162.16 $4,474.47 

Page 172 of 252



Z2024-012: SUP for a Private Tennis Court  
at 1722 Ridge Road Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-15; SUP # S-330 

 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-15 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-330 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR A PRIVATE 
TENNIS COURT ON A 2.522-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND 
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 4, BLOCK C, THE ESTATES OF COAST 
ROYALE #1 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBITS ‘A’ AND ‘B’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Preston Harris of Harris Family Lake House, 
LLC for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Private Tennis Courts (Pickleball Courts) 
on a 2.522-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block C, The Estates of Coast Royale #1 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, 
situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1722 Ridge Road, and more fully 
described and depicted in Exhibits ‘A’ and ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred 
to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended so as to grant 
a Specific Use Permit allowing for the establishment of a Private Tennis Court in a Single Family 
10 (SF-10) District as stipulated by, Article 04, Permissible Uses, and Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] on the Subject 
Property; and 
  
SECTION 2.  That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth 
in Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.07, Single-Family 
10 (SF-10) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development 

Page 173 of 252



Z2024-012: SUP for a Private Tennis Court  
at 1722 Ridge Road Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-15; SUP # S-330 

Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future 
-- and with the following conditions: 
 
2.1  OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions pertain to the operation of a Private Tennis court on the Subject Property 
and conformance to these requirements is necessary for continued operations: 
 
(1) The Private Tennis Court (Pickleball Court) shall maintain conformance to Exhibits ‘A’ and ‘B’ 

of this ordinance. 
 

(2) All exterior lights placed or erected on the Private Tennis Court (Pickleball Court) shall be 
directed down.  In addition, the lights shall be of the shielded type luminaries and installed so 
as to not to produce harsh, bright light or direct illumination across the property line from a 
visible source of illumination so as not to create a traffic hazard or public nuisance.  

 
(3) The applicant shall have 90-days to obtain a building permit for the Private Tennis Court 

(Pickleball Court). 
 

2.2. COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require compliance to the following: 
 
(1) Upon obtaining a building permit, should the property owner operating under the guidelines 

of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and 
outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate 
proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), 
Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein; 
 
SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
and 
 
SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;  

Page 174 of 252



Z2024-012: SUP for a Private Tennis Court  
at 1722 Ridge Road Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-15; SUP # S-330 

 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6th DAY OF MAY, 2024. 

 
      

 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  April 15, 2024 
 
2nd Reading: May 6, 2024

Page 175 of 252



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Location Map 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION. LOT 4, BLOCK C, THE ESTATES OF COAST ROYALE #1 ADDITION 
 

  

Page 176 of 252



Exhibit ‘B’ 
Pickleball Court Design 

 

Z2024-012: SUP for a Private Tennis Court  
at 1722 Ridge Road Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 24-15; SUP # S-330 

 

Page 177 of 252



MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM:  

DATE:  May 6, 2024 

SUBJECT:  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Year End Presentation_YAC 2023-2024

Page 178 of 252

YAC Presentation

YAC students will present to Council to recap their program activities during this past
school year.



��������	
���������
�� � �
Page 179 of 252



��������	
������	�
������������������������������������� !"�#��$�%�����������&������"����'(�))��)��*&������+���������������������)�������%�������������)%�����������������,������%������%�+�

������-������ .�����"�%����/
�������������.�����������������0�������0))���#��$�%����+�1 2�,%)$�����.��������������3�������)%�������������)����%���3)&��)&%�(���+�.���������������"%�+�4%������)���)�����+��

Page 180 of 252



��������	
������	� ������������������������� ����������� 
!��"���#�$$%��������&�$$��""����'�����(�"���'"�"��)��*����"�+��������&�$$������������,�,(��"��-�������"�����(���.�("�������&�����,���#��(����"�+� !��"���#�$$%��������&�$$��""����)��*����"���#�/�0����"�/�$��+��������&�$$������"���-��-$������(��123�,��(-�����"���#(����������+�'������,$���"��"�����,�"�"��.��-��"��#�"������� ��,�����(��"�+� !��"���#�$$%�������&�$$��""����/�0���/����)��*����"������&�$$�.���"(����,�4�$�"���$�'������+�������&�$$������"���#��������-�����&����.$��"��#��"������123+�

Page 181 of 252



��������	���
�� �������������������� ������������������ ����!���� � ����!�����!"��#� $�%&'��(� �� )�*����������+*����� �, '����-�+#�*., /����'����-�0�#��, 1�������.-�+**��, )������� -�2�.*�  ��������������)�*"� $�)� ���3! �������
Page 182 of 252



���������	��
��������������
� ���������������������� �! "���#��$% &"��'"(����)���*���"����'����'(��")�+*���"����'���*�� "�� ,""'�-�����!""��'�% ."�/"(��'�0�� ��'��"'�"'�"�1"���'��������""'��% .�)"�23-�)")4"����"�/"�������'�"�
Page 183 of 252



������������	
�� �������������������������������� �����!�"�����#��"���$������%��"#& '( �)������*��+������!����#��"����$��)��",& -���"�)��+��"�������"#�)�*����!�"����"����!�"����"*����#����"��������"#����)�#�����+���"����.��"���)�"#�$�#$�/����$"��������������)& 0���")��� �$�*�������*�)�1�2�����"�������)�3�+����"*����#����"��"*��*�"#����!����#��"����$��)��"
Page 184 of 252



����������	�
�����
�������������������������������� ! "#$�����%��� ������&��'(����)�*��+����,������*! -������ .*�/�.� ���0�*1��������2� � ���! ,�����2���2*��������������3�� *� ���4�����1����! 5�� ���2�* �� �+�6�78�9:,�);<=
Page 185 of 252



���������		
��� ������������������������������������������������  �!�����"����������#�������������$��%���#�&� '��������(�!������%����������� '�)�����"�(������!�����������#��(�!��"������$����"������������!��������������&
Page 186 of 252



���������	

��������� ������������������������ ���� ��!��"�#�����$��������#�� %�&'� &!�$����$�����(�$&))��� %���(�(�)�� *��� �&#"��(*����� ����)!&# ��$��&'���#��$�� +�#�(#&�!�,&����� -��������$�!��#&&)� �� �,&�������� �#&�(��� #���� .!&"�� &�& ��#�$&��$����/ �& �����������'&#�&�#�$&��$���#��� ��� &�$&))��� %���#��$�*�,%����*������ #�$ �#�
Page 187 of 252



���������	�
�
�
Page 188 of 252



����������	
�
����� �������������������������������������� ����!"#���$$���� %&������&$��������'����&��&�$�$���(���������) *����'���'+�� ��,�����) ��&����$�������&$��(�&�!"#�$�$'�&�) ��&����$$����+���&-����.���/�������$�&���&�0���������,��#��+��(���/ �����

Page 189 of 252



���������	�
�� �������������������������������������� �!�"�������#$���%�&���$����&� �!�"����'�����&���'�#��$�� (����)*�����$�����+���������$��"��$���������� ,�����$��&- #�������!���&�������+#���.�����&�#���- �#����#�����������- &��"����.�����&�#������&��- +��#����.�����&������$������!���$�#�� �!�"����
Page 190 of 252



����������	
 �������������������������
 ����������������������� �����!����!�����!�����������������"�#!���
Page 191 of 252



Page 192 of 252



Page 193 of 252



QUARTERLY REPORT 
JANUARY - MARCH 2024

VisitRockwall.com

Jodi Willard
Director of Tourism

Page 194 of 252



BY THE NUMBERSBY THE NUMBERSBY THE NUMBERS

Page 195 of 252



Conferences Bid/ Awaiting Response: 
Texas Association of CVB’s Conference 

Bid by the Hilton will bring in 600 room nights over a 4-day period
Texas Council of Alpha Chapters - 

2027 Conference
350 room nights over a 3-day period

 USA Pickleball Tournament
2027 Tournament
7-day tournament

Southwest Showcase

Dallas Travel & 
Adventure Show

Texas Travel Alliance Unity Dinner

 Texas Association of Fairs &
Events Speaker

Shows/Events Attended 
Texas Association of Fairs & Events

Partnered with Visit Galveston & Visit Granbury to speak with over 100
people about booking events and working with your local Destination
Management Organization.

Southwest Showcase
Met with multiple professional business meeting planners as they
stopped by our table. 

Texas Association of CVBs Mid-Winter Conference
Attended the leadership conference discussing strategies on how to
better our destinations.

Dallas Bridal Show
Hosted a booth promoting Rockwall as a premier wedding destination.

Dallas Home & Garden Show
Partnered with Team Texas to promote our destinations to over 1000
attendees.

Texas Travel Alliance Unity Dinner 
Represented Visit Rockwall at Texas Travel Alliance’s annual Unity
Dinner.

SALES/SERVICINGSALES/SERVICINGSALES/SERVICING
   OPPORTUNITIESOPPORTUNITIESOPPORTUNITIES

Page 196 of 252



Groups AssistedGROUPS ASSISTEDGROUPS ASSISTEDGROUPS ASSISTED

We were able to work with Rotary District
Conference and Texas Grain & Feed Association to

Rockwall. 

The Rotary District Conference welcomed 120
attendees and each recipient received a welcome bag

as well as participated in the Downtown Dollars
Program.

Thank you to Councilman Lewis to welcoming the
Texas Grain & Feed Association at their opening
session. Rockwall welcomed over 200 attendees.

We also distributed bags/Visitor Brochures to some
family reunions and 2 wedding parties.

Page 197 of 252



Retractable Banners

PRINTPRINTPRINT   
ADVERTISINGADVERTISINGADVERTISING

Dallas Bridal Show

2024 Program
5,000 Copies Printed

Page 198 of 252



PRINTPRINTPRINT   
ADVERTISINGADVERTISINGADVERTISING

 D Magazime

March Editorial 
403,762 Monthly Readership

61, 176 Circulation 

Meet Texas Ad

Spring Editorial 
48,000 Monthly Readership

80% Meeting/Event Planners

 Texas Events Ad

Summer Editorial 
50,000 Monthly Readership

Page 199 of 252



DIGITALDIGITALDIGITAL
ADVERTISINGADVERTISINGADVERTISING

Tour Texas Digital Banner

Page 200 of 252



BLOGBLOGBLOG
RESULTSRESULTSRESULTS

Page 201 of 252



Current Social Media
Platforms

Facebook
Instagram
LinkedIn

Our top performing posts of Rockwall were
landscape photos.

SOCIAL MEDIASOCIAL MEDIASOCIAL MEDIA   METRICSMETRICSMETRICS

Page 202 of 252



LINKEDIN MAILLINKEDIN MAILLINKEDIN MAIL   
CAMPAIGNCAMPAIGNCAMPAIGN

Partnered with AJR Media
to create a Sales Campaign
on LinkedIn that began in

March, 2024
Page 203 of 252



Recently, David and Tina with Clarity of Place visited Rockwall to
assist with organizing our tourism road map for Visit Rockwall.

They asked to meet with local tourist related business owners and
hoteliers to get their input about the needs related to visitors. We

had a productive meeting and the Visit Rockwall team, as well as the
Clarity of Place team, walked away with some great opportunities to

better promote our beautiful city. We look forward to sharing this  
long term visitor plan with city staff.

TOURISMTOURISMTOURISM   
ROAD MAPROAD MAPROAD MAP   

Page 204 of 252



Goals Action Plan

Effectively position Rockwall as
a premier regional destination
for leisure, sports, and group
travel to drive incremental
overnight stays, specifically
Sunday-Thursday overnight
visits.

    •    Build a strategy to encourage weekday business
    •    Build a strategy to target higher-spend weekend and day
  visitors 
    •    Continue to build messaging around Rockwall’s unique
  destination value proposition
    •    Validate and leverage specific venue strengths within the
  religious marketplace, beginning with Lakepointe Church

Craft a specific business model
for Free Live Music Capital of
North Texas to proactively
strengthen the link between the
brand promise, the
community’s offerings, and the
destination storytelling

•    Inventory and  consistently update all Free Live Music
offerings within Rockwall
    •    Join Texas Music Friendly program
    •    Develop separate program focused entirely on the Free
Live Music offerings and experience including:
    •    Specific website of options
    •    Toolkit for performers, talent agents, producers
    •    Social media outreach
    •    Coordinate with City of Rockwall and arts/cultural
institutions to build in their resources
    •    Tie in Lakepointe Church and other religious institutions
as part of the Free Live Music catalog of options
    •    Explore future membership and participation in Music
Cities Convention

Enhance local appreciation of
tourism spending and ensure
 Visit Rockwall’s efforts support
placemaking in the city

    •    Continue to position Rockwall’s amenities for all guests –
visitors and residents
    •    Continue to collaborate with the Mainstreet program and
  businesses to distribute visitor activity more evenly into
downtown
    •    Coordinate signage and visual cues that link hospitality
  clusters to product areas including downtown, the Harbor,
and sports facilities

TOURISM ROAD MAPTOURISM ROAD MAPTOURISM ROAD MAP
   GOALS & ACTION PLANGOALS & ACTION PLANGOALS & ACTION PLAN

Page 205 of 252



MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager

DATE: April 29, 2024

SUBJECT: Professional Services for Facilities Planning Study 

In May 2023, Mayor Johannesen brought forward the need to conduct a long-term plan to 
address facilities necessary to provide essential city services.  During the budget process in 2023, 
City Council approved funding to renovate and lease office space for Fire Administration, Fire 
Marshal’s Office, and multiple divisions of the Police Department as a short-range solution for 
these growing departments.  These departments are now occupying the new office space.  

The City of Rockwall issued a request for qualifications (RFQ) for professional services related 
to a Facilities Planning Study in November 2023 and received multiple interested firms.  City 
Staff interviewed five of the top qualified consultants and are recommending Parkhill as the 
preferred candidate to proceed with conducting the study. The project is anticipated to require six 
months to complete with a cost of $185,000.

The Parkhill team has worked extensively with other municipalities on long-range facility master 
planning projects, and have familiarity with Rockwall, having worked with other local 
governments in Rockwall County.  Michael Howard with Parkhill will be at the meeting on 
Monday to discuss their firm, their experience, and the City’s project.

The study consists of preparing a facilities master plan that will evaluate the needs, space 
requirements, and potential costs for capital improvements over a 10-year timeframe for the 
following facilities and related departments:

1. City Hall
2. Municipal Service Center
3. New Fire Station 1 
4. Police Station  
5. Downtown Parking Opportunities

Included for your consideration is an agreement for professional services with Parkhill.  City 
Council is asked to consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement with Parkhill 
in the amount of $185,000 with funds available from General Fund Reserves.

Page 206 of 252



 

3000 Internet Blvd, Ste 50   |   Frisco, Texas 75034   |   972.987.1670   |   Parkhill.com 

 

 

 

April 29, 2024 

 

 

Joey Boyd 

Assistant City Manager 

City of Rockwall 

385 South Goliad Street 

Rockwall, Texas 75087 

 

 

RE: Agreement for Professional Services  |  Rockwall Facilities Planning Study 

  

Dear Mr. Boyd: 

 

Parkhill (A/E) is honored to have the opportunity to provide architectural services to City of Rockwall, a 

political subdivision of the State of Texas (Owner) for the Facilities Planning Study (Project). 

 

The following outlines our understanding of the Project scope and how we propose to provide services for 

the Project. 

 

1.0 Project Information 

1.1 Description. The Project consists of architectural services to prepare a facilities master plan 

(Study). The Study will evaluate the needs, space requirements and potential costs for 

proposed capital improvements over a 10-year planning timeframe. 

1.2 Site. The following facilities and associated city departments are included in the Study: 

1.2.1 City Hall 

1.2.2 Municipal Service Center 

1.2.3 Fire Station No. 1 

1.2.4 Police Station 

1.2.5 Downtown Parking 

1.3 Budget. Construction cost budgets are unknown at this time. 

 

2.0 Scope of Services 

2.1 Space Programming 

2.1.1 Collect base data including staffing levels, site/floor plans, and review existing 

projects and studies related to this Study.  

2.1.2 Tour current facilities with staff to document existing conditions related to space 

utilization and function.  

2.1.3 Consult with users to obtain input regarding facility needs related to space and 

function and establish design vision and performance criteria for future capital 

improvements.   

2.1.4 Quantify the spatial requirements for facilities (square feet) and site development 

(acreage) considering the intended functions. 

Page 207 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 2 of 11 

 

2.2 Site Evaluation 

2.2.1 Visit existing sites and up to 3 potential sites for new facilities.  

2.2.2 Review available data and drawings to evaluate site conditions and physical 

characteristics and identify constraints and opportunities that may impact 

development such as access, views, building organization, circulation, parking, 

topography, drainage, and available utilities. 

2.3 Conceptual Design 

2.3.1 Evaluate alternatives and development options for capital improvements to 

address current and future facility needs including renovation, 

expansion/additions, relocation, or new facility construction. 

2.3.2 Prepare conceptual drawings based on the space programming and site 

evaluation including diagrammatic blocking floor plans illustrating the layout of 

major functional spaces, and site master plans illustrating the layout of buildings, 

site  access, circulation, parking, and other site development requirements. 

2.4 Cost Estimating 

2.4.1 Prepare opinions of probable cost including construction and other soft costs as 

preliminary project budgets for proposed capital improvements. 

2.5 Deliverables 

2.5.1 Summary presentation report documenting analysis, findings, and 

recommendations of the Study including space programming, site evaluation, 

conceptual drawings, and opinions of probable cost. 

2.6 Meetings and Site Visits 

2.6.1 Attend Owner review meetings, in person or virtual, up to two per month. 

2.7 Exclusions 

2.7.1 Services specifically excluded from our scope of services include the following: 

• Topographic and Boundary Surveys 

• Entitlement, Platting, Easements, and Permitting Services  

• Geotechnical Investigations and Soil Reports   

• Construction Materials Testing  

• Asbestos & Hazardous Material Studies  

• Environmental, FEMA/Floodplain, and Traffic Studies 

   

2.8 Subconsultants. /E will obtain the following subconsultant services: 

2.8.1 n/a 

 

3.0 Schedule 

3.1 Based on the proposed scope of work, we anticipate a six (6) month project duration from 

your authorization to proceed. Parkhill will render its services as expeditiously as is consistent 

with professional skill and care. During the Project, unanticipated events may impact the 

Project schedule. Changes to the schedule may become necessary due to changes in scope 

or other circumstances beyond the A/E’s control.  

 

4.0 Compensation 

4.1 Our fees for the Scope of Services as described will be based on a lump sum amount of 

$185,000, inclusive of expenses. The fee will be invoiced monthly based on the percentage 

of work completed.  

4.2 Reimbursable expenses. n/a 

Page 208 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 3 of 11 

 

4.3 Should the scope of services described above change during the Project, the lump sum 

amount will be adjusted either up or down by a mutually agreed upon amount or based on an  

hourly rate method using A/E’s standard hourly rate schedule, attached as Exhibit A.  

 

5.0 Authorization to Proceed. You may indicate your acceptance of this agreement and the Standard 

Conditions (Exhibit B) by returning one signed copy to our office. Unless another date is specified, we 

will consider receipt of the executed agreement as authorization to proceed. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide professional services to you and look forward to the successful 

completion of your project. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call us. 

 

Sincerely, 

Parkhill (A/E) 

 

 

 

  City of Rockwall (Owner) 

 

By              Accepted By:   

 Michael Howard, AIA, AICP 

 Director of Planning & Interiors | Principal Title:    

    

   Date:    

 

 

Enclosures 

Exhibit A: Hourly Rate Schedule 

Exhibit B: Standard Conditions 

 

 

“The Texas Board of Architectural Examiners, P.O. Box 12337, Austin, Texas 78711-2337, (512) 305-9000, 

www.tbae.state.tx.us has jurisdiction over complaints regarding the professional practices of persons registered as 

architects, interior designers, and landscape architects in Texas.” 

  

Page 209 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 4 of 11 

 

Exhibit A: Hourly Rate Schedule (2024) 

 

 

  

Page 210 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 5 of 11 

 

Exhibit B: Standard Conditions 

CLIENT and A/E agree to and accept the following terms and conditions pursuant to and as a part of the 

parties’ Agreement for Professional Services: 

ARTICLE 1.  INVOICING AND SERVICES 

1.1 INVOICING 

Payments for services rendered by A/E or for other fees or expenses required by this Agreement are 
due and payable, and the parties reserve all rights pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 
2251, commonly referred to as the Texas Prompt Payment Act. In addition, A/E and CLIENT shall be  
entitled to any other legal and equitable remedies allowed by applicable law. 

1.2 SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Except as expressly stated in the Scope of Work, A/E shall not, and shall not be responsible to 
supervise, direct or have control over the Work of CLIENT’s or Property Owner’s contractors, 
subcontractors or other service or material providers, including any designated general contractor of 
CLIENT or Property Owner or any subcontractors thereof (generally and collectively referred to as the 
“Contractors”) nor have any responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures selected by the Contractors nor for the Contractors’ safety precautions or 
programs in connection with the Work. These above rights and responsibilities are solely those of and 
between CLIENT and the applicable Contractors. CLIENT agrees that A/E is not responsible for the 
jobsite condition or on-site worker safety, except as otherwise expressly stated in the Scope of Work. 
 
Except where prohibited by applicable law, A/E shall not be responsible for any acts or omissions of 
the Contractors, including any subcontractor, any entity performing any portions of the Work or any 
agents or employees of any of them. A/E does not guarantee the performance of any of the Contractors 
and shall not be responsible for the Contractors’ failure to perform their applicable work in accordance 
with the Contract Documents or any applicable laws, codes, rules or regulations.  
 
As used in these Standard Conditions, the term “Contract Documents” refers to the construction plans, 
specifications, work schedules, work conditions and other matters between CLIENT and/or the 
Property Owner and their respective Contractors for the build-out or construction services relating to 
the Project. 
 
A/E shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom requested, that would result in 
A/E having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence A/E cannot 
reasonably ascertain. CLIENT agrees not to make resolution of any dispute with A/E or payment of 
any amount due to A/E contingent upon A/E signing any such document. 

1.3 ESTIMATES OR OPINIONS OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 

In providing estimates or opinions of probable construction cost, CLIENT understands that A/E has no 
control over the cost or availability of labor, equipment or materials, or over market conditions or the 
Contractors’ methods of pricing, and that A/E’s estimates or opinions of probable construction costs 
are made on the basis of A/E’s professional judgment and experience. A/E makes no warranty, 
express or implied, that the bids or the negotiated construction cost will not vary from A/E’s estimates 
or opinions of probable construction cost. 

1.4 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

As used in this Agreement, the term hazardous materials shall mean any substances, including without 
limitation asbestos, toxic or hazardous waste, PCBs, combustible gases and materials, petroleum or 
radioactive materials (as each of these is defined in applicable federal statutes) or any other 
substances under any conditions and in such quantities as would pose a substantial danger to persons 
or property exposed to such substances at or near the project site. 

Page 211 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 6 of 11 

 

 
Both parties acknowledge that A/E’s scope of services does not include any services related to the 
presence of any hazardous or toxic materials. If A/E or any other person or entity involved in the project 
encounters any hazardous or toxic materials, or should it become known to A/E that such materials 
may be present on or about the jobsite or any adjacent areas that may affect the performance of A/E’s 
services, A/E may, at its sole option and without liability for consequential or any other damages, 
suspend performance of its services under this Agreement until CLIENT retains appropriate qualified 
consultants and/or Contractors to identify and abate or remove the hazardous or toxic materials and 
warrants that the jobsite is in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

1.5 ACCESSIBILITY 

CLIENT acknowledges that the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended 
(ADA), and other federal, state and local accessibility laws, rules, codes, ordinances, and regulations 
will be subject to various and possibly contradictory interpretations. CLIENT further acknowledges that 
the ADA is a Civil Rights law and not a building code, and does not use prescriptive language. A/E, 
therefore, will use its reasonable professional efforts and judgment to interpret applicable accessibility 
requirements in effect as of the date of the execution of this Agreement, and as they apply to the 
Project. A/E, however, cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that CLIENT’s Project will comply 
with all interpretations of the accessibility requirements and/or the requirements of other federal, state 
and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances and regulations as they apply to the Project. 
 
CLIENT and A/E understand that, unless exempted by applicable law, the Project must be submitted 

to the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulations (TDLR) – Elimination of Architectural Barriers 

(EAB) Division for plan review for compliance with Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) requirements. 

A/E will include in the design of the Project all changes that are the result of the TDLR plan review. 

After construction of the Project, TDLR requires an inspection of the Project for compliance 

confirmation. However, A/E cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that different rules and/or 

interpretation may be applied to CLIENT’s Project at the time of the final TDLR inspection. Compliance 

with changes required by the TDLR final inspection that were not mentioned in the TDLR plan review 

may be required, and any additional services to be performed by A/E in order to meet or address those 

requirements will be charged to and payable by CLIENT. 

1.6 STANDARD OF CARE BY A/E AND LIMITED WARRANTY 

In providing services under this Agreement, A/E shall perform in a manner consistent with that degree 

of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under 

similar circumstances at the same time and in the same or similar locality. OTHERWISE, A/E MAKES 

NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO ITS PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES RENDERED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND ALL OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED 

WARRANTIES ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED. 

 

CLIENT shall be responsible for all requirements and instructions that it provides to A/E pursuant to 

this Agreement, and for the accuracy and completeness of all programs, reports, data, and other 

information provided by CLIENT to A/E. A/E may use and rely upon such requirements, programs, 

instructions, reports, data, and information in performing or providing services under this Agreement, 

subject to any express limitations or reservations applicable to the provided items. 

1.7 CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

CLIENT will provide A/E with reasonable access to the work site. Unless specifically included in A/E’s 

Scope of Work, CLIENT will, at CLIENT’s expense, apply for and obtain applicable permits in a timely 

Page 212 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 7 of 11 

 

manner, provide all legal services in connection with the Project, and provide environmental impact 

reports and energy assessments, if and as needed or appropriate for A/E’s services. CLIENT shall 

pay the costs of checking and inspection fees, zoning application fees, soils engineering fees, testing 

fees, surveying fees, and all other fees, permits, bond premiums, and all other charges not specifically 

covered by the terms of this Agreement. Any such fee or expense approved by CLIENT and that is 

paid for by A/E shall be included in A/E’s invoice for amounts payable by CLIENT, and A/E may require 

advance payment before incurring the fee or expense.  

1.8 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND DIGITAL DATA 

All reports, drawings, specifications, computer files, field data, notes, data on any form of digital data, 

and other records or documents prepared by A/E are deemed instruments of service (collectively the 

“Instruments of Service”) and shall remain the property of A/E. A/E shall retain a common law, statutory 

and other reserved rights, including copyrights, in and to all Instruments of Service and any derivative 

works thereof relating to the Project. 

 

A/E grants to CLIENT a nonexclusive, limited license to reproduce or use A/E’s Instruments of Service 

solely for the purpose of constructing, effecting, making improvements to, using and maintaining the 

Project; provided, however, this grant is made with the express understanding that A/E shall have 

been paid in full for the Services rendered hereunder. CLIENT shall not use the Instruments of Service 

for other projects without prior written agreement of A/E. CLIENT understands that the unauthorized 

use of Instruments of Service is prohibited, will be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and 

may result in liability and other adverse consequences to CLIENT. ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE OF 

THE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE SHALL BE AT CLIENT’S OR SUCH OTHER USER’S SOLE RISK 

AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO A/E. 

1.9 INDEMNIFICATION FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 

TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY TEXAS LAW, CLIENT AGREES TO AND SHALL 

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS A/E, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS FROM AND 

AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, DAMAGES, LOSSES, OR COSTS, INCLUDING REASONABLE 

ATTORNEY’S FEES AND DEFENSE COSTS, ARISING FROM OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED 

WITH THE UNAUTHORIZED USE, REUSE OR MODIFICATION OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF 

SERVICE BY CLIENT OR ANY PERSON OR ENTITY THAT ACQUIRES OR OBTAINS THE 

INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE FROM OR THROUGH CLIENT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN 

AUTHORIZATION OF A/E; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THIS INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD 

HARMLESS PROVISION SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY LIABILITY, CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES 

OR EXPENSES, INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEY FEES,ARISING OUT OF BODILY INJURY 

TO PERSONS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY CAUSED OR RESULTING FROM IN WHOLE OR IN 

PART, BY THE NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF THE A/E, ITS OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES 

WITH RESPECT TO AUTHORIZED USE OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE. 

1.10 DELIVERY OF DIGITAL DATA 

In accepting and utilizing any form of digital data generated and furnished by A/E, CLIENT agrees that 

all such digital data are Instruments of Service of A/E. CLIENT is aware that differences may exist 

between the digital data delivered and the printed hard-copy Contract Documents. In the event of a 

conflict between the original signed Contract Documents prepared by A/E and digital data, the original 

signed and sealed hard-copy Contract Documents shall govern. 

Page 213 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 8 of 11 

 

 

Digital data created by A/E through the application of software licensed for the sole and exclusive use 

by A/E will be furnished to CLIENT in read-only format. CLIENT is responsible to obtain and maintain, 

at CLIENT’s expense, software licenses as appropriate for the use of digital data provided by A/E. 

 

Under no circumstances shall delivery of digital data for use by CLIENT be deemed a sale by A/E, 

and A/E makes no warranties, either express or implied, of merchantability and fitness for any 

particular purpose. In no event shall A/E be liable for indirect or consequential damages as a result of 

CLIENT’s use or reuse of the digital data. 

ARTICLE 2. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2.1 APPLICABLE LAW  

This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced according to the laws of the State of Texas without 
regard to conflict of laws principles.  

See Tex. Bus. & Com. Code § 272.001 

2.2 PRECEDENCE OF CONDITIONS 

Should any conflict exist between the terms herein and the terms of any purchase order or confirmation 
issued by CLIENT, the terms of these Standard Conditions shall prevail, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the parties with specific reference to the applicable provision of these Standard Conditions 
that is intended to be modified. 

2.3 ASSIGNMENT 

Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer, sublet or assign any rights or duties under or interest in 
this Agreement, including but not limited to monies that are due or monies that may be due, without 
the prior written consent of the other party (unless such assignment without consent is mandated by 
law), and any assignment without such written consent shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
A/E is expressly permitted to subcontract or assign portions of the Work or services to subconsultants 
that A/E may select, provided that A/E shall remain responsible for the Work assigned to and performed 
by such subconsultants. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under 
this Agreement. 

2.4 AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument, signed by both CLIENT and A/E, which 
expressly refers to this Agreement. 

2.5 DELAYS 

CLIENT agrees that A/E is not responsible for damages arising directly or indirectly from any delays 
for causes beyond A/E’s reasonable control. For purposes of this Agreement, such causes include, 
but are not limited to, strikes or other labor disputes; severe weather disruptions or other natural 
disasters or acts of God; epidemics or pandemics (including the 2019 Novel Coronavirus or COVID-
19, including any on-going or re-occurring effects of same); World Health Organization alerts; 
declarations of a state of emergency or similar orders issued by local, state or federal government 
officials; fires, riots, war or other emergencies; failure of any government agency to act in timely 
manner; failure of performance by CLIENT or CLIENT’s Contractors or consultants; discovery of any 
hazardous substances or differing site conditions; or any other similar or dissimilar cause beyond A/E’s 
reasonable control. 
 

Page 214 of 252

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/BC/htm/BC.272.htm


Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 9 of 11 

 

In addition, if the delays resulting from any such causes increase the cost or time required by A/E to 
perform its services in an orderly and efficient manner, A/E shall be entitled to a reasonable adjustment 
in schedule and compensation. 
 

2.6 INSURANCE 

A/E agrees to provide Professional Liability Insurance and General Liability Insurance during the scope 
of the services provided for this Project and for a period of 3 years after the completion of services. 
Levels of insurance coverage shall be approved by the Client.  

2.7 MERGER, WAIVER, SURVIVAL AND SEVERABILITY 

Except for amendments approved as required by this Agreement, this Agreement constitutes the entire 
and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and with regard to the same subject matter and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations and/or agreements, written or oral relating to the 
same subject matter.   
 
One or more waiver of any term, condition or other provision of this agreement by either party shall 
not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same or any other provisions.   
All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and limitations of liability included in this 
Agreement will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 
 
The parties further intend as follows: (a) if any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, 
that provision will be modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it enforceable, unless that 
modification is not permitted by applicable law, in which case that provision will be disregarded; (b) if 
an unenforceable provision is modified or disregarded according to this section, then the rest of the 
Agreement will remain in effect as written; and (c) any unenforceable provision will remain as written 
in any circumstances other than those in which the provision is held to be unenforceable. 

2.8 TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION 

CLIENT may terminate this Agreement for CLIENT’s convenience and without cause upon giving A/E 
not less than seven calendar days’ written notice.  
 
A/E may terminate this Agreement, or may suspend Services, upon giving CLIENT not less than seven 
calendar days’ written notice following CLIENT’s failure to make timely payment owed to A/E as 
provided by this Agreement. 
 
In addition, either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon giving the other party not less 
than seven calendar days’ written notice for any of the following “for cause” reasons: 

▪ Substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
and through no fault of the terminating party, provided that, except where the failure to perform 
regards CLIENT’s payment obligations, the non-performing party is given written notice and 
description of the failure in question and a reasonable opportunity to cure of at least 10 but no 
more than 30 days, and the non-performing party cures the matter within the reasonable cure 
period; 

▪ Unauthorized assignment of this Agreement or transfer of the Project by either party to any 
other entity without the prior written consent of the other party; 

▪ Suspension of A/E’s services by CLIENT for more than 90 calendar days, consecutive or in 
aggregate; 

▪ Material changes in the conditions under which this Agreement was entered into, the Scope of 
Services or the nature of the Project, and the failure of the parties to reach agreement on the 
compensation and schedule adjustments necessitated by such changes. 

 
A/E shall have no liability to CLIENT on account of A/E’s termination of this Agreement for any of the 
reasons listed in subsections 2.8.1., 2., 3. or 4. above. 

Page 215 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 10 of 11 

 

 
In the event of termination of this Agreement by either party, CLIENT shall, within 15 calendar days of 
the termination date, pay A/E for all services rendered and all reimbursable costs incurred by A/E up 
to the date of termination, in accordance with the payment provisions of this Agreement.  
 
The terminating party shall set the effective date of termination at a time sufficient (up to 30 days later 
than otherwise provided) to allow A/E to demobilize personnel and equipment from the Project, to 
complete tasks whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed 
and uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly files. 

2.9 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND TO THE FULLEST 

EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, NEITHER CLIENT NOR A/E, THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, 

DIRECTORS, PARTNERS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS, CONTRACTORS OR SUBCONSULTANTS 

SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER OR SHALL MAKE ANY CLAIM FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, 

INDIRECT, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR CONNECTED IN 

ANY WAY TO THE PROJECT OR THIS AGREEMENT. THIS MUTUAL LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

SHALL INCLUDE ALL SUCH DAMAGES THAT EITHER PARTY MAY HAVE INCURRED FROM ANY 

CAUSE, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, BREACH OF CONTRACT AND BREACH 

OF STRICT OR IMPLIED WARRANTY.  

 

2.10 THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action 

in favor of a third party against either CLIENT or A/E. A/E’s services under this Agreement are being 

performed solely for CLIENT’s benefit, and there are no third-party beneficiaries of A/E’s services. 

2.11 MAINTENANCE, WEAR AND TEAR 

Both CLIENT and A/E acknowledge that CLIENT, and only CLIENT, is responsible for maintenance, 

wear and tear on the project upon substantial completion. CLIENT is responsible for providing routine 

inspections and maintenance of the project to maintain a safe, functional and weather tight facility. 

Should CLIENT fail to provide routine inspections and maintenance, and damage occur to the project, 

A/E is not responsible for any such resultant damage. 

ARTICLE 3. DISPUTE RESOLUTION, BETTERMENT, AND COMMUNICATIONS  

3.1 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

A/E and CLIENT agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a minimum of 30 days 

from the date of notice.  Should such negotiations fail, A/E and CLIENT agree that any dispute between 

their arising out of, or relating to, this Agreement shall be submitted to non-binding mediation prior to 

the filing of any lawsuit or arbitration proceeding relating to the dispute, unless the parties mutually 

agree otherwise in writing.  

 

The mediation shall be conducted remotely and by electronic video conference means, unless the 

parties agree in writing to mediate in person at a mutually agreeable location. The parties agree that 

conducting mediation by remote means shall constitute a mediation in the state where the Project is 

located, provided that each of the parties shall have one representative participating in the mediation 

while the representative is situated in the state where the Project is located. Each party shall assume 

Page 216 of 252



Agreement for Professional Services   |   Pg 11 of 11 

 

its own costs associated with the mediation. The mediator’s compensation and expenses and any 

administrative fees or costs associated with the mediation proceeding shall be borne equally by the 

parties, unless otherwise agreed in writing. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, none of the above Dispute Resolution processes shall prevent or deter 

a party from protecting or acting upon lien rights, or from seeking immediate, emergency or injunctive 

relief from a court of competent jurisdiction and as may be available at law or in equity. 

3.2 BETTERMENT 

If, due to an error or an omission by A/E, any required item or component of the project is omitted from 

the Construction Documents, A/E shall not be responsible for paying the cost to add such item or 

component to the extent that such item or component and the cost of same would have been otherwise 

necessary to the project or otherwise add value or betterment to the project. 

3.3 NOTICES 

All notices provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing. Any notices that are submitted by email 

exchanged between the parties’ authorized representatives may be effective upon proof of receipt and 

delivery records. Each of the parties agrees to reasonably confirm receipt of notices submitted by the 

other party. Otherwise, all notices provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be hand 

delivered, mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested or sent by recognized overnight courier 

service to the parties at each of their respective representatives noted below, unless otherwise 

changed upon written notice: 

 

A/E: 

Michael Howard, 3000 Internet Blvd, Ste 550, Frisco, TX 75034, mhoward@parkhill.com   

  (Representative name, physical and mailing address, phone, and email) 

CLIENT:  

Joey Boyd, 385 South Goliad St, Rockwall, TX 75087, jboyd@rockwall.com   

  (Representative name, physical and mailing address, phone, and email)  

3.4 ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES 

In accordance with applicable law, including the applicable Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, 

CLIENT and A/E agree that electronic signatures (such as e-mail or electronically-typed signatures) 

of the parties’ authorized representatives to this Agreement and Standard Conditions or to later 

consents or approvals associated herewith shall constitute the valid signature of the party for purposes 

of obtaining agreements, consents or other matters prescribed by the Agreement. 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 

 

Page 217 of 252



Page 218 of 252



Page 219 of 252



Page 220 of 252



Page 221 of 252



Page 222 of 252



Page 223 of 252



Page 224 of 252



Page 225 of 252



Page 226 of 252



Page 227 of 252



Page 228 of 252



Page 229 of 252



Page 230 of 252



Page 231 of 252



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor and Council Members 

FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 

DATE: May 3, 2024 

SUBJECT: March 2024 Quarterly Budget Report 

The following analysis is offered for the period ended March 31, 2024 budget report.  The budget is 
established in broad categories with line item estimates.  In each category actual expenses as a whole 
should be considered rather than at the line item level.  The typical budget threshold for this period is 
50%.  The below categories exceed the threshold but most are not unusual for this time of year.  Those 
line items which may require increases or off-setting decreases will be developed as we finalize the 
budget setting process for the next fiscal year. 

General Fund Revenues 
 All revenues are coming in at or above expected levels with a few exceptions.  Overall revenues are

at 65% of budget due to the timing of property tax payments and holiday sales effect on sales
taxes. 

 Sales tax – despite budgeting for sales tax revenue to be flat we are running close to 2.5% ahead of
projection.  We have experienced two significant audit adjustments – the Comptroller determined
we were overpaid and took the funds back.  This happened in both March and April.   

 Building Permits – we continue to be down for new builds but permits issued do seem to be on the
uptick at this point.

General Fund Expenditures  

There are not any remarkable variances from budgeted expenditures.  Overall, the General Fund is 
running at 43% for the first two quarters of the budget year.   

The exception is vehicles and other large capital items – The Council raised the Purchasing threshold to 
$50,000 which allowed us to go to local dealerships and negotiate the purchase of several vehicles 
approved in this year budget.  We were also able to buy a pickup which was ordered three years ago and 
as it turns out the COOP cancelled the purchase but never told us – just kept saying it was in process. 
We were able to cancel several vehicle orders and get the new purchases into use into a timely manner. 
The exception will be Police patrol units.  The police package is not available on the dealer lot so we are 
still tied to “supply chain problems”.  We did receive several of the FY2023 vehicles we were still waiting 
for so that gives us some relief there.  The budget appropriation was in the year it was ordered so we will 
need to amend those received this year into the budget.  They were planned from Reserves – the 
purchase hits reserves at the point they are paid not the year they are ordered.   

Major capital projects included in the budget including the remodel of offices for Fire Administration, Fire 
Marshal and several Police divisions were substantially completed in this period so those capital lines 
reflect these expenditures as well as the improvements budgetded at the Animal Adoption Center. 

Page 232 of 252



Several Contractual categories exceeed budget thresholds but this is to be expected since most 
maintenance agreements are paid in full in the first couple of months of the budget.  

Water / Sewer Revenues 
 Water sales – sales are slightly ahead of this time of year.  We saw significant usage – more than 2.6

million gallons per day ahead of our previous year consumption in January than 1 million gallons per
day ahead in February and 1.6 million gallons per day in March.  The majority of our revenue though
is from July – September consumption.

 All other revenues are in line with projections as these revenues are always higher in the dry summer
months.

Water / Sewer Expenditures 
 Generally, these accounts are within normal ranges for this period.  NTMWD requires payments in

advance for the various services they provide so those categories can seem ahead of budget
projections but that will resolve itself when we pay the 12th invoice in August.   

 Capital – same note as in the General Fund.  We’ve had better success getting vehicles in this
budget year.  All other accounts are within thresholds.

Page 233 of 252



GENERAL FUND

Amended Actual Percentage Amended Actual Percentage
00  REVENUES
311 - PROPERTY TAXES
4100 -  CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES 13,910,850                13,204,021     94.92% 14,645,600      14,570,889      99.49%
4105 -  DELIQUENT PROPERTY TAX 80,000 40,953             51.19% 80,000              53,895              67.37%
4110 -  PENALTY AND INTEREST 60,000 20,120             33.53% 60,000              29,546              49.24%
311 - PROPERTY TAXES Total 14,050,850               13,265,094    94.41% 14,785,600      14,654,330      99.11%

313 - SALES TAXES
4150 -  CITY SALES TAX 25,800,000                13,511,106     52.37% 27,050,000      13,826,015      51.11%
4155 -  BEVERAGE TAXES 200,000 205,478          102.74% 250,000            155,312            62.12%
313 - SALES TAXES Total 26,000,000               13,716,584    52.76% 27,300,000      13,981,327      51.21%

315 - FRANCHISE FEES
4201 -  ELECTRIC FRANCHISE FEES 2,065,000 1,401,944       67.89% 2,300,000         1,042,547         45.33%
4203 -  TELEPHONE FRANCHISE FEES 70,000 32,913             47.02% 63,000              28,683              45.53%
4205 -  GAS FRANCHISE FEES 650,000 898,277          138.20% 850,000            809,050            95.18%
4207 -  CABLE TV FRANCHISE FEE 295,000 137,630          46.65% 285,000            123,475            43.32%
4209 -  GARBAGE FRANCHISE FEE 360,000 154,459          42.91% 395,000            205,617            52.05%
315 - FRANCHISE FEES Total 3,440,000                  2,625,223       76.31% 3,893,000        2,209,372        56.75%

318 - FEES
4250 -  PARK & RECREATION FEES 18,000 17,210             95.61% 20,000              19,721              98.61%
4251 -  MUNICIPAL POOL FEES 22,000 500 2.27% 20,000              200 1.00%
4253 -  CENTER RENTALS-7% 15,000 8,800               58.67% 15,000              4,720                 31.47%
4255 -  HARBOR RENTALS 1,000 200 20.00% 1,000                 - 0.00%
4270 -  CODE ENFORCEMENT FEES 15,000 41,618             277.45% 20,000              17,809              89.04%
4280 -  PLANNING AND ZONING FEES 75,000 35,374             47.17% 75,000              15,226              20.30%
4283 -  CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 500,000 618,861          123.77% 600,000            335,160            55.86%
4288 -  MIXED BEVERAGE PERMIT FEE 15,000 11,975             79.83% 15,000              12,060              80.40%
4295 -  FIRE-PLAN REVIEW FEES 4,500 2,850               63.33% 4,500                 2,850                 63.33%
318 - FEES Total 665,500 737,388          110.80% 770,500            407,746            52.92%

321 - PERMITS
4300 -  BUILDING PERMITS 1,150,000 426,216          37.06% 900,000            493,863            54.87%
4302 -  FENCE PERMITS 20,000 11,300             56.50% 20,000              8,650                 43.25%
4304 -  ELECTRICAL PERMITS 25,000 34,595             138.38% 40,000              24,927              62.32%
4306 -  PLUMBING PERMITS 50,000 37,573             75.15% 60,000              34,748              57.91%
4308 -  MECHANICAL PERMITS 55,000 9,625               17.50% 35,000              9,575                 27.36%
4310 -  DAY CARE CENTER PERMITS 5,500 2,850               51.82% 5,500                 2,070                 37.64%
4312 -  HEALTH PERMITS 132,000 110,189          83.48% 128,000            100,683            78.66%
4314 -  SIGN PERMITS 20,000 10,725             53.63% 20,000              10,200              51.00%
4320 -  MISC. PERMITS 65,000 41,338             63.60% 75,000              45,326              60.43%
321 - PERMITS Total 1,522,500                  684,411          44.95% 1,283,500        730,042            56.88%

CITY OF ROCKWALL
REPORT OF REVENUES

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTAL FROM PRIOR YEAR

Fiscal Year 2023 Fiscal Year 2024

Page 234 of 252



322 - MUNICIPAL COURT
4400 -  COURT FINES 275,000                     111,674          40.61% 275,000            129,697            47.16%
4402 -  COURT FEES 60,000                        22,138             36.90% 60,000              25,835              43.06%
4404 -  WARRANT FEES 30,000                        11,925             39.75% 30,000              13,561              45.20%
4406 -  COURT DEFERRAL FEES 90,000                        40,201             44.67% 90,000              48,122              53.47%
4408 -  ANIMAL REGISTRATION FEE 5,000                          2,355               47.10% 5,000                 1,891                 37.82%
4414 -  ALARM FEES AND FINES 62,000                        15,661             25.26% 62,000              23,807              38.40%
322 - MUNICIPAL COURT Total 522,000                     203,954          39.07% 522,000            242,913            46.54%

323 - MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
4001 -  INTEREST EARNINGS 50,000                        614,972          1229.94% 750,000            893,404            119.12%
4007 -  SALE OF SUPPLIES 500                             79                     15.80% 500                    -                         0.00%
4010 -  AUCTION /SCRAP PROCEEDS 20,000                        -                        0.00% 20,000              -                         0.00%
4019 -  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 30,000                        153,442          511.47% 50,000              113,331            226.66%
323 - MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE Total 100,500                     768,493          764.67% 820,500            1,006,735        122.70%

330 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
4500 -  GRANT PROCEEDS 1,463,150                  524,110          35.82% 1,026,000         292,954            28.55%
4510 -  SCHOOL PATROLS 741,200                     428,217          57.77% 941,600            227,395            24.15%
4520 -  COUNTY CONTRACTS 1,000                          320                  32.00% 1,000                 480                    48.00%
4530 -  CITY CONTRACTS 594,700                     172,696          29.04% 735,350            183,842            25.00%
330 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES Tot 2,800,050                  1,125,343       40.19% 2,703,950        704,671            26.06%

391 - OPERATING TRANSFERS
4902 -  TRANSFER IN - W/S 400,000                     400,000          100.00% 400,000            400,000            100.00%
391 - OPERATING TRANSFERS Total 400,000                     400,000          400,000            400,000            100.00%

NON - NON-OPERATING REVENUES
4480 -  TOWER LEASES 25,000                        11,757             47.03% 25,000              17,005              68.02%
4460 -  OFFICE LEASE -                                   -                        0.00% 62,600              -                         0.00%
4680 -  DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 30,000                        -                        0.00% -                         31,169              0.00%
NON - NON-OPERATING REVENUES Total 55,000                       11,757            21.38% 87,600              48,174              54.99%

00  REVENUES Total 49,556,400               33,538,247    67.68% 52,566,650      34,385,310      65.41%

Page 235 of 252



GENERAL FUND  

 
 Amended 

Budget Actual Percentage
 Amended 

Budget Actual Percentage
01  MAYOR/COUNCIL

10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 24,200              12,111              50.04% 24,200               12,111               50.04%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 69,700              68,118              97.73% 72,800               70,002               96.16%
30 - SUPPLIES 1,250                184                   14.74% 1,250                  231                    18.51%
40 - OPERATIONS 52,700              25,917              49.18% 55,700               34,905               62.67%
01  MAYOR/COUNCIL Total 147,850           106,329            71.92% 153,950             117,249            76.16%

05  ADMINISTRATION
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,255,800        538,314            42.87% 1,275,150          641,263             50.29%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 946,800            462,725            48.87% 922,200             487,398             52.85%
30 - SUPPLIES 19,500              9,501                48.72% 21,500               8,055                 37.47%
391 - OPERATING TRANSFERS 3,300,450        2,975,000         90.14% 3,653,500          3,575,450         97.86%
40 - OPERATIONS 59,000              47,618              80.71% 60,000               37,464               62.44%
50 - UTILITIES 8,300                2,640                31.81% 8,300                  3,471                 41.82%
05  ADMINISTRATION Total 5,589,850        4,035,798        72.20% 5,940,650          4,753,101         80.01%

06  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 411,850            239,527            58.16% 430,050             203,663             47.36%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 7,500                7,508                100.10% 8,200                  8,183                 99.79%
30 - SUPPLIES 1,500                524                   34.92% 1,500                  340                    22.67%
40 - OPERATIONS 48,700              20,956              43.03% 49,100               19,424               39.56%
50 - UTILITIES 3,500                564                   16.11% 3,500                  1,209                 34.54%
06  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Total 473,050           269,078            56.88% 492,350             232,819            47.29%

07  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 584,300            221,863            37.97% 603,700             288,549             47.80%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 510,500            298,151            58.40% 525,200             303,770             57.84%
30 - SUPPLIES 22,200              8,582                38.66% 22,200               8,682                 39.11%
40 - OPERATIONS 17,500              2,946                16.83% 17,500               2,767                 15.81%
50 - UTILITIES 6,150                2,608                42.41% 6,150                  2,913                 47.37%
07  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Total 1,140,650        534,150            46.83% 1,174,750          606,681            51.64%

09  INTERNAL OPERATIONS
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 755,000            399,104            77.86% 772,150             389,009             50.38%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 1,401,000        1,090,787         58.51% 1,489,450          819,455             55.02%
30 - SUPPLIES 93,900              54,936              11.64% 100,500             47,536               47.30%
40 - OPERATIONS 3,100                361                   46.58% 3,000                  794                    26.47%
50 - UTILITIES 410,100            191,030            399.60% 486,200             234,096             48.15%
60 - CAPITAL 110,900            443,154            0.00% 815,650             503,719             61.76%
09  INTERNAL OPERATIONS Total 2,774,000        2,179,372        78.56% 3,666,950          1,994,609         54.39%

15  FINANCE
11  FINANCE

10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 568,800            236,683            41.61% 574,400             194,539             33.87%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 502,900            312,479            62.14% 504,200             363,323             72.06%
30 - SUPPLIES 64,250              40,127              62.45% 64,250               40,290               62.71%
40 - OPERATIONS 9,000                1,615                17.94% 9,000                  3,523                 39.14%
50 - UTILITIES 1,250                564                   45.12% 1,250                  611                    48.88%

11  FINANCE Total 1,146,200        591,468            51.60% 1,153,100          602,286            52.23%

Fiscal Calendar 2023 Fiscal Calendar 2024

CITY OF ROCKWALL
REPORT OF EXPENDITURES

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTAL FROM PRIOR YEAR

Page 236 of 252



15  MUNICIPAL COURT
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 387,900            224,903            57.98% 331,200             172,337             52.03%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 128,500            68,869              53.59% 129,600             80,047               61.76%
30 - SUPPLIES 4,750                3,142                66.16% 4,750                  1,129                 23.77%
40 - OPERATIONS 5,000                2,500                50.00% 5,000                  1,843                 36.86%
60 - CAPITAL -                        -                         0.00% 37,700               37,692               99.98%
15  MUNICIPAL COURT Total 526,150           299,415            56.91% 508,250             293,048            57.66%

20  FIRE
25  OPERATIONS

10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 6,295,200        3,070,315         48.77% 7,424,600          3,267,000         44.00%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 243,000            173,177            71.27% 283,900             154,646             54.47%
30 - SUPPLIES 161,650            69,426              42.95% 236,800             65,093               27.49%
40 - OPERATIONS 49,500              46,992              94.93% 54,250               26,188               48.27%
50 - UTILITIES 4,300                1,800                41.86% 4,300                  1,950                 45.35%
60 - CAPITAL 560,000            48,625              8.68% 500,000             -                         0.00%
25  OPERATIONS Total 7,313,650        3,410,335        46.63% 8,503,850          3,514,877         41.33%

29  FIRE MARSHAL
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 640,000            317,054            49.54% 662,200             322,373             48.68%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 29,000              18,304              63.12% 32,500               22,373               68.84%
30 - SUPPLIES 74,900              19,134              25.55% 68,700               36,746               53.49%
40 - OPERATIONS 28,000              14,504              51.80% 32,500               6,559                 20.18%
50 - UTILITIES 5,000                2,209                44.18% 5,000                  2,444                 48.88%
60 - CAPITAL 110,650            168,487            152.27% 49,000               40,402               82.45%
29  FIRE MARSHAL Total 887,550           539,692            60.81% 849,900             430,897            50.70%

30  POLICE
31  POLICE ADMINISTRATION

10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,401,600        640,819            45.72% 1,517,050          699,908             46.14%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 126,300            100,308            79.42% 135,250             92,367               68.29%
30 - SUPPLIES 31,500              11,824              37.54% 23,500               6,361                 27.07%
40 - OPERATIONS 89,150              25,056              28.11% 89,150               52,696               59.11%
50 - UTILITIES 9,000                3,070                34.11% 9,000                  3,775                 41.94%
60 - CAPITAL -                        34,673              1,400                  -                         0.00%

31  POLICE ADMINISTRATION Total 1,657,550        815,749            49.21% 1,775,350          855,107            48.17%

32  COMMUNICATIONS
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,297,700        607,456            46.81% 1,307,750          665,009             50.85%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 415,300            353,469            85.11% 388,000             299,357             77.15%
30 - SUPPLIES 7,450                4,054                54.42% 7,450                  511                    6.86%
40 - OPERATIONS 13,150              5,005                38.06% 27,100               3,855                 14.23%
50 - UTILITIES 4,900                1,348                27.51% 4,900                  2,049                 41.82%

32  COMMUNICATIONS Total 1,738,500        971,333            55.87% 1,735,200          970,781            55.95%

33  PATROL
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 6,674,250        3,050,454         45.70% 6,855,350          3,482,223         50.80%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 157,000            92,056              58.63% 157,000             88,690               56.49%
30 - SUPPLIES 547,550            229,916            41.99% 524,050             152,640             29.13%
40 - OPERATIONS 86,000              33,572              39.04% 86,000               48,028               55.85%
50 - UTILITIES 15,950              5,557                34.84% 19,950               6,681                 33.49%
60 - CAPITAL 691,000            569,565            82.43% 1,566,250          558,151             35.64%

33  PATROL Total 8,171,750        3,981,120        48.72% 9,208,600          4,336,413         47.09%

Page 237 of 252



34  CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 2,002,200        1,051,931         52.54% 2,184,200          1,034,181         47.35%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 124,600            56,734              45.53% 159,450             75,897               47.60%
30 - SUPPLIES 50,800              26,112              51.40% 55,800               14,661               26.27%
40 - OPERATIONS 17,800              7,024                39.46% 21,500               4,366                 20.31%
50 - UTILITIES 19,550              5,422                27.73% 12,350               6,574                 53.23%
60 - CAPITAL 101,500            139,584            137.52% 1,400                  -                         0.00%

34  CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS Total 2,316,450        1,286,807        55.55% 2,434,700          1,135,679         46.65%

35  COMMUNITY SERVICES
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,724,650        887,999            51.49% 1,969,200          1,026,944         52.15%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 189,750            82,867              43.67% 22,000               14,023               63.74%
30 - SUPPLIES 106,550            31,814              29.86% 98,550               33,447               33.94%
40 - OPERATIONS 9,900                369                   3.73% 9,900                  507                    5.12%
50 - UTILITIES 4,900                1,579                32.22% 13,400               3,365                 25.11%
60 - CAPITAL 111,000            85,795              77.29% -                          -                         0.00%
35  COMMUNITY SERVICES Total 2,146,750        1,090,423        50.79% 2,113,050          1,078,286         51.03%

36  WARRANTS
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 276,500            134,360            48.59% 286,350             137,806             48.13%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 2,600                1,192                45.84% 2,600                  425                    16.35%
30 - SUPPLIES 3,150                624                   19.81% 3,150                  501                    15.90%

36  WARRANTS Total 282,250           136,176            48.25% 292,100             138,732            26.07%

37  POLICE RECORDS 345,400            180,317            52.21% 351,650             177,653             50.52%
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 3,900                540                   13.86% 1,500                  1,110                 74.00%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 2,950                1,534                52.01% 2,950                  1,018                 34.51%
30 - SUPPLIES 5,100                2,385                46.76% 5,100                  2,362                 46.32%
40 - OPERATIONS -                        200                   0.00% -                          -                         0.00%
37  POLICE RECORDS Total 357,350           184,976            51.76% 361,200             182,143            50.43%

40  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
41  PLANNING
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 829,800            364,954            43.98% 851,800             403,484             47.37%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 87,600              51,612              58.92% 140,050             47,227               33.72%
30 - SUPPLIES 4,400                1,299                29.52% 6,200                  2,448                 39.48%
40 - OPERATIONS 36,700              17,263              47.04% 33,200               12,002               36.15%
50 - UTILITIES 1,300                564                   43.38% 1,300                  657                    50.54%

41  PLANNING Total 959,800           435,691            45.39% 1,032,550          465,818            45.11%

42  NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 380,900            183,567            48.19% 393,450             189,003             48.04%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 184,700            58,441              31.64% 173,750             54,503               31.37%
30 - SUPPLIES 21,500              5,527                25.70% 20,500               3,481                 16.98%
40 - OPERATIONS 9,650                1,277                13.24% 9,650                  2,748                 28.48%
50 - UTILITIES 3,750                1,251                33.36% 3,750                  901                    24.03%
42  NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT Total 600,500           250,063            41.64% 601,100             250,636            41.70%

-                        -                         
43  BUILDING INSPECTIONS

10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 787,350            380,360            48.31% 814,250             390,751             47.99%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 129,000            88,206              68.38% 119,000             24,716               20.77%
30 - SUPPLIES 19,800              4,413                22.29% 19,800               3,347                 16.90%
40 - OPERATIONS 13,250              7,487                56.51% 10,250               2,665                 26.00%
50 - UTILITIES 6,400                2,799                43.74% 6,400                  2,717                 42.45%
43  BUILDING INSPECTIONS Total 955,800           483,264            50.56% 969,700             424,196            43.75%

Page 238 of 252



45  PARKS AND RECREATION
45  PARKS

10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,497,800        712,264            47.55% 1,614,200          802,814             49.73%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 1,020,000        369,764            36.25% 1,063,450          386,799             36.37%
30 - SUPPLIES 611,500            369,307            60.39% 626,000             322,546             51.52%
40 - OPERATIONS 18,250              5,779                31.67% 18,250               5,643                 30.92%
50 - UTILITIES 342,500            125,373            36.61% 346,500             134,276             38.75%
60 - CAPITAL 185,000            180,774            97.72% 117,500             112,923             96.10%
45  PARKS Total 3,675,050        1,763,261        47.98% 3,785,900          1,765,001         46.62%

46  HARBOR O & M
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 141,050            73,406              52.04% 258,700             80,800               31.23%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 260,300            131,252            50.42% 360,300             146,967             40.79%
30 - SUPPLIES 101,000            21,354              21.14% 101,000             31,407               31.10%
40 - OPERATIONS 1,050                320                   30.48% 1,050                  -                         0.00%
50 - UTILITIES 123,600            58,759              47.54% 123,600             91,184               73.77%
60 - CAPITAL 45,000               44,300               98.44%
46  HARBOR O & M Total 627,000           285,091            45.47% 844,650             394,658            46.72%

47  RECREATION
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 882,000            332,745            37.73% 927,500             356,918             38.48%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 50,500              22,937              45.42% 50,500               13,561               26.85%
30 - SUPPLIES 66,750              24,147              36.18% 71,250               7,118                 9.99%
40 - OPERATIONS 83,250              55,061              66.14% 100,500             60,623               60.32%
50 - UTILITIES 79,000              38,296              48.48% 79,000               36,531               46.24%
60 - CAPITAL 20,000              20,819              104.10% -                          -                         0.00%

47  RECREATION Total 1,181,500        494,006            41.81% 1,228,750          474,751            38.64%

48  ANIMAL SERVICES
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 193,200            99,453              51.48% 214,250             107,693             50.27%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 426,000            223,474            52.46% 495,500             257,431             51.95%
30 - SUPPLIES 20,750              6,846                32.99% 20,750               4,490                 21.64%
40 - OPERATIONS 5,250                4,337                82.61% 5,250                  1,887                 35.94%
50 - UTILITIES 5,500                1,341                24.38% 3,850                  1,226                 31.84%
60 - CAPITAL -                        -                         0.00% 95,000               85,602               90.11%

48  ANIMAL SERVICES Total 650,700           335,452            51.55% 834,600             458,329            54.92%

50  PUBLIC WORKS
53  ENGINEERING

10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 982,750            476,970            48.53% 992,600             479,066             48.26%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 200,100            93,167              46.56% 302,600             24,800               8.20%
30 - SUPPLIES 33,850              8,553                25.27% 33,850               7,602                 22.46%
40 - OPERATIONS 23,700              11,739              49.53% 23,700               9,629                 40.63%
50 - UTILITIES 12,500              3,890                31.12% 9,450                  4,255                 45.03%
60 - CAPITAL 70,000              75,889              108.41% -                          82,103               0.00%

53  ENGINEERING Total 1,322,900        670,208            50.66% 1,362,200          607,455            44.59%

59  STREETS
10 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 997,000            419,636            42.09% 1,082,100          447,736             41.38%
20 - CONTRACTUAL 289,000            87,734              30.36% 296,000             82,100               27.74%
30 - SUPPLIES 3,034,600        2,213,634         72.95% 3,258,600          777,767             23.87%
40 - OPERATIONS 11,500              5,503                47.85% 11,500               344                    2.99%
50 - UTILITIES 486,000            231,636            47.66% 486,000             204,549             42.09%
60 - CAPITAL 143,500            78,405              54.64% -                          65,935               0.00%

59  STREETS Total 4,961,600        3,036,548        61.20% 5,134,200          1,578,431         30.74%

Grand Total 51,604,400      28,185,806      54.62% 56,157,600       27,661,981       43.07%

Page 239 of 252



WATER & SEWER  

 
 Amended 

Budget Actual Percentage
 Amended 

Budget Actual Percentage
00  REVENUES
323 - MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
4001 -  INTEREST EARNINGS 30,000          187,188          623.96% 250,000          364,421         145.77%
4010 -  AUCTION /SCRAP PROCEEDS 15,000          1,319              8.79% 15,000            6,797              45.31%
4019 -  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 15,000          20,470            136.47% 35,000            265,066         757.33%
323 - MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE Total 60,000          208,977          348.30% 300,000          636,284         212.09%

340 - UTILITY SALES
4601 -  RETAIL WATER SALES 17,025,000   7,086,653      41.62% 18,125,000    8,046,372      44.39%
4603 -  SEWER CHARGES 11,500,000   4,606,334      40.06% 11,500,000    4,823,107      41.94%
4605 -  PRETREATMENT CHARGES 100,000        45,901            45.90% 100,000          55,339           55.34%
4609 -  HOUSE HAZARDOUS WASTE FEE 176,000        85,401            48.52% 176,000          105,645         60.03%
4610 -  PENALTIES 250,000        190,325          76.13% 250,000          20,687           8.27%
4611 -  PORTABLE METER WATER SALES 100,000        58,760            58.76% 100,000          112,113         112.11%
340 - UTILITY SALES Total 29,151,000  12,073,374    41.42% 30,251,000    13,163,263    43.51%

CONT - TOTAL CONTRACT SALES
4622 -  RCH WATER CORP-WATER SALE 2,045,950     708,096          34.61% 2,245,000      638,395         28.44%
4632 -  BLACKLAND-WATER SALES 1,018,250     390,246          38.33% 1,125,000      388,024         34.49%
4640 -  MCLENDON CHISHOLM SEWER CHARG 480,000        -                       0.00% 504,050          115,313         22.88%
4650 -  CITY OF HEATH-WATER SALES 3,335,000     1,943,556      58.28% 3,728,000      1,520,801      40.79%
TOTAL CONTRACT SALES Total 6,879,200     3,041,898      44.22% 7,602,050      2,662,533      35.02%

NON - NON-OPERATING REVENUES
4480 -  TOWER LEASES 275,000        161,693          58.80% 295,000          125,886         42.67%
4670 -  WATER IMPACT FEES 800,000        187,001          23.38% 700,000          392,956         56.14%
4672 -  SEWER IMPACT FEES 650,000        207,265          31.89% 600,000          314,974         52.50%
4676 -  WATER PRO RATA -                     6,435              0.00% -                       -                      0.00%
4678 -  SEWER PRO RATA -                     102,075          0.00% -                       28,473           0.00%
NON-OPERATING REVENUES Total 1,725,000     664,469          38.52% 1,595,000      862,289         54.06%

OTHE - TOTAL OTHER RECEIPTS
4660 -  WATER TAPS 130,000        24,994            19.23% 130,000          36,705           28.23%
4662 -  SEWER TAPS 25,000          3,500              14.00% 25,000            4,629              18.52%
4665 -  METER RENTAL FEES 40,000          23,240            58.10% 52,000            43,355           83.38%
OTHER RECEIPTS Total 195,000        51,734            26.53% 207,000          84,689           40.91%

00  REVENUES Total 38,010,200  16,040,452    42.20% 39,955,050    17,409,058    43.57%

CITY OF ROCKWALL
REPORT OF REVENUES

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTAL FROM PRIOR YEAR

Fiscal Year 2023 Fiscal Year 2024

Page 240 of 252



WATER & SEWER FUND  

 

Amended 

Budget
Actual

Percentage

Amended 

Budget
Actual Percentage

10  GENERAL GOVERNMENT

05  ADMINISTRATION

391 ‐ OPERATING TRANSFERS 1,313,750     985,000         74.98% 1,453,750     1,453,750     100.00%

05  ADMINISTRATION Total 1,313,750     985,000         74.98% 1,453,750     1,453,750     100.00%

60  UTILITY SERVICES

61  BILLING SERVICES

10 ‐ PERSONNEL SERVICES 626,500         335,741         53.59% 663,550         359,550         54.19%

20 ‐ CONTRACTUAL 575,150         303,046         52.69% 576,150         203,648         35.35%

30 ‐ SUPPLIES 92,800           58,444           62.98% 93,800           49,151           52.40%

40 ‐ OPERATIONS 205,900         95,402           46.33% 224,300         104,119         46.42%

61  BILLING SERVICES Total 1,500,350     792,633         52.83% 1,557,800     716,468        45.99%

62  DEBT SERVICE

70 ‐ DEBT SERVICE 4,761,500     695,505         14.61% 4,600,300     984,497         21.40%

62  DEBT SERVICE Total 4,761,500     695,505         14.61% 4,600,300     984,497        21.40%

63  WATER OPERATIONS

10 ‐ PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,317,850     668,338         50.71% 1,348,650     740,839         54.93%

20 ‐ CONTRACTUAL 16,924,750   8,471,790      50.06% 18,400,350   9,228,849     50.16%

30 ‐ SUPPLIES 907,700         664,488         73.21% 947,700         285,212         30.10%

40 ‐ OPERATIONS 23,250           14,379           61.85% 23,250           5,517              23.73%

50 ‐ UTILITIES 293,500         130,108         44.33% 288,500         121,576         42.14%

60 ‐ CAPITAL 375,000         352,774         94.07% 126,700         55,040           43.44%

63  WATER OPERATIONS Total 19,842,050   10,301,876   51.92% 21,135,150   10,437,033   49.38%

67  SEWER OPERATIONS

10 ‐ PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,228,650     668,433         54.40% 1,274,900     732,086         57.42%

20 ‐ CONTRACTUAL 10,331,200   6,163,610      59.66% 10,741,450   4,588,865     42.72%

30 ‐ SUPPLIES 251,450         112,354         44.68% 288,050         125,237         43.48%

40 ‐ OPERATIONS 17,700           8,934              50.47% 17,700           8,629              48.75%

50 ‐ UTILITIES 120,500         61,877           51.35% 120,500         54,993           45.64%

60 ‐ CAPITAL 288,300         481,722         167.09% 328,900         205,443         62.46%

67  SEWER OPERATIONS Total 12,237,800   7,496,930     61.26% 12,771,500   5,715,253     44.75%

Grand Total 39,655,450   20,271,945   51.12% 41,518,500   19,307,001   46.50%

Fiscal Calendar 2022 Fiscal Calendar 2023

CITY OF ROCKWALL

REPORT OF EXPENDITURES

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTAL FROM PRIOR YEAR

Page 241 of 252



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2024 Monthly 
Report  

 

Page 242 of 252



 

 All Calls By NFIRS Call Type Incident Count
111 Building fire 3
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 2
132 Road freight or transport vehicle fire (Commercial Vehicles) 1
143 Grass fire 1
151 Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 1
221 Overpressure rupture of air or gas pipe/pipeline 1
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 165
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 17
324 Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 22
342 Search for person in water 1
353 Removal of victim(s) from stalled elevator 3
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 3
424 Carbon monoxide incident 2
444 Power line down 1
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 3
511 Lock-out 2
520 Water problem, other 2
522 Water or steam leak 4
531 Smoke or odor removal 1
550 Public service assistance, other 2
550 Smoke Detector Battery Change/Install 7
553 Public service 5
555 Defective elevator, no occupants 3
600 Good intent call, other 2
611 Dispatched & canceled en route 22
622 No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 2
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 3
700 False alarm or false call, other 2
730 System malfunction, other 2
732 Extinguishing system malfunction (activation) 1
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 9
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 16
740 Unintentional transmission of alarm, other 1
741 Sprinkler activation, no fire - unintentional 1
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 3
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 5
Grand Total 321

Page 243 of 252



March 2024 Dispatch to Arrival Analysis 

 

District
Total Number of 

Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of Calls 
in 5.5 mins or 

Less

Average FD 
Response Time 

Minutes

% in 5.5 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 78 30% 63 0:04:27 81% 90%
District 2 71 28% 54 0:04:40 76% 90%
District 3 37 14% 31 0:03:53 84% 90%
District 4 46 18% 38 0:04:36 83% 90%
District 5 8 3% 2 0:13:26 25% 90%
District 6 2 1% 0 0:09:10 0% 90%
District 7 13 5% 2 0:06:36 15% 90%
District 8 2 1% 0 0:07:50 0% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 257 100% 190 0:04:54 74% 90%

Page 244 of 252



March 2024 Travel Times by District 

 

 

 

 

District
Total 

Number of 
Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of 
Calls in 4 or 

Less

Average Travel 
Time Minutes

% in 4 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 78 30% 59 0:03:15 76% 90%
District 2 71 28% 51 0:03:38 72% 90%
District 3 37 14% 28 0:03:06 76% 90%
District 4 46 18% 33 0:03:40 72% 90%
District 5 8 3% 1 0:12:33 13% 90%
District 6 2 1% 0 0:08:23 0% 90%
District 7 13 5% 3 0:05:08 23% 90%
District 8 2 1% 0 0:06:55 0% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 257 100% 175 0:03:52 68% 90%
Page 245 of 252



Current Month Last Month Same Month Last Year Year To Date Last Year To Date
Total Property Loss: $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $994,430.00
Total Content Loss: $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $1,714,100.00
Total Property Pre-Incident Value: $518,574.00 $0.00 $0.00 $518,574.00 $57,340,990.00
Total Contents Pre-Incident Value $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $24,213,828.00
Total Losses: $40,000.00 $.00 $.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00
Total Value: $553,574.00 $.00 $.00 $553,574.00 $81,554,818.00

Page: 1 of 1

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Total Dollar Losses
March 2024

04/09/2024 14:26
rck\dgang

Rockwall Fire Department
ORI Number: TX504

AllAreas:
AllIncident Type:AllLayer:

Station: All

Page 246 of 252



2

9

2
3

0
1

0

2

4

6

8

10

October-23 November-23 December-23 January-24 February-24 March-24

Inspector Call Outs

95
83

70 71 75

102

10 13 13 11 17 12

0

50

100

150

October-23 November-23 December-23 January-24 February-24 March-24

Plan Reviews & Permits
Plan Reviews Permits

1

2

1

0 0 0
0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

October-23 November-23 December-23 January-24 February-24 March-24

Fire Investigations

134

226

161

245
284

149

0

100

200

300

October-23 November-23 December-23 January-24 February-24 March-24

Inspections

Fire Prevention, Education, 
& Investigations Division
Monthly Report
March 2024

Page 247 of 252



Monthly Report

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000

Program Revenue
HMCC/Pavilions

The Center

Jan:
Feb:
Mar:

Founders Day Festival May 18, 2024

First Concert by the Lake of the year May 2, 2024

Upcoming:

March 2024

REVENUE   NUMBERS

spring 
eggstravaganza
2000 attendees

senior luncheon
53 attendees

Page 248 of 252



PARKS   PROJECT   UPDATE - MAR  2024

HARRY MYERS PARKING LOT EXPANSIONROCKWALL MEMORIAL CEMETERY
HTC PLAQUE INSTALLATION

POOL SOD HARBOR FOUNTAIN CLEANING AND
LED LIGHTING PROJECT

Other Projects

sod installed at gloria williams pool area

city hall TURF
Page 249 of 252



Rockwall Police Department
Monthly Activity Report

ACTIVITY CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH YTD YTD YTD %

MARCH FEBRUARY 2024 2023 CHANGE

Homicide / Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Sexual Assault 1 0 1 1 0.00%

Robbery 0 0 1 2 -50.00%

Aggravated Assault 2 2 11 8 37.50%

Burglary 11 1 20 11 81.82%

Larceny 36 46 133 159 -16.35%

Motor Vehicle Theft 2 3 7 26 -73.08%

TOTAL PART I 52 52 173 207 -16.43%

TOTAL PART II 137 103 347 342 1.46%

TOTAL OFFENSES 189 155 520 549 -5.28%

FAMILY VIOLENCE 13 9 35 30 16.67%

D.W.I. 11 13 32 30 6.67%

FELONY 22 13 57 64 -10.94%

MISDEMEANOR 51 57 155 148 4.73%

WARRANT ARREST 7 4 22 19 15.79%

JUVENILE 3 9 16 14 14.29%

TOTAL ARRESTS 83 83 250 245 2.04%

CALLS FOR SERVICE 3771 1915 7640 6822 11.99%

INJURY 5 0 6 5 20.00%

NON-INJURY 110 107 298 243 22.63%

FATALITY 0 0 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL 115 107 304 248 22.58%

RESIDENT ALARMS 47 33 121 116 4.31%

BUSINESS ALARMS 129 130 416 463 -10.15%

TOTAL FALSE ALARMS 176 163 537 579 -7.25%

Estimated Lost Hours 116.16 107.58 354.42 382.14 -7.25%

Estimated Cost $2,763.20 $2,559.10 $8,430.90 $9,090.30 -7.25%

Number of Cases

Arrests

Arrest Warrants

Search Warrants

Marijuana 

Cocaine

Methamphetamine

Dangerous Drugs

Fentanyl

ROCKWALL NARCOTICS UNIT

2034.4 grams

3

1.2 ounces

2

8 grams

1

Seized

12,000 pills

ACCIDENTS

FALSE ALARMS

March-2024

PART 1 OFFENSES

ARRESTS

DISPATCH

ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

Page 250 of 252



General Fund TIF
Sales Tax Sales Tax

Apr-21 1,952,165      10,954         
May-21 2,651,412      18,252         
Jun-21 2,080,645      27,773         
Jul-21 1,877,982      22,940         

Aug-21 1,930,521      24,860         
Sep-21 1,882,276      27,803         
Oct-21 1,860,016      19,744         
Nov-21 2,317,862      21,385         
Dec-21 1,963,345      23,464         
Jan-22 2,040,002      20,495         
Feb-22 2,664,185      23,976         
Mar-22 1,786,902      21,605         
Apr-22 1,633,850      17,548         

May-22 2,559,349      26,254         
Jun-22 2,050,066      25,127         
Jul-22 2,135,457      29,738         

Aug-22 2,381,510      34,190         
Sep-22 2,092,217      36,105         
Oct-22 2,177,040      25,420         
Nov-22 2,291,130      17,990         
Dec-22 2,068,593      21,213         
Jan-23 2,231,654      21,134         
Feb-23 2,792,696      24,982         
Mar-23 1,949,994      20,438         
Apr-23 1,938,490      24,487         

May-23 2,631,033      26,766         
Jun-23 1,859,485      29,862         
Jul-23 2,169,495      30,350         

Aug-23 2,483,321      34,558         
Sep-23 2,149,947      37,018         
Oct-23 2,260,609      27,209         
Nov-23 2,407,536      19,977         
Dec-23 2,054,537      19,906         
Jan-24 2,300,943      21,155         
Feb-24 3,243,321      29,558         
Mar-24 1,559,068      18,064         

Notes:

75% of TIF sales tax (city share) is pledged to the TIF

75% of total sales tax collected is deposited to the General Fund each month

Comptroller tracks sales tax generated in the TIF and reports it monthly 

Sales Tax Collections - Rolling 36 Months

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

General Fund Sales Tax

2021 2022 2023 2024

 5,000

 15,000

 25,000

 35,000

 45,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

TIF Sales Tax

2021 2022 2023 2024

Page 251 of 252



Total Gallons Daily Average Maximum Day
Jan-22 245,557,172            7,921,199              10,742,941            
Feb-22 211,955,941            7,569,855              10,394,759            
Mar-22 256,035,618            8,529,214              10,544,988            
Apr-22 281,707,217            9,390,241              11,718,730            

May-22 356,050,664            11,485,506            15,634,756            
Jun-22 496,374,560            16,545,820            21,414,344            
Jul-22 679,705,160            21,925,974            24,474,168            

Aug-22 534,145,350            17,230,494            23,206,750            
Sep-22 434,247,536            14,474,915            17,617,728            
Oct-22 421,229,833            13,588,058            17,692,206            
Nov-22 228,795,657            7,626,522              11,187,251            
Dec-22 249,341,535            8,043,275              12,260,392            
Jan-23 243,528,725            7,855,765              11,040,666            
Feb-23 198,103,255            7,075,116              8,544,708               
Mar-23 220,326,930            7,107,320              10,825,669            
Apr-23 292,874,560            9,762,486              13,280,734            

May-23 355,482,851            11,467,189            16,032,988            
Jun-23 491,086,630            16,369,555            21,693,510            
Jul-23 587,439,800            18,949,672            23,599,534            

Aug-23 742,795,770            23,961,154            25,727,492            
Sep-23 637,062,410            21,235,410            31,876,280            
Oct-23 461,067,498            14,873,145            20,317,822            
Nov-23 307,169,395            10,238,981            12,875,885            
Dec-23 277,770,415            8,960,337              13,375,678            
Jan-24 326,749,166            10,540,296            21,931,696            
Feb-24 236,310,098            8,148,624              10,720,500            
Mar-24 270,997,608            8,741,858              10,729,160            

Source: SCADA Monthly Reports generated at the Water Pump Stations

Monthly Water Consumption - Rolling 27 Months

 100,000,000
 200,000,000
 300,000,000
 400,000,000
 500,000,000
 600,000,000
 700,000,000
 800,000,000

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

M
ar

-2
3

M
ay

-2
3

Ju
l-2

3

Se
p-

23

N
ov

-2
3

Ja
n-

24

M
ar

-2
4

Total Gallons per Month

Total Gallons

 2,000,000

 12,000,000

 22,000,000

 32,000,000

 42,000,000

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

M
ar

-2
3

M
ay

-2
3

Ju
l-2

3

Se
p-

23

N
ov

-2
3

Ja
n-

24

M
ar

-2
4

Average and Max Day

Daily Average Maximum Day

Page 252 of 252


	I. Call Public Meeting to Order
	II. Executive Session
	1. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incentives, pursuant to &sect;Section 551.087 (Economic Development)

	III. Adjourn Executive Session
	IV. Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.)
	V. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Thomas
	VI. Proclamations / Awards / Recognitions
	1. YAC's Graduating High School Seniors

	VII. Open Forum
	VIII. Take Any Action as a Result of Executive Session
	IX. Consent Agenda
	1. Consider approval of the minutes from the April 15, 2024 city council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	04-15-24 CC Mtg Minutes

	2. Z2024-010 - Consider a request by Mark Fernandez of Lithia C/O Golden Property Development, LLC on behalf of Zohreh Malek for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars and Light Trucks to allow the expansion of an existing New Motor Vehicle Dealership on a 5.9613-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block 1, Rockwall KIA Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as 1790 E. IH-30, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	#24-13_S-328_Z2024-010 RE SUP for Southwest Kia_05-06-24

	3. Z2024-011 - Consider a request by Alan Wyatt on behalf of PSB Indemnity Family, LTD PTRN for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a structure in excess of 36-feet in the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District to allow the construction of a flag pole on a 1.158-acre parcel of land identified as a Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Executive Center Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 510 Turtle Cove Boulevard, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	#24-14_S-329_Z2024-011 RE SUP for 510 Turtle Cove Blvd_05-06-24

	4. Z2024-013 - Consider a request by Paul Arce of Projects &amp; Constructions Araque on behalf of Shirley Soto for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.248-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Lot 1180 and all of Lot 1179 of the Lake Rockwall Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single- Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 340 Evans Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	#24-16_S-331_Z2024-013 re SUP for 340 Evans Road_05-06-24

	5. Z2024-014 - Consider a request by Barbara Lee for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District for a ten (10) acre tract of land identified as Tract 22-01 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 628 Cornelius Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	#24-17_Z2024-014 re Zoning Change from AG to SF-1_05-06-24

	6. Z2024-015 - Consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Mike Peoples for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District for a 15.561-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Tracts 10-02, 10-03, 25-1, &amp; 26 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 291, 333 &amp; 555 Cornelius Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	#24-18_Z2024-015 re Zoning Change (AG & SFE-1.5)_05-06-24

	7. P2024-007 - Consider a request by Ronny Klingbeil of RLK Engineering, Inc. on behalf of Tim Lyssy of Rockwall Independent School District (RISD) for the approval of a Replat for Lot 3, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition being a 26.25-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block 1, Rockwall Middle School No. 4 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, addressed as 625 FM-552, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Replat

	8. P2024-013 - Consider a request by Josh Milsap of KFM Engineering &amp; Design on behalf of Tony Austin of Rockwall Downtown Lofts, LTD for the approval of a Replat for Lot 3, Block A, TAC Rockwall Addition being a 3.35-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block A, TAC Rockwall Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Downtown (DT) District, situated within the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, located at the southwest corner of the intersection of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and SH-66, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Replat

	9. P2024-014 - Consider a request by Nick Hobbs of BGE, Inc. on behalf of Ben Scott of HEB, LP for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, HEB Addition being a 12.519-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 2 &amp; 3 of the J. M. Allen Survey, Abstract No. 2, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District and the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, located at the southwest corner of the eastbound IH-30 Frontage Road and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Final Plat

	10. P2024-015 - Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir &amp; Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A and Lots 12 &amp; 13, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition being a 23.680-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Tract 22 and all of Tract 22-2 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District and the FM-549 Overlay (FM-549 OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the intersection of the IH-30 Frontage Road and FM-549, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Final Plat
	Closure Report

	11. P2024-016 - Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir &amp; Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of a Replat for Lots 9, 10, &amp; 11, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition being a 18.085-acre tract of land identified as Lot 8, Block B, Fit Sport Life Addition and a portion of Tract 22 and all of Tract 24 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District and Light Industrial (LI) District, situated at the northwest corner of the intersection of Data Drive and Capital Boulevard, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Replat
	Closure Report

	12. P2024-017 - Consider a request by Kyle Harris of Westwood Professional Services on behalf of Edward Burke of Channell, Inc. for the approval of a Replat for Lot 5, Block A, Channell Subdivision being a 18.762-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, Channell Subdivision, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 89 (PD-89) for Light Industrial (LI) District land uses, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, addressed as 1700 John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Replat

	13. Manhole Rehabilitation Project Contract
	Memorandum
	Manhole Rehab 2024 memo

	14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Planning Grant Agreement with Texas Parks &amp; Wildlife and a Planning, Design and Construction Administration Agreement with MHS Planning in the amount of $222,750.00 for the planning grant with Texas Parks &amp; Wildlife, and take any action necessary.
	Memo
	Signature Documents

	15. ILA for Judge Services for "No Refusal Weekends"
	Memorandum
	Rockwall Agreement

	16. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in Chapter 38. Subdivisions; Article II. Park Land Dedication; Table 1. to set revised annual price per acre of land and total equipment costs for neighborhood parks (mandatory park land dedication fees), and take any action necessary. (1st reading)
	Memo
	Ordinance Draft
	Market Study Report
	Parks Worksheet


	X. Action Items
	1. Z2024-012 - Consider a request by Preston Harris of Harris Family Lake House, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Tennis Courts (Pickleball Courts) on a 2.522-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block C, The Estates of Coast Royale #1 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1722 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	#24-15_S-330_Z2024-012 RE SUP for a Private Tennis Court_05-06-24

	2. Hear year-end presentation from members of the City&#39;s Rockwall Youth Advisory Council (YAC), recapping their program for this past school year.
	Memorandum
	Year End Presentation_YAC 2023-2024

	3. Discuss and consider a status update from the Rockwall Area Chamber of Commerce regarding Hotel Occupancy Tax (&quot;HOT&quot;) funding received from the City and regarding programs offered through the Convention &amp; Visitors Bureau on behalf of the City of Rockwall.
	Visit Rockwall Financial Review
	Visit Rockwall Quarterly Report - May 2024

	4. Discuss and consider authorizing the city manager to execute an agreement with Parkhill for professional services for a facilities planning study in the amount of $185,000 to be paid from General Fund Reserves, and take any action necessary.
	Staff memo to city council for parkhill
	Agreement_Parkhill_Rockwall_Facilities Planning Study_2024-04-29


	XI. City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and Related Discussions Pertaining To Current City Activities, Upcoming Meetings, Future Legislative Activities, and Other Related Matters.
	1. Building Inspections Department Monthly Report
	BI Monthly Report 

	2. Budget Report - Quarter End March 31, 2024
	Quarter ended March 31, 2024

	3. Fire Department Monthly Report
	March 2024 - City Council Report - Final

	4. Parks &amp; Recreation Department Monthly Report
	PARD Monthly Report - March 2024

	5. Police Department Monthly Report
	03March Rockwall Police Monthly Activity Report 2024

	6. Sales Tax Historical Comparison
	sales tax history-general fund

	7. Water Consumption Historical Statistics
	Water Usage 27 months


	XII. Adjournment



